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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 2601, 26th Floor

One Harbourfront

18 Tak Fung Street

Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Maples Corporate Services Limited
PO Box 309, Ugland House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.dali-group.com

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISOR

Luk & Partners
In Association with
Morgan, Lewis & Bockius

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Maples Fund Service (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square, Grand Cayman
KY1-1102, Cayman Islands

R A\ RANEAE

hE AR AME
BEEERH
KILEMAOH

BREIRERME
BB
BUET185
RS — I
26122601 =

AMBRER
Maples Corporate Services Limited
PO Box 309, Ugland House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

NGE D

http://www.dali-group.com

¥ B

KB RN E AT
S ES -]

BiRAEER
P B 4 2 1 26 75 P
P AR 55 H (R AT B A TR

EEROBRFERIE
EBPREBLFELERAA
EBBIT

ERARER 1835

B ML

1711712171657 4

FEREIEROBFERE

Maples Fund Service (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square, Grand Cayman
KY1-1102, Cayman Islands

EFEmEBEFRAE/ F3, 2018 3




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Itz REVENUE

20,863,557 sz housen

For the year ended December 31, 2018
BE-2—\F+-A=t—-HBLEE

E#] GROSS PROFIT

8,050,741 2 cccne

For the year ended December 31, 2018
BE—Z2-N\F+=-A=+-— Htiﬁ

EFJ% GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

38.6%

For the year ended December 31, 2018
BE-ZE-/\F+=ZA=+-— EiﬁF

BS LS

L =xz7/0 Change

1 9,799,1 O RMB Thousand 5 40/

For the year ended December 31, 2017
BHE_Z—+F+_A=+— a¢¢r

ARBTT

7,457 y 625 RMB Thousand

For the year ended December 31, 2017
BE—T +E+-A=t—RAILEE

8.0%

0.9
ERRE
37.7% percentage point

For the year ended December 31, 2017
HE-Z—+tF+-A=+— A IR

MEFE - MR - rERMBRIERT EBITDA

AR®TR

5,377,76 RMB Thousand

For the year ended December 31, 2018
BE-Z-\F+=-A=t+— HﬁﬁE

#iF] NET PROFIT
AE®TR

3,71 7,36 RMB Thousand

For the year ended December 31, 2018
BE-Z-/\F+-HA=+—HLFE

#iFIZE NET PROFIT MARGIN

17.8%

For the year ended December 31, 2018
BE—2-N\F+-A=t+-ALEE

4,922,22 él\%ﬁ'ﬁoﬁsand 9.3%
For the year ended December 31, 2017
HE_T—t&+_A=+—HILFE
3,433,70 éhiﬁ?rioﬁsand 8.3%

For the year ended December 31, 2017
HE-_ZT—tF+-A=1— A IR

0.5
BE SR
17.3% percentage point

For the year ended December 31, 2017
BE—2 +E+-A=t—RAILEE

SiEE %) EARNINGS PER SHARE

AR

0!2 RMB

For the year ended December 31, 2018
BE-Z2-\H+=-A=+-— ami&

ARBT

0-2 RMB

For the year ended December 31, 2017
BE_T +E+-A=t—RAILEE

8.3%
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFUBRE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS EXEE
FY2018 FY2017 FY2016 FY2015 FY2014
—E-N —F—t A —F—1 —F—N

S I8 B THFE MRFE M FE B FE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥ETT ARBTET ARETT AR®BTE

i

Revenue & 20,863,557 19,799,109 17,841,887 16,864,840 14,894,003
Cost of sales SHER A (12,812,816) (12,341,484) (11,001,487) (11,048,584) (10,895,178)
Gross profit EF 8,050,741 7,457,625 6,840,400 5,816,256 3,998,825
Other income and gains EAth U A R i 25 649,339 665,982 360,210 276,762 114,093
Selling, distribution and HE - LHERITRAX

administrative expenses (3,949,250)  (3,772,007)  (3,218,966)  (2,384,851)  (1,351,390)
Finance costs A A - - (4,705) (26,736) -
Profit before tax R AT 4,750,830 4,351,600 3,976,939 3,681,431 2,761,528
Income tax expenses FrisFif X (1,033,469) (917,897) (840,146) (769,106) (684,812)
Profit for the year FREF 3,717,361 3,433,703 3,136,793 2,912,325 2,076,716
Attributable to: AT AL, -

Owners of the parent [SYNSIETZPN 3,717,361 3,433,703 3,136,793 2,912,325 2,076,716
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES mEBEREE

As at December 31,
R+=B=+-—8
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—Z-N\F ZE—+F ZT—RF T—RHF —T—HNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT AREBTT AREBTRT ARETR

Total assets BERE 18,245,489 16,326,079 16,480,385 15,797,287 6,945,699
Total liabilities BEMAEE 2,830,819 2,539,894 2,614,508 3,895,166 6,395,498
Total equity S 4ERE 15,414,670 13,786,185 13,865,877 11,902,121 550,201
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREBRESE

Dear respectful shareholders,

2018 was a year full of challenges. The Group adhered to the development
strategy of multi-brands and multi-products, making substantive progress in
the strategic layout of our three major industries, namely family consumption,
snack food and ready-to-drink beverage. Our annual results for the year, for
the very first time in our history, amounted to over RMB20 billion, which
delivered a steady growth. In light of varied stages of development and
prevailing market situations of each of our industries, the Group has adopted
targeted strategies to conform to market trends and allocate resources in a
reasonable manner. On one hand, we continue to strengthen and enhance
the market share of all key brands of the Group. On the other hand, we also
optimized the rate of return of our resources, with an increase in our return on
net assets to 24.1%. The profitability of the Group has seen a growth for the
third consecutive year, with our net profit margin reaching 17.8%. In addition,
given the complex situations in the macro-environment, the Group has
attached more importance to its capabilities to ward off risks. Through
optimizing sales structure and enhancing operating efficiency, the operating
cash inflow of and net cash held by the Group rose to RMB5 billion and
RMB10 billion respectively. With a healthier financial position, we have laid a
solid foundation for future development.

In respect of industrial development, the family consumption business has
made significant progress.

With a focus on the “Blue Ocean” markets (new markets devoid of
competition), Doubendou and Meibeichen have entered their growing stage,
representing a close-to-double digit percentage of the revenue of the Group’s
principal businesses. Doubendou has become the benchmark in the ready-
to-drink soy milk industry with its “purely natural products without additives”
feature and high-end and convenient packaging. Its brand positioning for the
family consumer market has clearly distinguished itself from other similar
products. In just two years, its brand recognition and consumer conversion
rate have reached the top of the market. Upon the adjustments made in the
first half of 2018, we have seen an apparent enhancement in the quality of
Doubendou’s distributor team and optimized channel inventory management.
These measures have served as a strong driver of the sales of Doubendou.

BHMMELRR

“T-N\FEERBIEN—F c AEERTZ M
2~ ZmBR SRS EITEREHRE - IR
RanMEIREE —REEXNEB TR LEETE
BUNER ELELE-RFEEEBB200E
TARE  BRTREER - HEZEXRNER
BEERAMIZRES TR - ARERR T AEAR
B JEETSBEABRERAR  —HHEHEER
B TREMEEHMENTIHNE  5—
FEELETERODHREX  FEERSERENE
241% c SENBMNENEBE =FRF 718
R OFMBEREFE17.8% ° BN EEMOE
BRZT AEEENSRARRES - BEE
LHERE RELENE  SENKERDR
ABINRI501ETT - HAFREIEME100ETT
MBAREINRE - REOBOHERETE TIRER
i -

EEXERITE  REHEEXDETREME
5 o

EAEMERBREEREBENESTS - BA
EEFEREAKRY 2018 FIEEEME 2K
ABITE R - SRS BREARA BRI ER
BUHANGE HENREKEN  SEKA TR
BRIDITERNFET - HHEKEHEENMIETER
HREEMTK T BEMOERE - EREMER
mERAMETEEEB XD RRBNNISE
%o BB T \FLIFORE  LHBKMD
HERRIRTT  REBEGEERGIEL - EL¥E
BN TEAENHE -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TRMEE

The Group, after making thorough preparations, launched Meibeichen bread
in the market in November 2018, venturing into the short shelf-life bread
industry. With Dali’'s systemic advantages, Meibeichen managed to swiftly
open up the market, having more than 30,000 point of sales (PoS) within only
a few months. By adopting an advanced logistic mode, Meibeichen’s
products can hit the shelves in its PoSs from the factories within only 6 hours.
The production capacity of Meibeichen is currently being unleashed as
planned with rapid and well-coordinated market expansion ongoing.
Operating indicators such as daily distribution rate and replenishment rate
were positive, suggesting a satisfactory operating efficiency. In 2019,
Meibeichen will expedite its expansion to markets nationwide and enhance its
market share. We will enhance consumer recognition and conversion rate
and promote same-store sales growth through continuous brand building.
Our product offerings will also be further broadened in order to fulfill the
diversified demands of consumers.

After a prolonged period of development, the snack food industry has
established a solid foundation, maintaining a steady growth given the already
large base of growth in 2018. Through continued innovation of product form
and taste, Copico maintained a double-digit growth in gross profit margin at
over 40%.

Given the peculiar market conditions of the ready-to-drink beverage industry,
the Group focused its resources on those product categories with
contribution to our growth. With professional product quality and precise
market positioning, Hi-Tiger maintained a growth rate higher than that of the
overall industry in a highly competitive environment, with a CAGR of 15% in
the previous three years and an ever-growing market share. Meanwhile,
against the backdrop of a sluggish market for other product categories, the
Group maintained an overall relatively higher level of profit margin in the
industry.

In respect of systemic construction, the Group started to adjust its distributor
teams and increase channel resources and the coherence of product
characteristics in the second half of 2018, thereby enhancing the
professionalism and maturity of the entire sales system. In addition, the
cultivation of high-quality distributors and key PoSs was continuously
enhanced, so that the Group’s channel and PoS resources can better serve
the expansion of new product categories. Within the internal sales system,
rationalization of the sales team was also conducted to improve
professionalism and concentration.

EEBRDNERE  ARER_F—N\Ft+—
AfLRERAR FNEFERABESX - B
HENNBRED XBRARTFETHS &
ERELEAANRARKIELME - BBRALHE
WRER - REREMR6 @/ R TRE
ERImER . BAIXBRAOERLEREE
B mSmEEREREFETT ARt X R
BEXZLBREEHRNRMNE  EEMES AR
B _E-NEF  XBREMEHRZ2ETS -
RAMSEAE  BEBENREERRIEE
ERHMEMBLE  REFAEHERE  ERR
b g EELE MR HEESRLRR

N

KHRRREEKBRNER CKAEGFENE
it 2018 FEREH ERIF TREER - 7l
Lo ve iR B EE AR T RE AN IR B TN ET 81T - B R FS
ZBBA0% WEFNEMEMHNIER -

[31::3

ISR EZARERTIHBERN TR - KEE
EERREERERMEL  -ZERBEZENER
mE AN TS EN - RN BRI RE R
FRARITEMNIZE BE=ZFEEGERXAR
16% @ MM ERERT  AREELRETS
RENBERT  AEBEBRBIHIZHER  REF
TEXFERBSHOFERKF

ERFERIE  AKEE_F—\FT+FH
YR METT T HE - RITERBERME
mEENYEE MR REHERANEE
MK © o) - HEEDEHBMER LR
BRMBRIIME  EEEORENKHERE
HHRBRFTMBNAR EANHERRE
| HEBRRGEEETTIRE  NERSEX
HEMBEE

¥R 2018 7




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TRBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue increased year-
on-year by 5.4% to RMB20.86 billion, achieving a gross profit of RMB8.05
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.0%. A gross profit margin of
38.6% was recorded, representing an increase of 0.9 percentage point as
compared to the corresponding period last year. Net profit increased year-
on-year by 8.3% to RMB3.72 billion and net profit margin amounted to
17.8%, representing a year-on-year increase of 0.5 percentage point.

Given the outstanding results performance and ample cash flow of the
Company, the Board has proposed to distribute a final dividend of HKDO0.075
per share for 2018, and the dividend payout ratio for the year is 51%.

Looking ahead in 2019, the Group is confident about our established
industrial development strategy. Apart from continuous market expansion and
further development of the family consumption industry, we will constantly
invest in our brand building. The brand image of Doubendou and Hi-Tiger will
be fully upgraded to better reflect the professionalism of these two brands,
further shaping consumers’ understanding of their internal values.

In respect of product strategy, the Group will continue with its innovation and
brands such as Doubendou, Meibeichen and Hi-Tiger will launch new
products to meet consumers’ ever-changing and diversified demands, thus
enhancing the product competitiveness of the respective brands.

During the past year, the Group has notched up remarkable development,
which are inseparable from the strong support of our business partners, the
diligence of all our Group’s staff and the confidence of consumers. On behalf
of the Board, | would like to express our gratitude to all Dali staff, business
partners and consumers. In 2019, by adhering to our original objectives and
encouraging each other on our way forward, all staff of Dali will strive to
create abundant returns for shareholders and drive the Company to achieve
greater success.

BHE_ZT—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE +4%H
ARG RS.4% EARE 20861 * BIRE
FARBB05ET  ALLIERSE.0% : EMEA
38.6% ' Lk EFRE EFAH09EE DR FHHE
LEER83%EARBIT2E L FHEBEXA
17.8% * EIERO5EE » 2 -

ERARRTNEENTRNR SR EE2S82
HERE T - N\FRRBEBFR0075EE - 2F

KB LD 51% ©

RE-FT—NF AEEHEENEFREREE
FRELD - R THRERRTS %ﬁ%f?ﬁ%%%
‘iﬁﬁiﬁTE%#Zé’l\ C B R ERE TR AR

c EAREMERN BT R EE'Jiﬁﬂi& :
LMEE}E 7 b I BRE R 1 e B L ZE B o —
ol BHBERBENEEE -

EERKRBEOE  AKBBHELN 542
R RRERESELFTNESR SRR
BEERSZRIENFR  RIESMENERERTF
5 o

BEN—F  AEERETRENER  EHA
EBHNARIXR SE2EBETNEN - BEX
HEENERENATD - AABRKRESERAE
UEMBT SEEHIBEEERTHROH
B ZE-NAFENRCATHL - EEATT
BHRBERAELENER  HBHEEERNEX
)97
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEBNWE D

INDUSTRY ENVIRONMENT

According to the Statistical Communiqué on the National Economic and
Social Development published by the National Statistics Bureau in February
2018, in 2018, China’s gross domestic product (“GDP”) exceeded RMB90
trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.6%. However, the economy
encountered a downward pressure, resulting in the slowing down of GDP
growth quarter by quarter. The market of the food and beverage industry
experienced a fluctuation and an intensified industry competition, which
required companies to have higher capabilities of innovation and
management. According to the statistics of the National Statistics Bureau, in
2018, the retailing consumer sales grew in a slower pace, but there was no
faltering in the ever-growing pace of the growth of resident consumption.
During the period between January and December 2018, the cumulative retail
sales volume of national beverage revenue reached RMB204 billion,
representing a growth rate of 9%, slightly lower than the 10.3% in 2017 (the
cumulative retail amount of beverage income during the period between
January and December 2017 was RMB227 billion).

Despite pressures and challenges, the food and beverage market in China
remained the biggest and most attractive one in the world which still had
significant market potentials in terms of per capita consumption. New
consumption trend formed developed with deepened health concept and
increased per capita disposable income. The Group believes that there will
still be enormous room of development for enterprises which have keen
sense of perception and possess strong innovation and execution capability.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW FOR 2018

In 2018, the Group continued to adhere to the development strategy of
“multi-brands and multi categories”, making progress according to our
strategic layout in the three pillar industries, namely family consumption,
snack food and beverage. “Doubendou” and “Meibeichen” have also entered
the growing stage and become one of the drivers of our results growth; the
existing brands, Hi-Tiger and Copico, have also maintain a growing pace
faster than the industry. In the meantime, the Group has also consolidated
the market share of existing products in respective markets by optimizing
product structure, improving quality and expanding and optimizing channel
structure. As for the consumption market, given the large fluctuation caused
by macro factors, the Group further raised the level of profit margin by
optimizing the decisions of resource investment and operating efficiency, and
strengthened our risk tolerance by maintaining a strong cash flow. As a result,
our overall results and profit can grow healthily.

TERE
REFEERGABR-_E—\F_AEHNEER
CEME SRR ARER —T— \FHE
BENEERE(GDP)) R AREOERET
E 12K 6.6% @ BEE TR NIFERER - GDP
BREZWRE - RMBBITENT SR BHEKE
) (TERFLENE - HRCEMAFER
BENRETESNER - BERSFTHEE - =
T-N\FHEHBERTELREFMEBE - B
BEREBEBMIARNBELERE - =
—NF—ZE+ZA2EHBHRFATERRAZEA
RE2,0401870 - RELIERO% KR T —+tF
(ZZ—+F—Z+-ANETERTEEAR
k2 2701870) 10.3% HYIE IR ©

BE ERENMKE - PEIRGRFHHISER
EERER - ZEARS|IHOTE - FEIAGRGS
HEDAFBRRNIRTZEM - BEREEDNR
AMAB A X EERAKFRRS » FHEEBE
EREE - ARERE  HREEHE - AER
REVEIFRBE NFAITRE N B E R - BRATR
WAEK -

—E— \EEEBERE

“E-N\F ARBEEFAZRE  ZRE]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

=R S

In 2018, revenue of the Group increased by 5.4% as compared with the
corresponding period last year to RMB20.86 billion, with revenue from food
and beverage segments recorded a growth of 4.5% and 6.5% respectively as
compared with the corresponding period last year. Gross profit reached
RMB8.05 billion, representing an increase of 8.0% as compared with the
corresponding period last year. Gross profit from food and beverage
segments were RMB3.76 billion and RMB4.25 billion, representing an
increase of 7.2% and 8.7 % respectively as compared with the corresponding
period last year. Overall gross profit margin of the Group was 38.6%,
increasing by 0.9 percentage point as compared with the corresponding
period last year. Gross profit margin of food business amounted to 36.1%,
increasing by 0.9 percentage point as compared with the corresponding
period last year. Gross profit margin of beverage business was 46.4%,
increasing by 0.9 percentage point as compared with the corresponding
period last year. For the year ended December 31, 2018, sales expenses
accounted for 16.2% of the revenue, decreasing by 0.2 percentage point as
compared with the corresponding period last year. Operating profit margin
improved by 1.1 percentage point to 19.7%. Net profit recorded a growth of
8.3% to RMB3.72 billion as compared with the corresponding period last
year. Net profit margin was 17.8%, increasing by 0.5 percentage point year-
on-year.

Revenue For Food Business

—E-N\F AEBRRARLERES4%EAR
#208.6 1870 R BEHKE DA DRI
EL G R 4.5% Kk 6.5% c BIHEFARES0.5(E
JL 0 FILER8.0% « R EER 5K EF S H
BAREKI7T6ETLEARE425B7T - FLLH 7
WRT7.2%M8.7% - EEBEEFEE38.6% -

LHLEFRB EAOEEL S EFRBEKT
FEAE361%  LEFRBEROIBME DI -

R EBN TR 546.4%  LLEFRBHLEFA0.9
Eass HEZT - \F+ZA=+—HMIH
EEREWRANELGA16.2% - L EEREITEE
02BN - KEFBERMAAFEESHE
19.7% ° FF BRI L IERS3% = AR 37218
JC O FFEEAE17.8% - AIGROSEE DB -

N

RmEHW

B

For the year ended December 31, 2018
BE+T-A=+—HLEE

Comparison

between

2018 2017 2018 and 2017

—N\FH

—+F

—E-NEF —E—+F LEER

RMB (million) RMB (million) % Change

AR AR
(BE) (B8L) BALEE)
Food B

Bread, Cakes and Pastries rEEhtE 6,247 6,106 2.3

Potato Puffed Food ZHEpRM 2,536 2,256 12.4

Biscuit e 1,639 1,610 1.8

Total st 10,422 9,972 4.5
Sales revenue of food segment increased by 4.5% from RMB9,972 miillion for B mIRBHE R ZH T —EtFM AR 99.72

2017 to RMB10,422 million for 2018 while sales revenue of bread, cake and
pastries, potato puffed food and biscuit increased by 2.3%, 12.4% and 1.8%
respectively as compared to 2017.

1ﬁ7zi*)3u45% —E-NFHAREKE104.221E
R ZEPCBERRBMSIEHERAR
T+ FHRIER2.83%  12.4% M 1.8% °

/
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
kk}% njL nFFH& U/f

Bread, Cakes and Pastries

Facing the ever-growing demand of consumers for bakery products in terms
of freshness, healthy ingredients, diversified flavors and brand reputation, the
Group, after conducting due research on the product and carrying out ample
tests in the market, launched the brand Meibeichen in November 2018,
entering the short shell-life bread industry. The target of Meibeichen is the
family consumers’ breakfast scenario. With advanced equipment and
production artistry and the advantage of the Group’s system in the bakery
industry, Meibeichen quickly opened the market, having more than 30,000
point of sales (PoS) within only a few months. Meibeichen adopted a highly
efficient logistics mode and its products can reach its PoS from the factories
within only 6 hours, thus achieving a better operation efficiency. In 2019,
Meibeichen will expedite its expansion in the national market with a focus on
increasing the penetration into the hypermarkets and special channels.
Continuing to establish our brand, the Group will increase consumers’
recognition and conversion rate, laying the foundation for our long-term rapid
development. The Group’s traditional bakery brand, Daliyuan, still maintained
its leading market share and stable development.

Potato Puffed Food

The Copico potato chips is a leading brand of produced potato chips in the
PRC, with good market reputation. The target consumers of puffed food are
primarily the young community of post-90s and post-00s generations, who
are increasingly pursuing personality and independence. In the fourth quarter
of 2018, the Group launched the fresh cut corrugated potato chips,
“Haiduolang”, while perfecting the product portfolio of Copico, forming the
two main product portfolios “compound potato chips + fresh cut potato
chips’. As for the flavor, to cater for different tastes in different market
consumption trends and different districts, “Haiduolang” Potato Chips
invented four flavors, including the honey barbeque flavor, the rattan pepper
bibimbap fish flavor, the spicy black duck neck flavor and the vegetable flavor,
meeting the diversified needs of young consumers.

As for brand establishment, the collaboration in marketing between Copico
and popular movies and campus social apps effectively created a youthful
image for the brand. It is thus widely known among young consumers in the
PRC.

In 2019, Copico will continue to establish its brand and hold offline promotion
activities, enhancing consumers’ understanding of our brand, rapidly
increasing the market rate of fresh cut potato chips to further consolidate the
Group’s market share in the potato puffed food markets.
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Biscuit

Haochidian Biscuit is a leading brand of domestically-made biscuits with a
mature and solid consumer base. Products such as the crispy series and the
high-fiber series are the leaders in market segments. With good quality and
taste of the products, precise pricing strategies and a well-established brand
image, biscuit products maintained a steady growth in 2018. In 2019,
Haochidian will further optimize its product structure and consolidate its
market share.

Revenue For Beverage Business

B

e Eetrr R B EH T mBET WAL ME  BR
KAZBEHHEERE - HREMWERRS
SHRRAD TSR - BEERMENA
K BENEERBARRAEINRETR -
HRERE_T— \FRETREER _F
—NEF - FREHSE-SERLCERGE  ZEDH
HINER o

LREE S TE:

For the year ended December 31

BE+-A=1t—HLEE

Comparison
between
2018 2017 2018 and 2017
—E—N\FH
—E—+F
—E-NF —E—+F LthER
RMB (million)  RMB (million) % Change
AR AR

(BETT) (B&T) ERalig L)

Beverage R
Energy Drinks hEEsR K 3,079 2,675 15.1
Plant-based and Milk Beverage TEYIE QRS ZLER 2,784 2,192 27.0
Herbal Tea TRES 2,361 2,521 (6.9)
Other Beverages H gkt 931 1,210 (23.1)
Total et 9,155 8,598 6.5

Sales revenue of beverage segments increased by 6.5% from RMB8,598
million in 2017 to RMB9,155 million in 2018, of which sales of energy drinks
and plant-based and milk beverage (including Doubendou) increased by
15.1% and 27.0% respectively, while that of herbal tea and other beverages
decreased by 6.3% and 23.1% respectively.

BRI E RS Tt FHARKS5.908
BILEMNES5%NE T — \NFHARKEIGE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Energy Drinks

According to Euromonitor, the sales volume of China’s energy drinks market
is about RMBG60 billion, which is the fastest growing soft drink subcategory.
With professional product quality and precise market positioning, Hi-Tiger
achieved a CAGR of 15% in the past three years, and continued to increase
its market share steadily in 2018. The Group continued to build Hi-Tiger into a
strong brand name, by ways including sponsoring the 2018 CFGP Formula
Grand Prix, the 2018 Tencent TGA Grand Prix, the 2018 Stankovic Cup
Intercontinental Basketball Tournament and the International Football Club’s
Super Cup 2018. The brand awareness of Hi-Tiger has been continuously
strengthened.

At the same time, in 2019, the Group will comprehensively upgrade the brand
image of Hi-Tiger to further strengthen its attributes as a type of professional
energy drinks. A new 500 ml SKU will be introduced to expand into the heavy
user market. Hi-Tiger will be the sponsor of the 2019 FIBA Basketball World
Cup and the officially designated energy drinks. Together with the Men’s
Basketball World Cup event, there will be a four-month brand promotion
cycle to foster its brand awareness in 16 cities.

Herbal Tea

In 2018, overall growth of the herbal tea market was sluggish. To cope with
market trends, the Group stabilized its profit margin by actively controlling
marketing expenses while maintaining its market share.

In 2019, leveraging on its national scale and multi-industry strength, the
Group exerts the synergistic effect with soy milk products and strengthen the
development of catering channels. At the same time, through the
improvement of our distribution system, the market penetration rate in key
areas is expected to improve.
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Plant-based and Milk Beverage

Since its introduction into the market, Doubendou soy milk products have
become the industry benchmark with its “purely natural products without
additives” feature and high-end and convenient packaging. Doubendou has
established a product matrix of varieties in flavors and packaging. In just two
years, brand recognition and consumer conversion rate have reached the top
of the market, and its brand positioning for the household consumer market
has clearly distinguished itself from other similar products. The first-mover
advantage has been established in the ready-to-drink pure soy milk category.
In the first half of 2018, the Group adjusted the Doubendou distributor team
and introduced a large number of new distributors with relevant industry
experience to optimize channel inventory management. These measures have
greatly improved the sales of Doubendou, and laid a solid foundation for the
following acceleration of our industry development. In the fourth quarter of
2018, the Group also launched the Weizhen series of soy milk in collaboration
with Meibeichen through a cost-effective and value-driven strategy to further
cultivate the habits of consuming ready-to-drink packaged soy milk.
Doubendou has become an important growth engine for the Group’s
expansion in the household consumer’s goods industry.

In 2019, Doubendou will strengthen its high-tech and high-nutrition feature in
brand building, and consolidate user conversion rates and customer loyalty
through comprehensive consumer interactions. At the same time, considering
the different consumption habits in different regions, we will develop sales
channels in a targeted manner to increase market penetration.

Due to the saturation of the overall market and extreme homogenization of
competition, the sales of peanut milk in 2018 decreased compared with last
year. While maintaining the profit margin of peanut milk, the Group has gained
breakthroughs regarding production orientation through Doubendou and
significantly increased the sales revenue and profit level of the plant-based
protein sector.

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit Margin

The principal cost of sales of the Group consist of raw material costs (such as
sugar, palm oil and flour), packaging materials costs (such as chips,
corrugated paper, etc.), manufacturing costs (such as depreciation,
amortization and utilities), wages and salaries, and surcharges. Among them,
the raw material costs represented 51.4% of total cost of sales and the
packaging material costs represented 26.3% of total cost of sales. In 2018,
the market price of raw material decreased year-on-year, while market prices
for packaging materials exhibited an upward trend, among which, the cost of
sugar and palm oil decreased, but the price of eggs and chips increased. At
the same time, labor costs, depreciation and utilities have increased year-on-
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Leveraging on the Group’s comprehensive scale advantage and strong
financial strength, we are able to enjoy favorable purchase prices to control
raw material procurement costs; the Group directly produces packaging
materials and whole potato powder to effectively control related production
costs. We believe that even if the price of the raw materials fluctuates in the
future, the Group can still maintain a stable profit margin by optimizing sales
channels, adjusting product mix and launching high profit margin products,
with our superior cost control capabilities.

In 2018, the Group’s gross profit margin increased by 0.9 percentage point
to 38.6%, mainly driven by the optimization of the food and beverage product
miX, the price increase of some products and the decrease in raw material
prices. The gross profit margin of the food business increased by 0.9
percentage point year-on-year to 36.1%, and the gross profit margin of the
beverage business increased by 0.9 percentage point year-on-year to 46.4%.

The following table sets forth the Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin
by segments for the years indicated:

BERAEENGEERBEELNERNMBE
71 PR SREENREBER  KmEHR
MEHRBARA  AEEEREEREMBNER
22 MAREFEBEEERAN - KPR
& BMERRRM B THIHERKE - AEB{RA
AR S AR AR ESEE S - BBBEHEER
BRABREMEBAELSEMNNERFHERE
FEERERFRENFEEX -

ZTE-N\F - AEEEFNEEBROIEFTIHE
38.6%  TEXRMEHHEREESEL D
ERRESHUAREMEHER TRSEH - Hh R
MEBEMNERLREACIEEDEHZE36.1%
SR EB TR EFLIRA0IME D EE46.4% °

TRBIIFTEERS BEHOEEBENRE
R -

For the year ended December 31,

HEE+-A=1+—-HLEE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —F 5

% of Total Gross Profit % of Total ~ Gross Profit
Gross Profit Gross Profit Margin ~ Gross Profit ~ Gross Profit Margin
EF HBEF ER= E7 HHEERN Ef=

(RMB in (RMB in
million) % million) %

(AR® (AR
HER) BAkL % BET) Bat %
Food products RMEM 3,758 46.7 36.1 3,506 47.0 35.2
Beverages products FOEHE @ 4,251 52.8 46.4 3,910 52.4 455
Others Hth 42 0.5 3.2 42 0.6 3.4
Total oy 8,051 100.0 38.6 7,458 100.0 37.7

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Sales and Distribution Expenses

Sales and distribution expenses of the Group increased by 4.0% from
RMB3,248 million in 2017 to RMB3,377 million in 2018. Such expenses as a
percentage of revenue decreased slightly from 16.4% in 2017 to 16.2% in
2018. The decrease was mainly attributable to the effective cost control of the
Company and the pragmatic advertising strategy. The investment in
advertising in 2018 was lower than that in 2017.
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by 9.4% from RMB524
million in 2017 to RMB573 million in 2018. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase of wage costs caused by rising average
remuneration.

Cash and borrowings

The Group mesets its liquidity needs mainly through cash flow generated from
operation and proceeds from the listing. The total value of the Group’s
pledged deposits, cash and bank deposits increased from RMB8,146 million
as at December 31, 2017 to RMB10,091 million as at December 31, 2018.
The increase was mainly due to improved efficiency of the Company’s liquidity
management and control in 2018 and the increase of operating cash flow by
108.1% year-on-year.

During the year ended and as at December 31, 2018, the Group did not have
any borrowings.

As at December 31, 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio was 15.5%. The gearing
ratio is the total liabilities divided by equity plus total liabilities.

Inventories

The Group’s inventories decreased by 14.6% from RMB1,333 million as at
December 31, 2017 to RMB1,138 million as at December 31, 2018. It is
mainly due to the Group’s further strengthening of inventory management
regarding finished products and effective control of capital retention on
inventory. The inventory turnover days decreased from 35.6 days in 2017 to
34.7 days in 2018.

Trade Receivables

The Group’s trade receivables decreased by 34.1% from RMB1,085 million
as at December 31, 2017 to RMB715 million as at December 31, 2018,
primarily due to the strengthened management of receivables according to
credit policy granted to each distributor and the accelerated collection of
trade receivables at the end of the year. The trade receivables turnover days
increased from 12.6 days in 2017 to 15.5 days in 2018.
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Trade and Bills Payables

The Group’s trade and bills payables increased slightly by 6.0% from
RMB889 million as at December 31, 2017 to RMB942 million as at December
31, 2018, mainly attributable to fact that the credit policies granted by each of
the suppliers to the Group did not have any change in 2018. The trade and
bills payables turnover days decreased from 28.0 days in 2017 to 25.7 days
in 2018.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China and as such nearly all
transactions are conducted in RMB. As nearly all of the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China were denominated in
RMB, the subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China were not subject to
significant foreign currency risk. As at December 31, 2018, the Group’s
assets and liabilities denominated in HKD were mainly held by the Company
and certain subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland China and had
currencies other than RMB as their functional currencies.

The Company and these subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland China
also held bank balances denominated in RMB, from which foreign currency
exposures arise. The Group has not undertaken any hedging activities.

Contingent Liabilities

As at December 31, 2018, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

Asset Pledge

As at December 31, 2018, the Group’s bills payable and letter of credit were
secured by pledging its short-term deposits in amount of RMB13 million.

Available-for-Sale Investments

As at December 31, 2018, the Group did not hold any wealth management
products that act as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. This
was primarily because the wealth management products that the Group
purchased at the end of 2017 have already been redeemed on their maturities
and were used in capital injection to subsidiaries and daily operations. For the
year ended December 31, 2018, the gain in respect of the Group’s financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which have been redeemed on their
maturities amounted to RMB7 million.
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Use of Proceeds from the Listing

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on November 20, 2015 with net proceeds from the global offering
of approximately HKD8,665 million (after deduction of underwriting fees and
commissions and estimated expenses payable in connection with the global
offering). According to the intended use as set out in “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the prospectus published on November 10, 2015 (the
“Prospectus”), the amount utilised as at December 31, 2018 was as follows:

Use of Proceeds from the Listing (As at December 31, 2018)
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Unit: HKD million B BEAT
No. Percentage Available Utilised  Unutilised
F%  ltems BH fhtE AEA ZAFEEA KRENA
1 Development, introduction and ~ BI% - #H REREHER

promotion of new products 20% 1,733 840 893
2 Expansion and upgrade of B MR ERE N

production facility and HEERG

manufacturing network 20% 1,733 1,733 -
3 Enhancing presence in sales  $2FHEE RBHMAL T

channels and promoting HERE

brands 20% 1,733 1,733 -
4 Potential acquisitions and BENEE R EBAE

business cooperation 30% 2,600 - 2,600
5 Working capital and other BEESREM—K

general corporate purposes NGIgER S 10% 866 866 -

Total ast 8,665 5,172 3,493

The proceeds were used and are proposed to be used as and when

appropriate based on the Group’s business needs according to the intentions
previously disclosed in the Prospectus.
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Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

The Group had capital expenditures of RMB1,335 million in 2018, primarily
incurred from (i) the construction of production facilities for medium and short
shelf-life bread; (i) the construction of Doubendou’s production line; (jii) the
construction of production base in Shenyang; (iv) the construction of fresh-
cut potato chips production line; (v) the upgrade of beverage production lines.

As at December 31, 2018, the Group’s capital commitments relating to
property, plant and equipment were RMB215 million, which were primarily
used for the construction of production lines for medium and short shelf-life
food, the construction of production base in Shenyang and the upgrade of
beverage production facilities.

Improvement of Product Quality and Operational Efficiency

In 2018, the Group, as always, acted on the principle of “quality first” and
further improved the quality level of the products by optimizing production
processes and speeding up inventory circulation. By upgrading and improving
production equipment and facilities, the Group ensured food safety. Through
strict process control, the food safety system was implemented in each work
stage, which fundamentally eliminated the risk of product quality. Aside from
the various existing certifications in respect of quality, food safety,
environment management, hazard analysis and key controlling point systems
such as ISO9001, 1S022000, 1ISO14001 and HACCP, the Group passed the
certification for organic soya milk and the certification issued by the China
National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS).

Human Resources and Staff Remuneration

The Group always believes that talent is the core competitiveness of
enterprises and regards employees as important strategic resources for
corporate development. It has made active efforts in establishing a sound
talent selection and training mechanism to improve the overall
competitiveness of employees and their sense of belonging to the Group. In
2018, the Group continued to introduce a large number of professional high-
end talents, and actively identified talents from the existing employees and
jointly established a training mechanism with key universities and colleges in
China on a long- term basis. The Group established a tutor management
system and a training management system and a learning and development
model such as visiting external model enterprises, formed a talent selection
and promotion mechanism for competition for posts and performance
appraisal, maintained the core competitiveness of corporate talents, and
cultivated an experienced, stable and reliable management team. Meanwhile,
the Group continued to optimize and upgrade our management structure,
promote fine management, upgrade information management and strengthen
the headquarters’ control of the market, laying a solid foundation for the
Group’s sustainable development.
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As at December 31, 2018, the Group had a total of 37,313 employees (as at
December 31, 2017: 35,985 employees). The Group’s employees are
remunerated with reference to their positions, performance, experience and
prevailing salary trends in the market. In addition to basic salaries, the
Company provides various staff benefits to its employees. For the year ended
December 31, 2018, the total employee benefits expenses (including
Directors’ remuneration) were RMB2,170 million (for the year ended
December 31, 2017: RMB1,969 million), which was primarily attributable to
the Group’s effort in continuously increasing the average remuneration of
employees and the increase in the number of employees. The increase in the
number of the Group’s employees was primarily attributable to the
development of short shelf-life bread industry and the increase in the sales of
food segment and production staff.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward in 2019, facing opportunities and challenges of the market,
the Group will continue to adhere to creation of quality with heart and the
multi-brands and multi-categories development strategy for ongoing
innovation and expansion.

In respect of industries, the Group will continue to further develop the family
consumption industry and persistently explore the soy milk and short shelf-life
bread market, with a view to fostering an engine for steady growth of our
revenue and profit. For our established brands, the Group will focus on key
brands in response to market trends to ensure an optimal output with its
injection of resources.

In respect of channels, the Group will focus on strengthening expansion of
relevant channels and retailers in a targeted manner according to the
spending patterns of various regional markets and taking into account the
different phases of industrial development. With the launch of new products,
the Group will enhance the cultivation of high quality distributors and retailers
s0 as to continuously increase the Group’s market coverage and penetration
rate and constantly optimise its operational efficiency.

The Group will adhere to prudent financial management policies, maintain
ample cash flow and a sound financial position and enhance its resilience in
the face of risks. While strengthening own growth, the Group will continue to
focus on opportunities for mergers and acquisitions and external cooperation.

In 2019, the Group will keep our faith and work hard to create rich returns for
our shareholders, driving our Company to greater success.
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The Board is pleased to present the report of the Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group is a
leading branded food and beverage company in China with a diversified multi-
brand product portfolio focusing on high-growth product categories. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of food and
beverage in China. The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on November 20, 2015.

Segment analysis of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018 is set
out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. A list of the Company’s
subsidiaries, together with their places and dates of incorporation, types of
legal entity, principal activities and particulars of their issued shares/registered
share capital, is set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

A review of the business of the Group during the year and its future
development, and an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators as required under Schedule 5 of
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) are set out in
the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 8 and the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 21 of this annual report which
constitute part of this report of the Directors.

There is no significant subsequent event undertaken by the Company or by
the Group after December 31, 2018.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to the operational risk in relation to each business
division of the Group. With the growth and expansion of our operations, the
potential risks to our business increase as well. In order to identify, assess
and control the risks that may create impediments to our success, we have
implemented a risk management system that covers each material aspect of
our operations, including financial security, production, logistics, technology
and compliance. As our risk management is a systematic project, each of our
departments is responsible for identifying and evaluating the risks relating to
its area of operations. Our audit committee is responsible for overseeing and
assessing our risk management policy and they supervise the performance of
our risk management system.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 144 to 145.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On November 19, 2018, the Company adopted a dividend policy for the
declaration, payment or distribution of its net profit to shareholders of the
Company as dividends. According to the dividend policy, in recommending or
declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves for
meeting its working capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value. The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the Articles of the
Association of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations and the
factors set out below.

The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the Company
and its subsidiaries when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

° financial result;

° cash flow conditions;

° business conditions and strategies;

° future operations and earnings

° capital requirements and expenditure plans;

° interests of shareholders;
° potential investment, mergers and acquisitions;
° any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

° any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the
conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may be proposed and/or
declared by the Board for a financial year or period as follows:

o interim dividend;

o final dividend;

° special dividend; and

° any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to shareholders’ approval.
Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. The Board will review
the dividend policy as appropriate from time to time.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HKDO0.075
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.064) per ordinary share for the year ended
December 31, 2018 (the “2018 Final Dividend”), representing a total
payment of approximately HKD1,027,059,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB877,447,000). The payment of the 2018 Final Dividend is subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM”) to be held on May 29, 2019.

Upon Shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the AGM, the 2018 Final
Dividend is expected to be paid on July 9, 2019 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on June 4, 2019.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years, as set out on page 5 of this annual report, is extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements and the Prospectus.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2018 are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share premium and other
reserves. As at December 31, 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to RMB1,502 million (2017: RMB3,581 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year ended December 31, 2018 are set out in Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on November 20, 2015. The net proceeds from the Listing were
approximately HKD8,665 million (after deduction of underwriting fees and
commissions and estimated expenses payable by the Company in connection
with the global offering).

For details, please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Use of Proceeds from the Listing” on page 19 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Xu Shihui (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang
Ms. Xu Yangyang

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Xu Biying
Ms. Hu Xiaoling

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan
Mr. Liu Xiaobin
Dr. Lin Zhijun

Each of Mr. Xu Shihui, Mr. Zhuang Weigiang, Ms. Xu Yangyang, Ms. Xu
Biying, Ms. Hu Xiaoling, Mr. Cheng Hanchuan, Mr. Liu Xiaobin and Dr. Lin
Zhijun shall retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming AGM pursuant
to article 16.18 of the Articles of Association or the Listing Rules and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below and Note 31 “Related Party Transactions” to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of 2018 or at any time during 2018.

None of the Directors is interested in any businesses apart from the Group’s
business which competes or is likely to compete with the Group’s business,
either directly or indirectly or would otherwise require disclosure under Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions for the year as disclosed in Notes 31(a)(i) and
31(a)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined under the Listing Rules but are exempt
from the reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) (a). Details of
such continuing connected transactions are set out in the section headed
“Connected Transactions — Continuing Connected Transactions — Exempt
Continuing Connected Transactions — Products and Services Mutual
Provision Framework Agreement” in the Prospectus.

The related party transaction for the year as disclosed in Note 31(a)(i) to the
consolidated financial statements constitutes a continuing connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules which is subject to the
reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but is exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of this related party transaction.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Property and Land Leasing Agreement

Except for the continuing connected transactions of the Group which are
exempt from the reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) (a), the
Company and Fujian Dali Foods Group Co., Ltd. ({2 E IR M EE AR A R)
(“Fujian Dali”) entered into a property and land leasing agreement (the “Property
and Land Leasing Agreement”) on December 1, 2017. The transaction under
the Property and Land Leasing Agreement is made in the ordinary and usual
course of business and on normal commercial terms, the highest applicable
percentage ratio calculated for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
were more than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis. Fujian Dali is owned
as to 100% by Mr. Xu Shihui, Ms. Chen Liling and Ms. Xu Yangyang, who are
the controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
and, in the case of Mr. Xu Shihui and Ms. Xu Yangyang, executive directors of
the Company. The Group had been using certain properties and land owned by
Fujian Dali for general business and ancillary purposes. The Property and Land
Leasing Agreement was entered into in order to avoid unnecessary disruptions
to our business caused by the relocation and enable us to ensure continuity of
the operation of the Group.

Pursuant to the Property and Land Leasing Agreement, the Company agreed
to lease the relevant properties and land in the PRC from Fujian Dali for a
term of three years from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2020 on the
following principal terms:

(@) the properties and land that were leased to us consist of (i) an office
building located at Zishan, Linkou, Hui’an, Fujian province and
occupying a total gross floor area of approximately 27,578.25 sg.m.,
and (i) buildings used for manufacturing workshop, warehouse and
workers’ dormitory as well as for other ancillary purposes located at
Zishan, Linkou, Hui’an, Fujian province and occupying a total gross
floor area of approximately 240,824.35 sq.m.;

(o)  the monthly rental prices in respect of the office building and other
properties for each of the three years ending December 31, 2020 are
RMB10.7 per sg.m. and RMB5.35 per sg.m., respectively;

(c)  the rental price shall be reviewed and adjusted from the second year of
the duration of the Property and Land Leasing Agreement by reference
to the GDP growth for the previous year published by the National
Bureau of Statistics of the PRC but in any event such increase in the
rental price shall not exceed the relevant GDP growth rate;
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(d)  the Company shall pay the rental to Fujian Dali on a quarterly basis on
or before the 25th day of the last month of the relevant quarter of the
year; and

(e) the Company shall be responsible for all utility charges and other
miscellaneous expenses incurred in using the relevant properties and
land during the term of the lease, except for national administration fee
and property tax that shall be borne by each party in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations.

The Company paid Fujian Dali rental expenses in an aggregate amount of
RMB18,232,000 pursuant to the terms of the Property and Land Leasing
Agreement for the year ended December 31, 2018. We have set annual caps
for the aggregate rental expenses payable under the Property and Land
Leasing Agreement of RMB19,000,000, RMB20,000,000 and
RMB21,000,000 for each of the three years ending 2020.

Opinion from the Independent Non-executive Directors and Auditors on
the Continuing Connected Transaction

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s non-exempt
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference
to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above and confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe the continuing connected
transactions abovementioned:

(@  have not been approved by the Board;
(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of goods or

services by the Group;

(c)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d)  have exceeded the annual cap.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
these transactions and confirmed that the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(@  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(o)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as
a whole.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the requirements
of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of all of its continuing
connected transactions.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at December 31, 2018, the interests of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

. Interest in shares or underlying shares of the Company
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Mr. Xu Shihui® Interest in controlled corporation 11,640,000,000 85%
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Il. Interest in shares of associated corporations of the

I RAEQEEBEER S HNEDS

Company
Number of
shares in the Approximate
Name of associated associated percentage of

Name of Directors corporation Capacity/Nature of interest corporation interest

R EBE R RAEQ R R
s HEEE AR B RnME RH AR BAED
Mr. Xu Shihui® Divine Foods Limited  Interest in controlled corporation 50 50%
FTHESB SO (“Divine Foods”) REEHEE N R
Notes: B E

(1) Divine Foods is 50%, 10% and 40% legally owned by Divine Foods-1, Divine
Foods-2 and Divine Foods-3 respectively. Divine Foods-1 is 98% and 2%
legally owned by Mr. Xu Shihui and Hi-Tiger Limited respectively. Divine
Foods-2 and Divine Foods-3 are in turn wholly-owned by Hi-Tiger Limited. Hi-
Tiger Limited is an investment holding company incorporated in the BVI wholly-
owned by the Trustee, and Hi-Tiger Limited holds 2%, 100% and 100%
shareholdings in Divine Foods-1, Divine Foods-2, is Divine Foods-3
respectively. The Trustee is a company incorporated in the BVI, is the trustee of
the Xu’s Family Trust, which is a discretionary trust established by Ms. Chen
Liling for which the Trustee acts as the trustee and Ms. Chen Liling, Mr. Xu
Shihui and Ms. Xu Yangyang are the beneficiaries of the trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2018, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any
interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which were required to be notified under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(1) Divine Foods | Divine Foods-1 * Divine
Foods-2 K Divine Foods-3% 3| & % # A&
50% * 10% [ 40% ° Divine Foods-1/ #F t
8 5 4 K2 Hi-Tiger Limited 2 Bl &% & 98%
2% T Divine Foods—2 } Divine Foods-3
£A Hi-Tiger Limited 2 & %74 ° Hi-Tiger Limited
RRREB R LB S MR IR E R
nal BXFEAZEEE © Hi-Tiger Limited
4> 7|4 & Divine Foods-1 * Divine Foods—2 &
Divine Foods-3 2% * 100% & 100% % % &
@ XAAR—RREBERELHE MK L
AR BRARFIEETLNITEA - LAK
BERELLTHRIMBEET  BXTARER
A MRER XL STHEEERFTGS
ZTAREFRZRA °

B EXPREEN  RZB-N\F+_A=+—
B BEARREFRIZTHRABRHEFIER
BEARRBREMEBEE(EERBFMABK
125XV ED) BLAD  ARRERX D SRE S E M4 )2
KR MARBESMPEROIFEXVEET RS
7 BRE LB A AR BARE T RIZA M & AR A KB
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at December 31, 2018, the interests or short positions of the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

TERRNERRAR

RoB-AF+=A=+—R THAL(ER
AIE S RBHTHA BRI KR TR X8
B o A s R - RIS S B 1

P25 336 {5

PR A KGR FT AL R

Approximate
percentage of

Number of Shares interest in
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest (long positions) the Company
RAQBRRE
BRR®A B RemtE RBEE (FF8) BAED
Divine Foods Beneficial owner 11,640,000,000 85%
EnEAA
Divine Foods-1 Limited™ Interest in controlled corporation 11,640,000,000 85%
(“Divine Foods-1”) AT HIEE R =
Divine Foods-2 Limited™ Deemed interest as an associate of 11,640,000,000 85%
(“Divine Foods-2") a substantial shareholder
ER—2EXERRHEANRIEER
Divine Foods-3 Limited™ Interest in controlled corporation 11,640,000,000 85%
(“Divine Foods-3") RAEHDEEE
Ms. Chen Liling™®© Interest of spouse 11,640,000,000 85%
FRAEF K+ 0 e (B 2
Cantrust (Far East) Limited Trustee; Interest in controlled corporation 11,640,000,000 85%
(“Trustee”)"
Cantrust (Far East) Limited FEEA R EEERES
([ZFFEADO
Notes: B3
(1) Divine Foods is 50%, 10% and 40% legally owned by Divine Foods-1, Divine Foods-2 (1) Divine Foods Fi Divine Foods—1 * Divine Foods-2 &
and Divine Foods-3 respectively. Divine Foods-1 is 98% and 2% legally owned by Mr. Divine Foods-3 % Al & /& # 5 50% ~ 10% & 40% ©
Xu Shihui and Hi-Tiger Limited respectively. Divine Foods-2 and Divine Foods-3 are in Divine Foods—1 F #F it #% 5 4 % Hi-Tiger Limited %33
turn wholly-owned by Hi-Tiger Limited. Hi-Tiger Limited is an investment holding & Uk ¥ B 98% K 2% o i Divine Foods-2 & Divine
company incorporated in the BVI wholly-owned by the Trustee, and Hi-Tiger Limited Foods-3 f Hi-Tiger Limited® & ## 74 ° Hi-Tiger
holds 2%, 100% and 100% shareholdings in Divine Foods-1, Divine Foods-2, is Divine Limited /3 — 5K 74 28 8 B 2 ¥ B 5 Ak S 8948 B 12 AR
Foods-3 respectively. The Trustee is a company incorporated in the BV, is the trustee NAEl BARFEAZEES © Hi-Tiger Limited 2 Bl 15
of the Xu’s Family Trust, which is a discretionary trust established by Ms. Chen Liling & Divine Foods—1  Divine Foods-2 } Divine Foods-3
for which the Trustee acts as the trustee and Ms. Chen Liling, Mr. Xu Shihui and Ms. H)2% « 100% X 100% 2R - FFEAB— RPN
Xu Yangyang are the beneficiaries of the trust. HEBEZEESEMAZOHAR - AFFRREETDN
A UARBRZTRIHNBEET  AXT
ABEEZFTA - MRBR L FFtELE RS
S LRIAERXEA ©
©) Mr. Xu Shihui and Ms. Chen Liling are spouses. Accordingly each of Mr. Xu Shihuiand ~ (2) B ERRBR LT ARG - Bt - EHFK

Ms. Chen Liling is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all shares and underlying
shares in which their spousal counterpart is interested in for the purpose of the SFO.

HERAIME  FHBEEERRER LT EB IR
R E R B 77 WA HE R ) PTR BD RARRIAR )
THA RS
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year of 2018.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on August 25, 2015 to enable the Company to grant share options
to Qualified Participant (as defined below) as incentive for their commitment
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of
the Shareholders, and to maintain or attract business relationship with the
Qualified Participant whose contributions are or may be beneficial to the
growth of the Group.

Qualified Participant

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of Shares as the Board may determine to:

(@  any executive Director, or employee (whether full time or part time) of
the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which the Company or
any subsidiary holds any equity interest;

(b)  any non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which the
Company or any subsidiary holds any equity interest;

(c) any customer, business or joint venture partner, advisor, consultant,
contractor, supplier, agent or service provider of the Company, any
subsidiary or any entity in which the Company or any subsidiary holds
any equity interest who is an individual; or

(d)y any full-time employee of any customer, business or joint venture
partner, advisor, consultant, contractor, supplier, agent, customer or
service provider of the Company or any subsidiary or an entity in which
the Company or any subsidiary holds any equity interest, who the
Board considers, in its sole discretion, has contributed or will contribute
to the Company or any subsidiary or any entity in which the Company
or any subsidiary holds any equity interest (collectively, the “Qualified
Participant”).
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Maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed the number of Shares that shall
represent 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date
and the date of this annual report (such total number of Shares being
13,694,117,500 Shares) (the “Scheme Mandate”, being 1,369,411,750
Shares), excluding for this purpose options which have lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each Qualified Participant

Unless approved by Shareholders in general meeting in the manner
prescribed in the Listing Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would result in the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his options
(including both exercised and outstanding options) during any 12 month
period exceeding 1% of the total Shares then in issue.

Grant of options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective
associates under the Share Option Scheme must be approved by all the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is also a grantee of the options).

Any grant of options to a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) must be approved by the Shareholders in general meeting if the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and proposed to be granted to him (whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) in the 12 month period up to and including the proposed date of
grant:

(i) would represent in aggregate more than 0.1% of the Shares then in
issue; and

(i)  would have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
Shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HKD5,000,000 (or such
other amount as shall be permissible under the Listing Rules from time
to time).

The grant of options shall be subject to approval by Shareholders in the
General Meeting.
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Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to a Qualified Participant by
written offer letter in such form as the Board may from time to time determine,
requiring the Qualified Participant to undertake to hold the option on the
terms on which it is to be granted and to be bound by the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme. The offer shall remain open for such period (not
exceeding 30 days, inclusive of, and from, the date of offer) as the Board may
determine and notify to the Quialified Participant. There is no minimum period
for which any option must be held before it can exercised unless the Board
otherwise determined and stated in the offer letter of the grant of options.

An option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have taken effect
when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by
the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HKD1 by
way of consideration for the grant of the option shall have been received by
the Company on or before the last day for acceptance as set out in the offer
letter. The remittance is not in any circumstances refundable. Once accepted,
the option is considered to be granted as from the date on which it was
offered to the relevant Qualified Participant. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years from the
offer date.

Subscription Price
The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Board but in any

event shall be at least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the date of offer;

(i)  the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by the
Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the date of adoption.

Since the listing of the Company, no share option had been granted under
the Share Option Scheme.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Xu Shihui, Ms. Chen Liling, Ms. Xu Yangyang, Divine Foods, Divine
Foods-1, Divine Foods-2 and Divine Foods-3 (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-competition in favor of the
Company dated August 25, 2015 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) as set
out in section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling Shareholders —
Non-Competition Undertaking” under the Prospectus. The independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed and the Controlling Shareholders had
confirmed their compliance with all the undertakings provided under the Deed
of Non-Competition as of March 26, 2019. The independent non-executive
Directors had reviewed the compliance of the Controlling Shareholders with
the Deed of Non-Competition and there are no matters required to be
deliberated by them in relation to the compliance with and enforcement of the
Deed of Non-Competition and considered that the terms of the Deed of Non-
Competition have been complied with by the Controlling Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2018, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

MINIMUM PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float as approved by the
Stock Exchange during the year ended December 31, 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the laws of the Cayman
Islands (place of incorporation of the Company) or under the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”) which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Board considered that during the year ended December 31, 2018,
the Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code,
save and except for code provision A.2.1, details of which are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report”.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior management (other
than the Directors) by bands for the year ended December 31, 2018 is set

= AR EE E 1

SREEEXKB (BEERIINRBE_T—-N\F
TZA=1T - HLFERFMSREDOFEH

out below: B S NT :

Number of

Individuals
Remuneration bands FER AE
HKD1 to HKD500,000 178702 500,0007%8 7T 0
HKD500,001 to HKD1,000,000 500,001 7T % 1,000,000 % 7T 2
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 #7L% 1,500,000 % 7T 1
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 #7T % 2,000,000 % 7T 1
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T £ 2,500,000 7 7T 0
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7T 2 3,000,000 7 7T 0
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 % 7T 2 3,500,000 7 7T 1

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended
December 31, 2018 are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended to the
Board by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market trends.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was
3.8% by value of the Group’s total goods sales during the year ended
December 31, 2018, with the largest customer accounting for 1.1%. The five
largest suppliers of the Group comprised 7.8% by value of the Group’s total
purchases during the year, with the largest supplier accounting for 2.0%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or a Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year ended
December 31, 2018 was the Company or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

It is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting a sustainable and
environmental friendly environment, we strive to minimise our environmental
impact by saving electricity and to build our corporation in a sustainable way.

Fujian Dali has undergone a series of effective energy-saving and pollutant-
reducing measures such as conserving water and electricity, reducing the
creation and emission of pollutants during the production process and
optimizing production lines. Fujian Dali is accredited as an Enterprise of Clean
Production (B2EE M%) by the Quanzhou Environmental Protection
Bureau in October 2015.

Additionally, we have adopted a set of emergency planning, response and
control procedures as counter-measures for unexpected environmental
pollution accidents to minimise our impact on the environment and the
adverse effect on our business. We incurred RMB14.4 million (2017: RMB6.8
million) in environmental compliance costs for the year ended December 31,
2018.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in China while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
operations shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in China and Hong
Kong. During the year ended December 31, 2018 and up to the date of this
report, we have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in China
and Hong Kong in all material respects.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
Relationship with our distributors

Consistent with market practice in our industry, the customers of the Group
are primarily distributors. This network penetrates a wide range of points-of-
sale, enabling us to sell products at all levels of the market, from provinces to
counties, villages and towns throughout China. As at December 31, 2018, we
had more than 5,228 distributors covering all provinces, cities and most of
the county-level divisions in China, and had over 11,800 dedicated sales
personnel to maintain and support approximately 2 million points-of-sale.

1. Standard for selecting distributors

We select our distributors in each region based on factors including
their business qualifications, marketing capabilities, reputation, breadth
and quality of sales network, number of personnel, and logistics and
transport capabilities.

2. Comprehensive support

In order to enhance our relationship with distributors and to provide
adequate support to the distributors in meeting sales targets, the
Group provides comprehensive support to its distributors. The Group
develops and executes strategic and tactical sales plans with the
distributors, provides support and implements incentive measures to
promote sales.

Further, our sales team provides comprehensive support coverage in
various counties and cities. They contact and cooperate with local
distributors closely to enhance and maintain the relationship with the
distributors. A sustainable relationship with our distributors also helped
to expand the network of points-of-sales in China and the number of
products being sold in different outlets.
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3. Inventory management

We closely monitor the distributors’ inventory policies and movement
and ensure their policies and practices are in compliance with the
agreed requirements. The requirements include (a) the maintenance of
an adequate inventory level that equals to the estimated monthly sales
volume; (b) first-in-first-out policy; (c) evaluation of inventory based on
its aging and expiration; (d) age of inventory shall be kept within one
third of the shelf life; (e) if the age of inventory exceeds one third of the
shelf life, sales personnel shall cooperate with the distributors to carry
out sales plan to promote the sales of the specific products; and (f) if
age of inventory exceeds half of the shelf life, it must be reported to the
headquarters and the sales personnel shall cooperate with distributors
to undergo promotions in specialty channels to promote sales of the
specific products. We also conduct periodic stock taking and our sales
representative, sales manager and region manager undertake specific
responsibilities in respect of stock taking with the distributors.

Maintaining effective management of the sales team and distribution
network is crucial to sustainable development of the Company. We
established systems to enhance the management of personnel on the
basis of relationship development, and placed the development of
effective management as the core policy of the Company. With the
combined effect of systematic management and personalized
management, we have improved the cohesion and the capability of the
Company through systematic division of labor and effective
cooperation.

Relationship with our suppliers

We generally centralise the procurement of packaging materials and the raw
materials used in the production of our food and beverage products to take
advantage of economies of scale and to increase our bargaining power with
suppliers. We believe that our centralized procurement system enables us to
obtain more competitive prices and avoid regional or other price variation.
Our raw materials are generally available from a number of domestic
suppliers, and we normally have various source of supply for each type of raw
materials to reduce our dependency on a single supplier. Our suppliers grant
us payment terms that vary depending on a number of factors including our
relationship with the suppliers and the size of the transactions.
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We uphold the principle of equality and cooperation for mutual benefit and
maintain a sustainable and long-term relationship with various suppliers. To
ensure the quality of the procurement, we typically work with large reputable
domestic suppliers to secure the key raw materials used in our production
process, based on criteria like product quality, reputation, scale of production,
price and ability to meet our delivery schedule. Further, we established and
maintained a mechanism and database of suppliers to perform a detailed
evaluation and audit on the suppliers, which takes into account of
comprehensive indicators like food safety, quality control, financial strength,
technology research and development ability, environmental protection and
reputation in the industry. These indicators reflect the criteria we look for in
our suppliers under the long term development goal of the Company. We also
require the suppliers to comply with the commercial code of conduct of the
Group.

Relationship with our employees

We embrace our employees as the most valuable assets of the Group, the
objective of the Group’s human resources management is to reward and
recognise outstanding employees by providing competitive remuneration
packages and implementing a sound performance appraisal system with
appropriate incentives, and to promote career development and progression
within the Group by providing adequate training and opportunities.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
have been audited by Ermst & Young, who will retire at the conclusion of the
AGM and offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Shihui
Chairman

Hong Kong
March 26, 2019
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Xu Shihui (3t 1)

Chairman, executive Director and chief executive officer

Mr. Xu Shihui (FFtt#8), aged 61, is the founder of the Group, Chairman,
executive of the Company and was appointed as a Director on November 4,
2014. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Xu has been the chairman and the president of Fujian Dali since the
establishment of Fujian Dali in 1992 and has served as the chairman of all
subsidiaries of the Group since their establishment. Under Mr. Xu’s
leadership, the Group’s business has grown from a local food manufacturing
company in Fujian province to a nationwide food and non-alcoholic beverage
company in China with a diversified multi-brand product portfolio focusing on
high-growth product categories. Mr. Xu has accumulated 31 years of
experience in food manufacturing industry. Mr. Xu has been a representative
of the eleventh and twelfth National People’s Congress of the People’s
Republic of China (12 A R HAIEI 2B A R KK E) in 2008 and 2013. Mr.
Xu was also the News Figure of China Food Industry Elite Forum of the 30th
Anniversary of the Reform and Opening Up (E2& 5 /B0 F + Bl B fh1 T4
KR EFEAY) in September 2009. Mr. Xu was appointed as a senior
consultant of the third session of the board of Quanzhou Food Industry
Association (RN R RTTEE) by the association in January 2016. During
2017, Mr. Hui was also recognized as a Hui’an Philanthropist for the year
2015-2016 (ZE—AFEZT—"FEELHEEXR) and awarded a Special
Outstanding Contribution Charity Award for the year 2015-2016 (=& —HF
E-E-RNFEEEEERFRREEE ). Mr. Xu is the father of Ms. Xu
Yangyang, the brother of Ms. Xu Biying and the brother-in-law of Mr. Chen
Baoguo. Mr. Xu is a director of Dali Foods and Divine Foods-1, the controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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Zhuang Weigiang (3 1{&34)
Executive vice president and executive Director

Mr. Zhuang Weiqiang (3{#3%), aged 41, was appointed as an executive
Director on June 14, 2015. Mr. Zhuang joined the Group in 1998 and has
more than 20 years of experience in management with the Group. Mr.
Zhuang has been the executive vice president of the Group in charge of
overall marketing and distribution of products of the Group since 2006. Prior
to this, Mr. Zhuang had been the general manager of Jinan Dali Foods Co.,
Ltd. (ERZEFRMARR2AF]) from 2004 to 2006 and the general manager of
Chengdu Dali Foods Co., Ltd. (X #:EFIRmABR AR (“Chengdu Dali”)
from 2000 to 2004. He had been a financial specialist of Chengdu Dali from
1998 to 2000. Mr. Zhuang graduated from the continuing education course
of Sichuan Agricultural Management Cadre Institute (PU) 1| 5= 2 & 32 %0 E267)
with a certificate in business administration in January 2007. Mr. Zhuang
obtained a professional title as senior economist in Jilin province in January
2010.
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Xu Yang Yang (FFE3 %)
Vice president and executive Director

Ms. Xu Yangyang (/5 R%), aged 35, is the vice president and executive
Director of the Company in charge of making corporate and operational
decisions and managing the day-to-day operation of the Group. Ms. Xu was
appointed as a Director on November 4, 2014. She is also a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. She joined the Group in 2008 and
has worked as a director and the vice president of Fujian Dali from 2009 to
date and is also the supervisor of various subsidiaries of the Group. With
more than 10 years of experience in the Group, Ms. Xu has held various
positions in Fujian Dali from July 2008 to date, including the chairman of the
labour union, workshop director and deputy factory manager. Outside the
Group, Ms. Xu also has various important appointments, including the vice
president of Fujian Association of Health Care Products and Cosmetics (1@
EIR1EHE) since September 2012 and the vice president of the fifth session
of the Standing Committee of Youth Chamber of Commerce of the Youth
Entrepreneurs Association of Quanzhou (RM T HERERHEFTEEE) in
July 2010. Ms. Xu graduated from Xiamen University (BFIKE) with a
bachelor’s degree in international economy and trade in 2005. Ms. Xu was
the Quanzhou Economic Figure of 2015 (2015 /& R M 4L A¥) and the
third session honorary president of Quanzhou Food Industry Association (5%
MR MITERE) in January 2016. Ms. Xu was also awarded the honorary
title of the 16th Fujian Provincial Excellent Entrepreneur (551 /~E @2 EES
P ERLERSR) and recognized as an Outstanding Contributor for Non-
public Economy in Fujian Province (@& IEAH B BEEFHEHZHE) in June
2016. At the same time, Ms. Xu is a representative of the twelfth People’s
Congress of Fujian Province (184 2 T =& AR EK) and vice president of
the 14th Quanzhou Federation of Industry and Commerce (& P& ST
TS EEIT/F). Ms. Xu is the daughter of Mr. Xu Shihui, the niece of
Ms. Xu Biying and the nephew of Mr. Chen Baoguo. Ms. Xu is a director of
Dali Foods and Divine Foods-3, the controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Xu Biying (FF2 )
Non-executive Director

Ms. Xu Biying (Ff 2 %), aged 63, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on June 14, 2015. With 31 years of experience in the food manufacturing
industry, Ms. Xu has been the vice president of the Group, participating in the
formulation of the corporate and business plans of the Group, since the
establishment of the Group in 1992 until 2010, and has rich experience in the
food industry and corporate management. She has over 19 years of
experience in financial management. Ms. Xu received the Certificate for
Qualified Accountant (€ 5TATERE K EE) from Department of Human
Resources and Social Security of Fujian Province (182& A &Rt &R
FZE2) (previously known as the Personnel Department of Fujian Province (8
#E AEEE) in December 1998. Ms. Xu Biying is the sister of Mr. Xu Shihui,
the aunt of Ms. Xu Yangyang and the cousin-in-law of Mr. Chen Baoguo.

Hu Xiaoling (##1%)
Non-executive Director

Ms. Hu Xiaoling (#i#2%), aged 48, is a non-executive Director. She was
appointed as a Director on May 4, 2015. She is also a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Ms. Hu is responsible for providing advice on
investment activities of the Group. Ms. Hu joined CDH Investments in 2002
and is currently a managing director of CDH Investments Management (Hong
Kong) Limited, which is a Hong Kong company incorporated under the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance on April 22, 2003. Ms. Hu is currently a director
of Belle International Holdings Limited (a company delisted on the Stock
Exchange since July 28, 2017, stock code: 1880) and a non-executive
director of Baroque Japan Limited (a company listed on the Tokyo Stock
Exchange, stock code: 35480). Ms. Hu had also been a director of Anhui
Yingliu Electronmechanical Co., Limited (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, stock code: 603308) from April 2006 to March 2017;
director of Midea Group Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 000333) from August 2012 to July 2017 and Ms. Hu
had also been a respectively director of Beijing Motie Book Corporation
Company from July 2010 to December 2017. Prior to joining CDH
Investments Management (Hong Kong) Limited, Ms. Hu had worked at the
direct investment department of China International Capital Corporation
Limited and Arthur Andersen. Ms. Hu graduated from Beijing Jiaotong
University (1622 8K E), previously known as Northern Jiaotong University
JE A REAE), with a master’s degree in Economics and Accounting and a
bachelor’s degree in Economics. Ms. Hu has also been a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Cheng Hanchuan (i25&)l])
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan (#2%)l]), aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on August 25, 2015. He is also a member of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng had
been the head of factory of the Hui’an Huiquan Beer Brewery (B2% 8458 R 1%
B from August 1991 to February 1997 and the chairman, vice chairman,
director and general manager of Huiquan Brewage Group Inc. Fujian China
(REEBEREAEEBRMN AR A F) (how known as Fudian Yanding HuiQuan
Brewery Co., Ltd ({84 #& R 8 R EE A (7 B R A 7)), a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600573) from January 1997 to
August 2013. Mr. Cheng had been the vice chairman of the specialised
committee of beer of China Food Industry Association (ff Bl & @ L ¥ e
JHEEZE B ) from March 2008 to May 2013. Mr. Cheng had also been the
vice chairman of the seventh session committee of Fujian Federation of
Enterprises and Entrepreneurs ({824 ¥ HEPERE A 2) and Fujian
Federation of Industrial Economic ({824 T 24 B4 €) from April 2012 to
May 2013. Mr. Cheng graduated from Fujian Normal University (f8Z2E0&E A
&) with a diploma in Business Administration in July 2010 and was awarded
the professional qualification as a senior economist by the Personnel
Department of Fujian Province (1838 A %) (now known as “Department of
Human Resource and Social Security of Fujian Province” (f&i&4& A &R M
HEREEE) ) in August 1997. Mr. Cheng has been an expert who enjoys
the special allowance of the State Council since June 2000.

Liu Xiaobin (£/NiR)
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Xiaobin (£1/\3E), aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on August 25, 2015. He is also a member of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Liu has been engaged in teaching Chinese in Xiamen University (& FIAZ)
since September 1989. He was an assistant professor of Chinese language
and literature from August 2007 to July 2010, and currently holds the position
of a lecturer at the Overseas Education College of Xiamen University. Mr. Liu
graduated from Xiamen University in July 1986 with a bachelor’s degree in
Arts (Chinese Literature) and Northwest University in China in June 1989 with
a master’s degree in Arts (Classic Chinese Literature).
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Lin Zhijun (& E)
Independent non-executive Director

Dr. Lin Zhijun (%Z&E), aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on August 25, 2015. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Dr. Lin is
currently an independent non-executive director of Springland International
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1700), Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 3808), China Everbright Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 0165), CITIC Dameng Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1091) and BOCOM
International Holdings Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange in May 2017, stock code: 3329). Dr. Lin is the Dean of the
Business School and an Associate Vice President of the Macau University of
Science and Technology. From August 1998 to January 2015, he was a
Professor and Head of the Department of Accountancy and Law in Hong
Kong Baptist University. Prior to these positions, Dr. Lin also taught at The
University of Hong Kong from August 1996 to June 1998, Lethbridge
University in Canada from September 1990 to August 1998 and Xiamen
University (EP9X22) from September 1982 to August 1990. Dr. Lin worked
at the Toronto office of an international accounting firm from December 1982
to November 1983.

Dr. Lin holds a master’s degree in Science in Accounting from University of
Saskatchewan in Canada in October 1991 and a Doctorate’s degree in
Economics (Accounting) from Xiamen University in December 1985. Dr. Lin is
also a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
August 1995, the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since June
1995, the Washington Institute of Certified Management Accountants since
May 1995 and the Australian Institute of Certified Management Accountants
since 2008. He is a member of various educational accounting associations
including the American Accounting Association.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chen Baoguo (PR & El)
Vice president in charge of production

Mr. Chen Baoguo (PREEI), aged 49 is the vice president of the Group. Mr.
Chen is responsible for overseeing and managing overall production activities
and quality control of the Group. With over 26 years of experience in the
Group, Mr. Chen has served in Fujian Dali as the head of production
technology development department from 1992 to 2010. He is the brother-
in- law of Mr. Xu Shihui, uncle of Ms. Xu Yangyang and the brother of the
sister-in-law of Ms. Xu Biying.

Mr. Chen graduated from the Professional Online Education Program in Food
Science and Engineering (Bakery) of Jiangnan University (T AZ}) in 2011
and further obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering with a major in Food
Science and Engineering (Bakery) from Jiangnan University (T AZ) in
January 2017. Mr. Chen was awarded the professional qualification of Grade
1 Senior Technician by the Ministry of Labour and Social Security of the PRC
(FREE AR K FIE 4 B Fl it & REEER) in December 2008. Mr. Chen was
awarded the Certificate of Professional Technology Training by the
Technology Training Center of the China Food Industry Association (Bl & i
TEHEeFMIEIIF L) in December 2007, and was appointed as a member
of the Expert Committee of the China National Food Industry Association (47
HERTEHEEREZESZEE) during the same period. He was awarded
the certified qualification of senior baker by the Bakery Food and
Confectionary Expert Committee of the Society of Food Science of Shanghai
(EBMmERMES) in April 2004.
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Wu Xinchuan (R f&%JIl)
Chief financial officer

Mr. Wu Xinchuan (& fixJIl), aged 38, is the chief financial officer of the Group
and has held the current post since 2008. Mr. Wu is responsible for
overseeing and managing overall finance of the Group. With over 18 years of
experience within the Group, Mr. Wu had held various positions at the Group
from 1999 to 2008, including head of the finance department of the Group,
financial director of Jinan Dali Foods Co., Ltd., accountant of Quanzhou Dali
Foods Co., Ltd., and financial specialist of Hubei Dali Foods Co., Ltd.. Mr. Wu
graduated from the Accounting Department of the School of Modern Distance
Education (BRHIEFEHE E267) of Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics (3 = ZE iR A E2) with a diploma in Accounting in 2015.

Huang Zhiging (E&£7%)
Chief procurement officer

Mr. Huang Zhiqing (E#8), aged 52, is the chief procurement officer of the
Group and has held the current post since 2008. Mr. Huang is responsible for
supervising and managing the overall purchasing and supply of the Group.
With over 25 years of experience within the Group, Mr. Huang had served as
the head of the procurement department in the Group from 2006 to 2008, as
a purchasing manager in Fujian Dali from 1998 to 2006 and as a purchasing
specialist in Fujian Dali from 1993 to 1998. Mr. Huang was awarded the
professional title of senior economist by the Human Resources and Social
Security Department of Jilin province in 2012. Mr. Huang was elected as a
representative of the sixteenth People’s Congress of Quanzhou Municipality
(B+~ERMHAKRRE) and recognized as one of the Top 10 Professional
Managers in 2016 for Food Industry in Quanzhou (RMNTTERITE T —~
FETEBELIEA) N 2017,
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Le Zhenqiao (%R %)
Head of product research and development department

Mr. Le Zhengiao (£43RER), aged 41, senior engineer, is the head of product
research and development department of the Group and has held the current
post since 2007. Mr. Le is responsible for research and development of new
products and supervising the quality control of the products of the Group.
With over 16 years of experience within the Group, Mr. Le served as a
researcher of technology development and quality control in the Group from
2003 to 2007.

Mr. Le graduated in 2001 from Shaanxi University of Science and Technology
(BRFERIA ), previously known as Northwest Institute of Light Industry (78
18 T 5 2F), with a bachelor’'s degree in Biochemical Engineering, with a
minor in Computer Application and Maintenance. Mr. Le completed the food
safety capacity building program organized by the Department of Human
Resources and Social Security (A &R E{RFEEF) and China Food
Industry Association in 2014. Mr. Le was awarded the professional
qualification of Engineer of Biochemistry by the Human Resources and Social
Security Department of Fujian Province in 2009. Mr. Le was awarded the
Certificate of Professional Qualification in Quality Specialization (& £ 2 % iy
AEBEEFESE) by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC (1 A R £ F1E
AZE#6) and the AQSIQ in 2005. Mr. Le was engaged by the Committee of
Standardization Administration of the PRC (FEIEIRIZH(L EREE®) as a
member for the National Committee of Snack Food Technology
Standardization (SAC/TC490) (2 BAE R mEAE(L &KiTZ B &) in 2009 and
as a member for the National Committee of Baked Product Technology
Standardization (SAC/TC488) (2 El/EE R miZELHITZ B ) in 2004. Mr.
Le was awarded the honorary title of National Advanced Worker for Quality
Works (2 BIE & T{EJLi# T 1EE) by the China Quality Inspection Association
(FEIE E8HBHE) in 2014,
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Chen Ying (FR£8)
Joint company secretary

Ms. Chen Ying (B %), aged 33, joined the Group in 2016 as the legal
counsel of the Group, responsible for legal and compliance matters of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chen was a lawyer at Shanghai Llinks
Law Offices from 2011 to 2016, specializing in capital market with extensive
professional experience in securities issuance, merger and acquisition,
corporate assets reorganization, equity investing and financing and post-
listing legal and compliance matters. Ms. Chen graduated from Xiamen
University with a master’s degree in law in 2011 and graduated from
Southwest University of Political Science and Law with a bachelor’s degree in
law in 2008, as well as a bachelor’s degree (dual degree) in English literature
from Sichuan International Studies University in the same year. Ms. Chen
obtained her practicing certificate in Law in the PRC issued by China Ministry
of Justice.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Chen Ying (BR%8), is the legal counsel of the Group and was appointed as a
joint company secretary on March 18, 2018. Please refer to “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management — Senior Management” for details of her
biography.

Cheng Pik Yuk (#822 %), alias Patsy Cheng has served as a joint company
secretary of the Company since June 3, 2015. Ms. Cheng is a director of
corporate services of Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”). Ms. Cheng has over
31 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field, providing professional
corporate secretarial services to listed companies as well as multi-national,
private and offshore companies. She is currently the company secretary/joint
company secretary/assistant company secretary of some listed companies
on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Cheng graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in 1980 with a higher diploma in Company
Secretaryship and Administration. Ms. Cheng is a chartered secretary and a
fellow of both of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (‘HKICS”)
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom. She is a holder of the Practitioner’s Endorsement from HKICS.
Prior to joining Tricor, Ms. Cheng was a senior manager as well as the
departmental manager of company secretarial services at Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu in Hong Kong, provided corporate secretarial and share registration
services to companies.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
achieving good corporate governance standards. The Board believes that
good corporate governance standards are essential in providing a framework
for the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders and enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and enhance
its transparency and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and the Company has adopted the CG
code as its own code of corporate governance.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended December 31, 2018,
the Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code, save for code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, detail of which is
explained in the relevant paragraph in this report.

The Board will periodically review and enhance its corporate governance
practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet the requirements of
the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the transactions of
securities of the Company by the directors and the relevant employees who,
because of their office or employment in the Group, are likely to possess
inside information of the Company, (the “Securities Dealing Code”) on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and all of them have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code and the Securities
Dealing Code throughout the year ended December 31, 2018.

No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code by the
employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and should take decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Director is
spending sufficient time in performing them.

The Board of the Company comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Xu Shihui (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang

Ms. Xu Yangyang

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Xu Biying
Ms. Hu Xiaoling

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Cheng Hanchuan

Mr. Liu Xiaobin

Dr. Lin Zhijun

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 42 to 51 of this
annual report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed under
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 42 to 51 of this
annual report.
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Insurance for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of any
legal action against its directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are held by Mr. Xu
Shihui who is the founder of the Company and has extensive experience in
the industry. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer in the same individual would enable the Company to
achieve higher responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when formulating
business strategies and executing business plans. The Board believes that
the balance of power and authority is sufficiently maintained by the operation
of the Board, comprising the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors (representing more than one-third of the
Board) with one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Appointment and re-election of non-executive Directors

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company are appointed for a specific term of one year, and the term is
renewable for one year automatically upon approval by the Shareholders in
general meeting.
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Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of the Group
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and financial performance,
and ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in
place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company.
The Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their
duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant operational matters
of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally
facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.

During the year ended December 31,
participated in the following trainings:

2018, the following Directors

Directors Type of Training Nete

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Shihui AB

Mr. Zhuang Weigiang AB

Ms. Xu Yangyang AB

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Xu Biying AB

Ms. Hu Xiaoling AB

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan AB

Mr. Liu Xiaobin AB

Dr. Lin Zhijun AB

Note:

Types of Training

A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars,
conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant
publications
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board committees are posted on the website of the
Company and of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”) and
are available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are independent non-
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 3 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing
the financial information and reporting system, internal control and risk
management systems, effectiveness of the internal audit function, relationship
with external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the
Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year to discuss the audit
process and accounting issues with the external audits and to review, among
other things, (i) the annual financial results for the year ended December 31,
2017 and the interim results for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and the
relevant reports prepared by the external auditors relating to 2018 annual
audit and interim review plans and major findings in the course of audit/
review, (i) significant issues on the financial reporting, operational and
compliance controls, (iii) the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and internal audit function, (iv) appointment of external
auditors and their relevant scope of work, as well as (v) continuing connected
transactions.

During the year, the Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice
without the presence of the management of the Company to discuss the
audit procedures and accounting issues.
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Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company and the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management and other related matters.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are set out
under “Report of the Directors — Senior Management’s Emoluments” on
page 37 of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of directors, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning for directors, and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to strengthen the performance of the Board,
promote effective decision-making and better corporate governance and
monitoring. The Company considered that diversity of board members can
be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not
limited to skills, experience and cultural and educational background,
geographical, industry and professional experience, ethnicity, gender, age,
knowledge and length of service.
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Based on the business needs of the Group, the Nomination Committee has
recommended and the Board has adopted the following measurable
objectives:

(@)  at least one-third of the Board members shall be independent non-
executive Directors; and

(o) at least one of the independent non-executive Directors shall have
obtained accounting or appropriate professional qualifications.

The Nomination Committee shall monitor the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy and review the progress of its measurable objectives from
time to time.

The Company has also adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors of the
Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the
continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

° Candidate’s age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional
qualifications, academic qualifications, background and other personal
qualities

° Impact on the composition of the board and the diversity of its
members

° Commitment by the candidate to devote sufficient time and effectively
perform his or her duties
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° The number and nature of the positions of candidates in public
companies or organizations or other administrative appointments or
other important work commitments

° Potential/actual conflict of interests with the Company upon
appointment of candidates

° Candidate’s independence

° Length of service of the proposed re-election of independent non-
executive director who has been serving to the Company

° Other factors that the Nominating Committee considers to be relevant
on a case-by-case basis

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection
and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. During the year ended December 31, 2018, there was no change
in the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and to consider the qualifications of the retiring
directors standing for election at the 2018 Annual General Meeting. The
Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS EENHESSEITHE

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board Committees T X&H IV FEFTHEHEZ-_ZEZ—N\E+ -8
meetings and the general meeting of the Company held during the year =4+—H|IEEANRITHESeRE=EZ8ee
ended December 31, 2018 is set out in the table below: EUARARBIRE ARG

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE, ERRE

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEpE Exe ERZEe $MZzEE REZEE BREAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Xu Shihui g A 44 NATERA N/A i A 11 11
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang HEaLE 4/4 N/A i@ N/A i@ N/A N3 1/1
Ms. Xu Yangyang Bl 4/4 N/A i@ A 1/1 N/A T 11
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Ms. Xu Biying FERLZ L 44 NATER NATER  NATER 1/1
Ms. Hu Xiaoling tAEETs w+ 4/4 2/2 N/A 7 F N/A 7~ 1/1
Independent non-executive B UIHITEE

Directors

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan RE)EE 4/4 2/2 N/A i F 11 11
Mr. Liu Xiaobin AN 4/4 N/A i@ A 1/1 11 11
Dr. Lin Zhijun WEEFL 4/4 2/2 11 N/A 7~ F 11

The Chairman also held a meeting with the non-executive Directors (including  EFERFRIFERITET LG EFENB R FNEIE
independent non-executive Directors) without the presence of executive  #HiTE = (BIFBVIEHITEE) BH—

Directors during the year.

N~
INE R °

¥R 2018
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2018.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 137 to 143.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors of the
Company, Messrs. Ernst & Young, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended December 31, 2018 is set out below:

ESAENBHRRNEE

EERREARRAKEEERE_FT—N\FT_A
=t RLFEEAHMBRRNEL -

ARRBI A BEPBRROBEREE
BRENE 137 EEF 143 BB R IRE N -

B8 Bl Y 357 B

REE-_T-N\F+-A=Z+—HLEFENEZ
R RIEERRB A AR R INEZBE L K ER
AEBATHEN, FENHM DT T

Service Category R % 48 Bl Fees Paid/Payable

e ERER

RMB

AREE

Audit Services EiZRG 4,500,000
Non-audit Services (including Tax compliance service, BB (BEMGSEERS  FHEsE -

Tax advisory, ESG reporting advisory and RE (e RERMEDAR
Risk management reporting advisory) B E B ETEA) 706,000
Total &&t 5,206,000

COMPANY SECRETARIES

The Company has engaged Tricor Services Limited, external service provider,
and Ms. Cheng Pik Yuk has been appointed as the Company’s joint company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Ms. Chen Ying, the
joint company secretary of the Company.

REWE

ARRERBINBRIGIRME 2 EEXEBHRSE
BERRR RBEEXTEEZERARRBE
REME - ERARANIBBBAR/ERRN
BERARMERRLL
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of HKEX after each
general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles, any two or more shareholders or any
one shareholder which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the
Requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles or the Cayman Islands Companies Law
for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph. As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a
Person for Election as a Director of the Company” which is posted on the
Company’s website.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally
deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:
Address: Room 2601, 26th Floor, One Harbourfront, 18 Tak Fung Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Joint Company Secretaries)

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Company’s business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours
to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the annual general
meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company maintains a website at www.dali-group.com as a
communication platform with shareholders of the Company and investors,
where the financial information and other relevant information of the Company
are available for public access.

Constitutional Documents

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to its
Articles. An up to date version of the Articles is also available on the
Company’s website and HKEX's website.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Company reinforces the environmental protection, food safety and social
responsibility integrated into the corporate development strategy by
establishing the Environmental, Social and Governance Working Committee
in compliance with its business development, whilst maintaining its leading
business and capital operation capacities in the industry. The Company, with
the commitment made to the sustainable growth and by adhering to the
concept of sustainable development, pays close attention with positive
attitude to the environmental, social and governance risks in operations. The
consumer, the shareholders and the potential investor as well as the
government body, media, employee and supplier are regarded by us as
important stakeholders. For meeting the expectations of those mentioned
above and building a valid sustainable development framework strategy
against environmental and social law and regulation and risk control, Dali has
carried out multi-dimensional risk evaluation and analysis, including media
research, benchmarking and supervision requirement analysis to evaluate
significant environmental, social and governance issues in regard to self-
development and concerned by the stakeholders and to scrutinise and sort
the sustainable development management policy out for compilation and
independent release of the environmental, social and governance report.

In accordance with the business philosophy of “high-quality life with safe
food”, Dali always lays emphasis on the food safety as one of the most
important works. By strengthening control and management on the raw
material suppliers, Dali has established a comprehensively efficient food safety
management system with well-developed product testing capability to
constantly enhance and ensure the food safety and promote consumer
faithfulness. In terms of fuffilling the social responsibility, the impact produced
in the course of food processing on social environment is minimised by
means of equipment upgrading and renovation for energy conservation and
emission reduction, and those in need are supported and aided by taking
advantage of introducing educational fund and carrying out social benefit
activities. For more information about the environmental, social and
governance performances of the Company in this fiscal year, please refer to
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 95 to 136 of
this report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board’s Responsibility for Risk Management and Internal
Control

The Board of Directors, as the supreme leading organ in risk management of
the Group, undertakes ultimate responsibility for construction and effective
operation of the overall risk management system, takes charge of the
building, improvement and efficient operation of the overall risk management
system and has the discretion to delegate senior management and
operational division of each department in the risk management system.

The Board of Directors is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks the Group is prepared to take in achieving its
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems. The
Board has an audit committee which is responsible for overseeing the
appropriateness of the risk management and internal supervision procedure
and the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group, as well as
providing a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.
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Characteristics of Risk Management and Internal Control

Systems

EREERAIBEZE ARGV

The Group’s internal control system is formulated according to the principles 7 £= [E &9 7y & B5 128 & 45 48 45 2= B (Committee of
of the internal control framework of the Committee of Sponsoring  Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQ”) in the US. With the ~ Commission [ COSO ) # A1 B B 12 4E 28 119 [ BI| 41
philosophy of risk management at all levels consistently adopted accordingto & - £EEIRBIERAKREFEERMEIERS -
the framework, the Group has been implementing the risk management work ¥ EBERE T{EBEEEBAX L B+ AR I
to the group headquarters and all the subsidiaries with intensive management ¥ H R R B =2 E I - EZRMAEK D
against critical risks therein. The components of the framework are shown as NN PN

follows:
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Figure 1: Internal control framework
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The risk management and internal control systems adopted by the Group are ~ ANEEFTERANEREE R ASNEILERGE RS
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks associated with its failure B IEER FRALER 2K B EWMRER - T2 28k
to fulfill business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute Gt~ &H & Kk EMR s iB/EH A I8 M IE48
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Based on the respective responsibilities of the management, the Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee for risk management, the Group has set
up three lines of defense regarding its risk management and internal control
work:

The Line of defense 1 serves as a risk bearer for various functional
departments as well as subsidiaries of the Group undertaking the primary and
direct responsibilities for the risks in business activities. Its main functions
include identifying, quantifying and overseeing the risks within each business
area as well as formulating risk countermeasures linked to daily operation.

The Line of defense 2 is composed of the Risk Management Taskforce and
responsible persons of various centers and subsidiaries of the Group who
assist the Company in the implementation of its risk monitoring and control.
The Risk Management Taskforce is staffed by professionals from the Legal
Department, Human Resources Department and Financial Operation Center,
facilitating the improvement and execution of risk management and control
measures through the transfer and accumulation of professional knowledge
ad skills as well as the coordination, integration and monitoring of risk
exposures and management in each business area. The primary duties of
responsible persons of various centers and subsidiaries of the Group are
coordinating and formulating the Group’s risk and internal control policies and
systems as well as implementing major risk countermeasures and pivotal
internal control processes.

The Line of defense 3 comprises the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit
Division. The Internal Audit Division is responsible for carrying out specific
tests, verification and evaluation on the integrity and effectiveness of the risk
management framework and internal control system and providing
independent and objective appraisal. The Audit Committee reviews the
process and findings of the Internal Audit Division’s evaluation on the risk
management framework and internal control system on a regular basis and
reports to the Board of Directors.
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Management Procedure for Risk Management and Internal
Control

The Group has set up a cycle of risk management and internal control system
characterizing the Group’s management. It continually operates at regular
intervals to manage and monitor the Group’s risks for this financial year. Main
processes under the cycle are as follows:
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Figure 3: Risk management and internal control procedure
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Collection of risk information /& k(= B Uk &

(2

The Group conducts the collection and update of risk information internally and externally. The Group collects industry-related
information from outside, carries out industry benchmarking, and analyzes risks for the industry. At the same time, the Group
has collected internal risk management information through various channels such as internal visits and questionnaires,
effectively identified and analyzed various risk points, and updated the “Comprehensive Risk Database”, providing further
support for risk analysis.

FEVERED - INEEE S E R ERE BRI KEE RN TIE - SERIMNBUERITEMRBGEE - FRITEEER - oWiTERR :
A SEBEBANNED  AEREELRERE  WEEBANHERERBBAGEE  ARBRT ST ERRE - EHcE
HRREIERE) - BERKEASTTIRMEE - T -

Analysis of risk assessment JE & 5 2 47

(3)

The Group reviews the prevailing conditions about its risk management on a regular basis, mobilizes all members of the Group
to participate in risk assessment, and thoroughly explores the implications of risks by means of interviews and scoring of risks
along with the cause-and-effect analysis approach. Quantitative analysis and comprehensive assessment of the risks are
conducted from two dimensions, namely the possibility of occurrence and the degree of impacts of risks, to determine the
major risks of the Group for the relevant year which constitute the “List of Major Risks”.

SEHEHREEAMNRBRERBN  ASHEERE2EEARNE  BETH  BRIADFLN  BERARIIE - AAEZ
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Implementation of risk countermeasures 3% 2 [2 i FE ¥ 3£ i

The management of the Group discusses and decides on contingency plans for major risks, refines countermeasures, and
links such risk countermeasures with day-to-day business operations, so as to introduce risk countermeasures in concrete
terms among responsible positions and make clear the crucial contingency arrangement. The Group has established a
bottom-up reporting channel to ensure effective monitoring of the risk countermeasures and give full play to the risk control
responsibilities under the “Line of defense 1”.
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Continuous supervision of risk & f&#5& 5 &
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The Group conducts continuous supervision of risks through various means to ensure the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control system. The Group further enhances the development of the three lines of defense for risk control,
conducts daily supervision duties for risks, explicitly defines the relevant responsible departments for various risks, and
conducts normal supervision over the content and frequency of its risk management implementation. In addition, the Group
regularly conducts audit in special areas and evaluation of internal control procedure according to the work plan for annual
internal audit and evaluation on internal control, so as to ensure that the risk control under the “Line of defense 1” has been
put in place.

SEBRZEFRHARBEEOFELRE  BREREERAFERNERN - SEE— DR CEIE= B RERE - BER
RETFEERE  ARSERAOEFEEEEN  THERREREMAHANDEBRETTRIEEE I SEZRRBRFE
NEbEET R AERHE LIEA 2] - E AR ZEEFET LAERENELE - RE [ — B & RIEEHmRIAL -

Optimization of risk management EEEE{t

The management of the Group integrates the results of risk assessment with those of internal audit for the update and
improvement of the Group’s internal control system. The Group has further enriched and improved its risk database, conducts
systematic analysis on the causes, impacts and internal logic of various risks, traced the root causes of risks, seized the risk
drivers, and grasped the core risks, so as to realize the efficient management and control of risks and the optimization and
upgrade of the internal control system.

SEEREHESRARTERADETER  HEBEANEEBFETENNE - REE—PRETERREURE - YRIERER
MAE - B RHANEEEFRETREEST - BRRRERKEA - MERARESERE - LREEARZOBE - BERER
BREE - ARG BREB TR -

72

Annual Report 2018



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERMRE

Major Risks and Management Measures in 2018

Major risk management achievements of the year

To conduct a comprehensive risk assessment. The Group’s Risk
Control Taskforce took the lead in carrying out a comprehensive review
of businesses of the Group and its subsidiaries: The Risk Control
Taskforce understood the potential risks of the Group’s business
processes through field visits to and questionnaire surveys with various
functional departments, and then revised and improved the Group’s
risk database. Secondly, the Risk Control Taskforce led the employees
from various departments to score risks in the risk database from the
two dimensions of the possibility of occurrence and the degree of
impacts of risks, in order to identify the risks that the Group is
confronted or will be confronted.

To strengthen management on the causes of risks. Through the
analysis of the industry benchmarking and business processes, the
Group analyzed the causes of the significant risks that the Group is
confronted, grasp the risk priorities and association, precisely located
the source of risks and formulated targeted countermeasures, so as to
achieve effective risk management and control.

To fully optimize various business processes. The Group paid ongoing
attention to and regularly reviewed its business processes, improved
the development of the internal control system and optimized inefficient
business processes, so as to achieve both “risk control” and “high
efficiency”. By promoting the full utilization of an OA system in various
subsidiaries, the Group continuously enhanced the approval process in
the business of its subsidiaries to achieve the full implementation of
work process automation at the subsidiary level and the improvement
of work efficiency.

To enhance the development of risk management culture. Guided by
its corporate strategies and centering on its production and operation,
and based on the principle of full participation, the Group reviewed the
administrative regulations in relation to risk management culture,
communicated and explicitly defined the main responsible departments
and their respective responsibilities for various risks and stepped up its
effort in the training on risk management culture, so as to facilitate the
process of building its corporate culture in relation to risk management
in a proactive manner.
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After the process of risk assessment, the Group has identified six major risks
and potential risks in the industry. By integrating them with the characteristics
of the value chains in the food product industry and gain an understanding of
the potential impacts of the major risks on the Company’s core processes
and the logical relationship among them, the Group proactively pressed
ahead with the comprehensive rectification of risks, established effective and
targeted measures, so as to fully support the healthy operation and
development of the Company.

BRI SRR - KREBEB G T NEERRRE
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Macro-economic environment
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Macro-economic and political risks

Raw material price
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change risk
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Food safety risk
RMREAR

Supporting
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Micro-enterprise management

wBbxER

Figure 4: Major Risks — Business Logic Diagram
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In respect of its risk exposures, the Group has designed and monitored the ﬁ‘%ﬁ’ilﬁﬁﬁﬁf?ﬁ EERBHRIBEB R -

implementation of the following countermeasures through streamlining the g‘iﬂﬁLATFHTE A

business operation processes.

No. Risk Description Countermeasures

mir EEEE JFB| B 4 3t PEST 15 1

1 Market competition In recent years, as the overall development 1. To choose a reasonable market and
MG HRFE R of the food and beverage industry enhance brand competitiveness:

experienced a slowdown, increasing the
market share has become the key to winning
the market competition. However, as some
competitors or new competitors may
produce and sell products that are extremely
similar to ours, or, due to the slower
response of the Group to the market than
that of our competitors, market profits may
be thinned out, which may reduce the
Group’s existing market share and affect the
Group’s market competitiveness.

EFERRMATRERREEERNE - 1&

ﬂm%ﬂ B AT ST BB RRISE - B
DEHMFET  ERFEAREELHER

AEBERUERROER KBTS EMRE

REZRENBEFHTFERR  SEHETS

AN BISSEEREMSNE  FEEEN
MG -

In 2018, the Group chose the short shelf-life
bread market because of its large market
capacity. We launched the new brand
“Meibeichen”, which consists of five types of
breads, including soup-dipping toasts,
nutritious toasts, fudge toasts, nutritious buns
and floss bread. They are the perfect breakfast
foods for modern families to consume and fully
cater to the dietary preferences of young
people, who favor nutritious and ready-to-eat
food. Thoroughly fulfilling consumers’
demands,
convenience, low price, tastiness and multiple
choices”, “Meibeichen” enhances the market
competitiveness of its products.

including “nutrition, quality,

CERENS  BRARMBREN:
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Countermeasures

g

2.

To diversify product types and expand
customer base:

The Group continues to adhere to the
development strategy of “multi-brand and
multi-products”. Currently, the Group has
various brands, including “Daliyuan” bread,
cakes and pastries, “Haochidian” Biscuit,
“Copico” Puffed Food, “Doubendou” soy milk,
“Hi-Tiger” energy drinks, “Heqgizheng” herbal
tea and so on. Each brand is positioned at
different markets, covering a large group of
consumers. Meanwhile, under the existing
brands, the Group launched the Weizhen soy
milk and Haiduolang potato chips, continuing
to expand customer base.

BEERER BASREER:
SERBERE LR ZERINBRRE
BRIEEES [ERE] RE2E - [7e2h] 8
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No. Risk Description Countermeasures
wmea EBEE JEB By 4 3t e 1R
3. To establish a market analysis mechanism

to pay ongoing attention to market
dynamics:

For offline sales of products, the Group
understands the market conditions through
self-conducted research or purchasing the
data of research companies to precisely
position the Group’s products and provide
protection for the Group’s new products. As
to online sales products, the Group’s
operation department pays attention to the hot
selling items of each major e-commerce
platform, which improves our responsiveness
to the market and seals the profit in the
e-commerce market.

BUMSIMES - SEBITEEHE
HERTHEER  SEEEBTTHMNE
EMSHMARRESESATHETISTE
ERFUEEER YRAKEMERELR
HRE - HERLHEEER SEELESE
RIS AERTARAMHEER AN
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No. Risk Description Countermeasures
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2 Food safety Risks in food safety exist throughout the 1. To obtain the professional accreditation:

BEmiZEE R whole industrial chain of the Group. If the In 2018, the Group’s testing centers received

Group has any negligence in any aspect, it the Certificate of Laboratory Accreditation
may cause significant food safety problems. awarded by the China National Accreditation
If the Group fails to effectively monitor the Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS)
quality of raw materials purchased, the and, after passing the 1ISO22000 Food Safety
production procedures, quality testing and Management System accreditation, gained the
food safety standards, it may result in food BRC Global Food Quality Certificate and the
safety incidents, which will damage the HASSP Certificate of Food Safety Standards.
reputation of the Company and incur The product quality testing ability and food
economic compensation losses to the quality safety of the Group are fully recognized
Group. in the industry.
EmEr2AREFREEXHEINRE  BE 1. BBREEEEIAR
E-REFERR WA EEARRE 20184 - SERAF L EGEHFEESETE
2R  EEEREHRBRMAME - £E BRABAIZE S (CNAS) HEMERERA B
BERE  HERAEN  BRRE2EER & WEBIABISO22000 R ML 2 BEBRR
MEFEETAEREE  AREKEERM BEWRTESBRCEEKRBMESRE
TEEBRRBARE  BEHAMTLEEHE HASSPRmE B IEERE SEEREER
o RENTREE  REEBREEERE - BEENRRREELREZITERD AT °
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No. Risk Description Countermeasures
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2. To build an informatized monitoring

platform:

In 2018, the Group received the Assessment
Certificate of Management System for the
“Integration of Informatization and
Industrialization”, indicating that the Group has
achieved the seamless integration of
informatization and industrialization. The
Group strives to build an online monitoring
system for quality equipment so as to monitor
online the indicators of the components of
product and raw material samples, such as
fat, protein and sugar, with advanced quality
testing devices, use visual analytic tools to
monitor abnormal situations and deal with
them in a timely manner, and monitor and
ensure food product safety through
informatization.

TEERIENTE

20184 - SHEERF [MILRA | BEE R
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3.

To increase investment in cleansing
equipment of production workshops:

The Group has invested considerable funds to
purchase world-class production equipment
and assembly line and establish a 10,000-level
purification workshop, improving the GMP
management system. Using combined
purifying air-conditioner machines, air filtering
system, ventilating heat retention pipe in the
purification room, efficient vent, and the
functioning principle of the ventilating pipe
system in he purification room, we constantly
improve ventilation, achieving the required
hygiene level of the production environment,
ensuring food safety at the very beginning.

MABRFEEERRBRE !
SERAREESD  SIEBRKRIEREERE
MRk BUBMBFLEEER UxE
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4. To improve the whole-process quality

inspection mechanism:

In strict compliance with the national food
safety standards, the Group carries out
seamless inspections on the R&D of products
— raw material purchase — packaging —
transportation. The Group monitors the
prescriptions and components of products
during the R&D process, strictly assesses the
quality of suppliers during raw material
purchase sessions, thus achieving control on
the quality of raw material sources. For the
production process, a mechanism monitoring
the raw materials, production environment and
product quality has been set up. For the
packaging process, the packing materials,
ingredients and surface residue are tested. For
the transportation process, the pressure test
of the products is carried out to prevent
pollution due to the damage caused during
transportation. Meanwhile, the Group selects
internal and external product samples for
inspection from time to time, ensuring that
their quality meets the national standards.

REDRERERBEH :
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3 Raw material price The price of raw materials for production 1. To improve forecasting and analysis
fluctuation fluctuates due to various factors such as the mechanism for raw material price

RETRHE R R B R

downturn of global economy, US-China
trade war, exchange rate movement, climatic
change or natural disaster and market supply
and demand, resulting in the increase of
production cost and uncertainties for the
Group. Given that the management of the
Group fails to foresee the raw material prices
or fails to implement effective measures in
response to unfavorable changes in material
prices, the Group may have to bear
increased cost of materials due to price
fluctuation, which will bring inconvenience to
the Group’s overall cost management.

SELEMTRMAHERZ 2REE T
TERESE XK KRB BAK
T TERBELARARATE  EHEE
EERANEBR A EE NS - EREE
BERGEHRMAERETHERR - RE
FMRHEAR B AT F R BB BRZ 5 AN 1
5RES - Al BE B R EFAER RN EHERK
BMIMHKA - EREZEAANEERK
TE -

movements:

The procurement department of the Group
analyze raw material market conditions on a
quarterly basis in accordance with the
procurement target and the execution
progress regarding the procurement plan. By
observing factors such as historical purchase
prices of raw materials, market price
fluctuations, the supply and demand
relationship of the market and existing market
inventory, the Group forecasts what the future
trend of raw material prices will be and
formulates procurement strategies for different
types of materials. Meanwhile, in each month,
the Group holds a telephone meeting
concerning the procurement strategy and
analysis of grand products with bigger
fluctuations and makes sure that the forecast
results are reflected in the procurement plan in
a timely manner.

TEERMBERBERR DTS
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2. To optimize the analysis mechanism for

seasonality of demand for raw materials:
The Group further enhances the lean
management on the seasonal demand for raw
materials. Under full consideration of the
market product demand, supplies’ supplying
ability and the inventory and inventory turnover
of each production base, it formulates
reasonable procurement plans and
implements anti-season procurement for
certain raw materials. For non-processed raw
materials, the Group procures raw materials
during the period with relatively weak market
demand to effectively circumventing the risk of
raw material prices rising due to overflowing
demands while reducing waste of expired
materials, as processed raw materials have a
shorter durability.

BIRMBEREEHE DTS
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3.

To strategically control raw material
procurement costs:

The Group makes forecast according to the
macro-economy and market conditions,
entering into early contracts as to raw
materials that may have price fluctuations with
suppliers, thus reducing the uncertainty of the
purchase price. The Group also locks in raw
material prices by signing future contracts with
futures traders so that the procurement cost
can be effectively controlled. In addition, the
Group combines strategic and market
contracts to find a balance between strategic
agreement price and market price and choose
the best procurement method, so that the
fluctuation risk of market price is reduced.

B WA A 42 R R ER B AR
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4 Brand reputation As an important factor in shaping the overall 1. To be awarded internationally
mhR R b image of an enterprise, brand reputation has acknowledged accolades to enhance

a far-reaching impact on the establishment
of consumer groups and the formation of
competitive advantages. If the Group fails to
improve its brand reputation in an
appropriate way, it may lead to a lack of
awareness on the part of consumers and a
lower degree of market recognition, which is
not conducive to the building up of the
Group’s overall image. At the same time, if
the Group does not respond reasonably to
external events such as counterfeit products,
defamation against us from our competitors,
etc., it may bring the Group into disrepute
and hinder its long-term development.

mEBBEREECERRBIIRNEZR
= %T Eé HEB AR CRERFEBEAR
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brand reputation:

In 2018, soy milk and organic soy milk
products under the Group’s Doubendou
brand participated in the Superior Taste Award
organized by International Taste & Quality
Institute (iTQI) for the first time and won the
Superior Taste Award. Such products also
won the Soy Milk Industry Gold Award at the
12th China International Organic Products
Expo (B+ BT EIERERERFTES). It

is fully stated that the quality and image of the
brand have been recognized by the
international community. Meanwhile, the
Group’s Doubendou soy milk was designated
as the official soy milk for Boao Forum for Asia
2018, which helps enhance the Group’s brand
reputation.

EEERREREE  BEAREEEE
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2.

To launch social responsibility activities to
build up a good image for the Company:
The Group actively fulfilled its corporate social
responsibility and was deeply involved in
public welfare philanthropy. In 2018, the
Group held a ceremony to distribute old-age
allowance with RMB10 million distributed to
the elderly in Hui’an County, in an attempt to
advocate the social value of “respecting, loving
and helping the elderly”. “Dali Group Xu Shihui
Education Fund” awarded RMB10 million to
nearly 3,000 excellent students and teachers
in Hui’an County as awards for teachers,
scholarships and grants-in-aid. The Group, in
conjunction with Southeast Television, has
carried out a public welfare activity called
“Reach Out to Children and Bring Love Home”
(BBOETT » BB [ER). So far, the Group has
helped thousands of left-behind children to
reunite with their families during the Spring
Festival. The Group is firmly committed to
social welfare and philanthropy and has
established a good corporate image.

FRMEEMEE B QAARFES !
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3. To improve the public opinion monitoring

mechanism and reasonably respond to
crises:

The Group further improves the brand public
opinion monitoring mechanism. On the one
hand, we collect internal feedback complaints
and external brand public opinion information
through various channels, such as our official
website, Group publications, Weibo and
WeChat. On the other hand, we make the
most of our strong channel advantages and
collect a summary of public opinion
information from each sales team. In the face
of counterfeit products, the Group will publish
statements on official platforms to clarify the
names, trademarks and authorized sales
channels of its products, so as to help
consumers to distinguish authenticity. We wiill
also carry out on-site verification and evidence
collection in a timely manner and file lawsuits
with relevant authorities to safeguard the
legitimate rights and interests of the Group.

TEEFERRT  SEEHBHEN
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5 Consumer’s behavior Given the changes in living standards and 1. Accurately locate the research and
changes the social environment, consumers’ development direction of new products:
HEETTAE(LAK  consumption preference has changed For new product research and development,
constantly. If the Group does not conduct an the Group uses its nationwide marketing
in-depth study on consumers’ consumption network to collect product and market
behavior, analyze the trend of consumption information and capture the changes in the
behavior changes, and accurately demand of market consumers at first time. In
understand consumers’ product buying addition, we will look into the changes in the
preference, it may result in a decline in the foreign food market, understand the
consumers’ loyalty to the Group’s products preference changes in the foreign food
and their purchase rates, as well as a lower industry, conduct a comprehensive analysis of
demand for the Group’s products, which will the flavor, packaging, and composition of their
affect the sales volume of the Group’s products, and apply them to the research and
products and its income. development of our own products. We will
work closely with the research and
/E7J<3F&Zi/'\fﬁiiﬁ’3 { b FEHEERHE development team, deliver consumer demand
BRI TEE LR - AEEREBEEEN information in a timely manner, and devote
H Eﬂi‘%Lﬁm)\ﬁHﬁ CONTEBETRE ourselves to the research and development of
B ERICIEEEENEMNEERRLY new products based on our research and
AREEENEEEEHERERNENE - B development abilities.
BEXTR SEEMNERBRE FEEM
$HE A R B as o 1. EBEUHERWRLMD:
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2. To establish a consumer behavior research

mechanism:

With the combined effort of both internal and
external teams for the Group, the research
mechanism of consumers’ behaviors has seen
continuous improvement. Internally,
employees of the Group conduct field visits in
the market to observe consumers’ preferences
on product offerings and obtain actual
feedbacks on taste, packaging and pricing of
products through interviews with consumers.
Externally, third party companies working with
the Group conduct research on brand
recognition and favorability, core points of
recognition and recommendations for
improvement regarding our brands. Research
findings will be promptly fed back to the
management for refinement of marketing
strategies of products.
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economic and political changes. In the face
of softer growth in the global economy, the
Sino-US trade war, fluctuations in the
exchange rate of Renminbi as well as
adjustments to national policies and industry
standards, if the Group fails to grasp the
implications of government policies, changes
in industry standards and macroeconomic
trends promptly, decisions made by the
Group may become irrational and impact on
the Group’s product quality and sales.
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No. Risk Description Countermeasures
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6 Macro-economics and The beverage industry is impacted by macro- 1. To take an active interest in changes in

government policies and regulations:

The Group takes an active interest in policies
targeting private enterprise and manufacturing
companies promulgated by the central
government and local governments through
open channels. The executive deputy factory
managers of respective subsidiaries liaise with
the local authorities governing the region
where the Group’s production base is
situated, with a view to promptly grasp the
policy changes regarding areas such as food
safety, environmental protection, funding and
taxation.
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2. To regularly organize training programs on

relevant laws and regulations:

The Group organizes relevant departments to
conduct training programs on national laws
and regulations. In 2018, the Group organized
practical training on fundamental laws and
implementation regulations thereof, such as
the Contract Law and the Individual Income
Tax Law. Thematic conferences on work
ethics targeting management personnel at the
level of managers and above were also
organized. A few tens of training sessions
were organized with hundreds of participants
in total.
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3.

To participate in the formulation of industry
standards on food safety:

The Group is an important standing member
of the China National Food Industry
Association. By participating in the formulation
of standards related to food safety, policy
changes in the national food and beverage
industry are made known to the Group earlier.
In 2018, the Group participated in the
formulation of the Measures for the
Administration of Qualification of National
Inspection Personnel, as well as the
preparation of standards for hot-melt adhesive
glue labelling machines, deoxidizers in food
products and whole grain food products and
quality.
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4. To launch seminars on procurement and

sales on a routine basis:

The Group regularly organizes procurement
and sales management staff to hold routine
seminars where analysis and forecasts on the
macro-economic climate and market changes
and trends are conducted. Based on such
factors as the trends and fluctuations in the
market, the raw material price movements and
the sales levels of products, the Group studies
and reviews the prevailing market conditions
and future development of front-end supply
and back-end demand along the Group’s
supply chain, with a view to addressing
changes in economic conditions in a rational
and objective manner.
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Risk management and internal control systems review of 2018

The Internal Audit Division, in accordance with the annual audit plan approved by the Audit Committee in 2018,
carried out independent review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and major internal control,
covering financial control, operational control and compliance control. The Internal Audit Division reported the
audit results to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, recommended rectification measures and
exchanged views with the management and took follow-up actions to ensure that the management has put such
rectification measures into practice.

The Audit Committee scrutinizes and approves the review results and comments from the Internal Audit Division
regarding the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and the risk management system on a regular
basis and reports major issues (if any) to the Board of Directors.

As of December 31, 2018, the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee have conducted a review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including adequacy of resources,
employees’ qualification and experience, training programs and budgets of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting functions. The Board of Directors is of the view that there is no material deficiency in the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems in terms of integrity, rationality and validity.
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ABOUT THE REPORT
Overview

The report is the third annual Environmental, Social and Governance
(hereinafter referred to as “ESG”) Report issued by Dali Foods Group
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (referred to as the
“Group” or “We” in the report) which mainly discloses the Group’s
performance on ESG. The report covers work for the financial year from 1
January 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the “reporting period”).

Preparation basis

The report was prepared in accordance with the revised Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide published in December 2015 as set
out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The report contents are determined according to a set of systematic
programs and relevant procedures include: identification and prioritization of
important stakeholders, identification and prioritization of ESG related
important topics, determination of boundary of ESG report, collection of
relevant materials and data, preparation of report according to the data,
verification of data in report, etc.

Scope and boundary of the report

Unless specially stated, the policies, statements and data in the report
basically cover the Group’s headquarters and subsidiaries and certain
information on community is related to the “Huian Educational Foundation by
Xu Shihui of Dali Foods Group Company Limited”. The currency used in the
report is RMB.

Data source and reliability assurance

The data and cases of the report are mainly from the statistics report and
related documents of the Group. The Group undertakes that there is no false
record or misleading statement in the report, and we shall be liable for the
authenticity, accuracy and completeness of the report.

Confirmation and approval

As confirmed by the management, the report was approved by the board of
directors (the “Board”) on 26, March 2019 .
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RESPONSIBLE OPERATION TO FUEL
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group established its first production plant in 1989. Through more than
20 years of rapid development, it has grown into a company with many well-
known brands. We adhere to the corporate culture and core concept of
“creating quality products” and uphold our corporate vision to “create quality
life, lead the development of the industry and establish a comprehensive
modern food business group”. We practice responsible operations and keenly
give back to the society while upholding sustainable development as our
priority, so that fulfiling social responsibility can become a common value
orientation of every manager and staff of the Group.

ESG Management

The improvement of corporate responsibility competitiveness relies on a
sound ESG management system. The Group continued to strive to integrate
the concept of ESG accountability into our business strategy so as to
optimize our ESG accountability management system. The Group has
established a multi-level ESG internal management structure with the Board
of the Company as the lead, the ESG executive committee (with directors as
members) as the core, the ESG working group as the driving force and
specialists from every departments as the main force for implementation so
that we can ascertain the responsibilities and tasks in all levels of our
workforce. To ensure the successful implementation of our ESG measures,
the collection and reporting of ESG-related information data will be handled
by designated staff dispatched form the ESG taskforce with members from
the legal department, production department, administration department,
human resources department, finance department, internal audit department
and purchase department, the ESG working group is responsible for reporting
to the management regularly.
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Responsible for evaluating, collating and managing ESG risks; Ensuring
the Company to establish suitable and effective ESG risk management
and internal control system; and Reviewing the ESG policies and

EES8 5T EEVUEEESGRER  BRADRLSEERNESGE
BERAREZRS ) FHESGHERKRE

Executing ESG risk management and internal control; Guiding the work
of the ESG working group and reporting to the Board
ESGHITZESR EHTESGRKRER R AFEE | EEBESG/MATEY

To arrange designated staff to handle the collection and reporting of
ESG-related data; Reporting to the management on a regular basis
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group attaches great importance to communication with stakeholders
and encourages stakeholders to participate in and supervise the development
and implementation of ESG strategies. We actively establish multi-faceted
communication channels to contact our stakeholders. Under this two-way,
transparent and regular feedback mechanism, we can appreciate their
concerns and regularly review the effectiveness of our related actions.
Through these, we can communicate with stakeholders to learn about the
issues of their concern, and regularly reviews effectiveness of the actions to
improve communication channels and fully reflect the views of the
stakeholders. The following sets forth issues of concern to different groups of
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stakeholders during the reporting period:

Groups of Communication channels/
stakeholders Issues of concern Feedback form Frequency/Number of times
= AR ERABINETERE BERE REHFRX BERE
Shareholders/ Operation Results — Annual General Meeting Annual General Meeting is held once a
Investors Food Safety — Investors Conference year; Investors Conference is held
— Result Announcements Meeting  irregularly
— Press Release/Announcement
— On-site Research and Investigation
BRERREE RERE — BRKRE RERGHFEIT X REERE
Bmir —REERES g RERSRRAERT
— XEume
— MERnE
— RISEH
Government Food Safety — On-site Research and Investigation Irregular
Departments Integrity and Honesty — Meeting
BURFEB M RmEE — RIS N 5E B
MIEFRE — g%
Suppliers Supply Chain Management ~ — On-site Research and Investigation Irregular
Food Safety — Supplier Assessment regular
HpER s E R — RIG T TiEHA
BmiE — HEEEX £ HA
Staff Employee’s Rights — Staff interviews Irregular
Remuneration and Benefits ~ — Internal Email/hotline
— Internal WeChat Public Account
— Employee Satisfaction Survey
— Employee Complaint QR Code
BT BT #= — BTE#* TEHA
HrirE R — NEBEE,EEE
— AEMRIE DR
— BIREERS

— BTRF—4H

~
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Groups of Communication channels/
stakeholders Issues of concern Feedback form Frequency/Number of times
Rz AR ERABINEIERE BERE REFRX R RE
Community/ Green Production — On-site Research and Investigation Irregular
Organizations/NGOs Food Safety — Conference
rEAL HES Ge4E — RIS T HA
FEBUFAE A8 BmEe — ik
Medias Food Safety — Press Release/Announcement Irregular
Product Tracing — Interview
— Meeting
Hee BmE® — MERnE e HA
E B — &
— 8%
Customers Food Safety — Online Promotion and Release Irregular
Food Nutrition and Health — Offline Promotion
— Contact Through Telephone/Email
— WeChat/Weibo
— Questionnaire
— Symposium
BE RmEE — R e HA
RmesiiEE — RBTHEEY
— BFE BT
— s/ tiE
— M5
— %
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Material Issues Analysis

In order to fully understand the concerns of various stakeholders on the
Group’s ESG issues, and to integrate them with our ESG management
strategy and policy formulation, we conducted a materiality assessment
based on media analysis, peer-to-peer benchmarking and interviews with
stakeholders. Our materiality assessment was implemented with two main
phases, as shown below:

Identifying potential ~ We identify potential material issues that reflect the
material issues impact of the Group’s business on economy,
environment and society, or that affect the
stakeholders’ assessment of and decision-making for
the Group by thorough inspections on media remarks,
benchmarking analysis and other relevant documents.

Prioritizing potential ~ We meet with our stakeholders to understand the

material issues priorities of each stakeholder’s concerns and arriving
at a materiality matrix that incorporated the Group’s
strategy and direction of development.

Based on the material issues analysis of 2017 and through the above
assessment process, the Group have identified 9 most material, 8 moderately
material and 3 less material ESG issues. These issues constitute a key part of
this report and relevant details will be disclosed herein.
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Importance towards the Group
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Integrity 11 Supply chain management
WIEERZ HrEmEER
Resource management 12 Product innovation
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Pollutant management 13 Food safety
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Carbon footprint 14 Food health
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Packaging materials 15 Intellectual property rights
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Employee rights 16 Product tracing
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Employee salary and benefits 17 Customer communication and service
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Employee development and training
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Employee care
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Occupational health and safety
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Customer privacy
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Social participation
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Public welfare and charity
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Integrity and compliance

We uphold the compliance with laws and regulations and the ethos of
integrity. We strictly abide by the relevant laws and regulations including but
not limited to the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Basic
Standards for Corporate Internal Control and the Interim Rules on Prohibition
of Commercial Bribery, and implement the Group’s “Anti-fraud Management
Rules” meticulously. Through incorporating fraud risk assessment into our
annual risk assessment at the beginning of each year, we are able to
strengthen the Group’s internal fraud risk control, and protect the legitimate
interests of investors while ensuring the steady development of the Group.
We have been actively maintaining a business environment of honesty,
integrity, and compliance.

We have established a permanent anti-fraud body to receive, investigate and
report any complains of corruption (whether anonymous or otherwise) and
put forward handling suggestions (educational or punitive measures)
according to our Anti-fraud Management Rules under the direction of the
Board, the supervisory committee and the audit committee.

While continuously improving the anti-fraud system, the Group also attaches
great importance to the construction of anti-fraud capabilities of our
employees. We organize trainings on relevant laws and regulations and ethical
professional conducts and enhances employees’ anti-fraud awareness.
During the reporting period, the Group did not have any corruption lawsuit
cases.

In the attitude of being responsible to consumers, we strictly abide by the
laws and regulations and national standards such as the Advertising Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the General Rules for the Labelling of
Prepackaged Foods, and the General Rules for Nutrition Labelling of
Prepackaged Foods to protect consumers’ right to know and to choose. We
have established an information review system comprising of the R&D
department, purchasing department, quality inspection department, legal
department, brand department and others, to review our product label,
promotional document, website information, advertisement, etc. prior to
product launching or advertising. Careful audits are performed to ensure the
legal compliancy of our product labels and marketing practices.
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Performance of Honor BERE

Through continuous efforts, the Group was recognized by the government, HREBBBTEBNESTRKEABNT /7% - &
industry, media and other sectors of the society. During the reporting period, BEZ%udt & & AMRE - MEHRN - KEFESEH
part of the recognitions and honors received by the Group is as follows. BB RAIFNEEENT o

Part of the honorary awards received in 2018

2018 F T AP 0 SR B 2275

Listed in the Top 100 Chinese Brands
ANEPE RS R REEE

Ranked in the forefront of the 2018 Chinese light industry brand classification brand value rankings
BB 2018 F W TATE MR D FAH Bl g EEH TR

Won the “Investment Value Brand of the Year” award

B [FEREBEMME ] 28

Doubendou was awarded the 12th China Food Industry Rising Star “Excellence Contribution in Category” Award
SARRE[Et _EhEAamEXKRCE] mBElERE

Doubendou participated in the China International Organic Products Expo and won the Gold Product Award
SAT2ERTBEERARENEESUREER SR

Doubendou was awarded as one of the 2018 influential brands.

SARTRE2018FFE N

Doubendou soy milk (original favor) and Doubendou organic soy milk won the iTQi international food and beverage industry
“Superior Taste Award”.

SATRKREY  SAT AT NEEREREREREFEMRTQ R R MR TETER SR A HE [ Superior Taste Award ]
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29 - ZHARME EURBME (25 )

2018 China Food Industry Rising Star 2018 China Food Industry Rising Star
“Investment Value Brand of the Year” Award “ Excellence Contribution in Category” Award
018FHEREmMEXENE E [FEREEBERE] 818 2018 FHERREXKKT E [mBEHER ] 818
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Gold Product Award of the 12th China International Doubendou soy milk (original favor) won the iTQi international
Organic Products Expo food and beverage industry “Superior Taste Award”.
ET_EPRIBERERENTESER SR TART RK S §) S BB EIR & n B RYEEFTITQI

AR RERR T E TR R ER K 82 [ Superior Taste Award |

Doubendou organic soy milk won the iTQi international food
and beverage industry “Superior Taste Award”.

OATHRTINEERERKEREFEANTQH AR MR
BT ZETB A EBR K 22 [ Superior Taste Award | /
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ENSURING BOTH QUALITY AND NUTRITION OF
PRODUCTS TO HELP SHAPE PEOPLE’S
PHYSICAL WELL-BEING

The Group has adhered to the philosophy of “Creating Quality Product” at all
time and constantly produce high-quality, safe and nutritious food for
customers. We strive to meet customer’s needs, facilitate top-quality and
healthy living and contribute to national health.

Food quality and safety

As the saying goes, “food is the paramount concern of the people and safety
is the paramount concern for food.” The Group always place “quality first” at
the starting point of our planning and actions, and regards food safety as a
top priority of our work. We strictly abide by the Food Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Regulations on the Implementation of the Food Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other national laws and regulations. Our
quality control policy follows the principle of “being conscious at the outset,
gaining control of the source, having attention to detail, placing focus on the
process, conducting inspection as safeguard, and striving to ensure safety”
s0 as to improve our food quality and safety management system constantly
and achieve a comprehensive supervision “chain” from farm to kitchen.
During the reporting period, the Group did not have any product recall.
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We continue to improve the screening of new suppliers and the assessment
and management processes of existing suppliers. In order to ensure the
quality of raw materials, our purchasing is managed mainly on a whole-group-
basis. All suppliers’ assessments are based on ISO and HACCP systems and
are evaluated on multiple aspects such as supplier quality, price, delivery, and
reputation. We classify raw materials into three categories (A, B, and C)
according to level of risk. Every year, we conduct food safety risk
investigations on all raw materials used by our suppliers. Through these
measures we are able to realize efficient hierarchical control, while placing
quality and safety-first right at the beginning. If any problems are found, we
will conduct on-site verification and technical discussions with suppliers, and
work with them to solve the problem. We also require suppliers to comply
with the Group’s Code of Business Conduct.

During the reporting period, we have completed on-site inspections of new
suppliers, suppliers which experienced major changes or involved in major
quality problems, and Class A high-risk suppliers in accordance with the “On-
site Supplier Audit Rules”. We also commenced on-site guidance or training
with our suppliers on specific quality control issues.

Improvement on supplier social responsibility requirements
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The Group wish to work with its business partners to promote social responsibility. When assessing suppliers, in addition to the
usual factors such as quality and price, we will also incorporate the supplier’s efforts on environmental protection and labor rights
protection into the assessment scope so as to encourage and promote suppliers to implement the Group’s ESG philosophy.
During the reporting period, based on our “On-site Supplier Audit Rules”, we increased our level of inspection on wastewater
treatment during on-site supplier audit, comprehensively reviewing and recording their sewage treatment hardware facilities,
sewage treatment processes, compliance with emission standards, and environmental protection requirements. Suppliers with
problems are required to make corrections.

REEFERMEGERH —EHDHEEMEESR - AMESZEERN - RTRE  BREEHERIN - EgHEERNR
RIEAAR S TRAREEIAADZZEES - ALRSEFHESHEDERARENESCER - MEHA - AHER
RSEZAND RER  BAERSHEREERE N T HHEHISKEENES  (O5KEREHRME - )5/KERELIE -
ERHEER RRERFEBEASHEETHEANEMCE  WERFEMBNEEREITER
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As of 31 December, 2018, the Group had a total of 852 suppliers, including — # £ 20184 12 A31 H » ANEE A EFG852
411 suppliers of raw and auxiliary materials. The distribution of suppliersis as & » HR#MEHEERE41 R - HEF O MIE
follows: SR PR ¢

verseas

=2l
2
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We take the initiative to introduce advanced management systems from  FHfIiEHRE AR NIMEENEIRER  EUiEs
home and abroad, and strive to establish and improve an all-round integrated & 757 — B2 (LG A S BB R o B E2018E 12 A
management system. As of December 31, 2018, the coverage of the Group’s 31 H » AEEMEEEZBEE NN TR -
management system is as follows:

2018 system coverage All-round integrated management system
2018FRAFERER 2HU-BLESEERA
Headquarter

B o om m m mmm—————

Headquarter and all subsidiaries

Organic product certification

& ] SRR R A=
en %\uE&%uBWE&ﬂ -_—— - - Ee Supplementary
e qu?@%r Halal product certification 7
fnoN=] - o o O O Ee o == . )‘%EEE:‘?\‘\-

Headquarter and 6 subsidiaries in
Chengdu, Jinan, Hubei, Jilin and Guangdong BRC Global Standards for Food-safety Added Strength
fEB R ARE R ML - BRCERZ22HIEEBR IES

T EREKMBAR o -

Headquarter and Gua@ngdong SUbSiqif‘Ey Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point Enhancement
RERERMBLE] - = = HACCPf2 & 47 S2Ra g IR i B8 2 25

Headquarterigr;‘d all]\sgbsidie/ziie_s ISO 22000 Food Safety Management System
RELEHHBAR - — ISO 22000RAE 2 EEHE A

Headquarter and all subsidiaries ISO 14001 Environmental Management System

BHEREHMBAT - - Foundational

ISO 14001 B3R ERE R
Headquzgggr 1ISO 9001 Quality Management System 2
mER m=m————— ISO 9001 EEEEERA

J
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We continuously improve our top-down food safety monitoring system and
establish a separate monitoring system for each critical control point to
ensure that every critical control point is under control. We continue to
strengthen the external and internal sampling and testing mechanisms and
improve the quality control capabilities of responsible departments and
personnel at all levels of the Group including our quality control departments,
the Company’s quality control testing centers, and workshop quality control
officers. We have a total of 17 testing centers equipped with testing
equipment with quality at the highest level internationally. Currently, our
analysis capabilities cover products such as cakes, bread, biscuits, puffed
foods, vegetable-base protein drinks, health foods,
tea-base drinks, herbal teas, fruit and vegetable juices,
and raw materials, with nearly 160 test indicators

BATEHEB LM I RMLTBEEER &
Y ERSESI B R R AT - ARREISE
I EL RN AEARAE o RATREIRIMBEEMA
AR THRSAKERER - A7
mERATL  EHREEERXERBFILIM
ABHRIZERESN - HAKB 17RO L - BE
TBFRTRR MK F oyl - BATS ARY

e N3 | BF  EWEALE R
PEEBAEERATSRS RRG - R REE
EREUTEN

RETHE S ERMER
" amsanermenunso R T 160 B 4% R 45
ZEBAlgEh - BRERR

I, oS LI

e ]

including microbes, plasticizers, heavy metals,
pesticide residues, and melamine, which are of
concern to the public. Thus, we are able to provide
precise and solid support to and guarantee for our
quality management. During the reporting period, the
Group’s testing center obtained the laboratory
accreditation certificate from CNAS, reflecting that our
quality control capability has reached national level.

Informationization of food quality testing

RRmERAESL

RO - 2BACA

zmzz Fom BERE - -F
- RRBEE  ARBEE
el 17 (ORI DA

RE - HEHR - AKE
BRFLERETHPESEFERRIRAIZE
GCNASHWERERAIEE - miFENEET
BIZK AR AT -

During the reporting period, the Group’s online quality inspection system FOSS system was fully launched, which ensures that
the maintenance of operation model for inspection instrument, monitoring of data, and control of quality. It can also guarantee
that quality indicators of each subsidiary are always apprehensible. and the situation is improved. Our ability to informationize and

standardize food quality control has thus increased.
HEHN AEBENEERERAIRAFOSS R L4
2 8 P s 1 B 8 R PR BB 1 R E m E SRR IR IR B

We have established a quality promotion and education system to increase
employees’ product quality awareness. By way of video conferencing, quality
control personnel of every workshops can receive training regarding relevant
laws and regulations, special requirements and new product projects. At the
same time, we proactively cooperate with the local food inspection institutes
to send internal quality control staff to participate in external local level training
as well as national level training such as microbial traceability, control and risk
identification, etc.

ARERAR RS R B A 4R - BUR T ERE
RETRAEEEERERICAMRELEN -

BERE - gt

HPEZEESEHE  MAHETHEZHN
EEMFITHE - RfPRBREASZENTA - H
BETIHNGREABETHREZRER HRE
SKUA KR EE IR B Vs ol - [R)BS5 FE A B 48 2 B 3
RimBBAAE  BEAMREAS2EIE
RSB NARMEDHIR - ZH R EREEET
E B R AR -
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Research and development for innovation

The Group attaches great importance to product research and development,
and has established a comprehensive product development system.
Grounded on the product R&D center and product R&D team, the Group
continuously enhances its research and development capabilities and
increases its development efforts in breakfast-related products, leisure
products and beverages to meet the various needs of consumers at different
times. During the reporting period, the Group invested a total of RMB58.66
million in R&D innovation, an increase of 6.8% compared to 2017.

The Group has fully utilized the capability of its workforce and continued to
strengthen our technological creativity to conserve energy, reduce emission,
stabilize product quality, enhance operational efficiency, and strengthen
technological innovation. We fully tap into the talents of our employees,
mobilize our self-agency, and actively carry out technological innovation and
improvement within the Group. During the reporting period, we applied for 67
invention patents and utility model patents at home and abroad, and obtained
39 certificates and 2 authorizations.

W s Rl

rEESEERERME BT —EXEBMNE
MBS R - DA BT E L ME R EEE A
i THIGRIAEE D - MAERE - KN
EaMS = EnNRENE - DURE TR
HEENTRBR - REHA - REBEFTIRA
AR 5,866 8 C AR EEAIFT - FHE R 2017 F
#INT 6.8% °

NEBMPEHBRIFEE TaEH  HEMBRITAIF -
NEREERY BEEMEENRALENG
WE R - FHEINRINAIR - RS ZWET
WEESE  BAEEHEDHE  EAEEHERN
TEIRBAR AT AIFT N E TIE - SEBM - FiFH
EREAINERERNME AN ERE67E B
EFEG9IE - BIEEE2IA -

Development of innovative system

BRI &

Product R&D
Emifa

Establish and implement a complete set of
R&D processes involving product planning,
laboratory R&D, trial production, R&D validation,
product evaluation, and product R&D conclusion

BUWHT [EmRE  BREWH -
Emas - FRmE - EmmeT

EmREE] N -BEWHRE

To meet various needs of customers at
different times, enhance the competitiveness
of the Group, and take on the leading position in
development direction in the industry through
product research and development

ERERMRETRRKERZEETE
FR - BBEERF D SIBTERESM

Technological innovation

B 1 Rl #

Actively carry out independent innovation,
introduce technology and joint venture projects,
increase investment and increase patent
application and improve patent management

HEBR B X AIH - SIERMANSE
MREE - MARADELTEER

RRNERE

To improve energy conservation and emission
reduction, stabilize product quality and improving
operational efficiency through technological
innovation in order to ensure our advantageous
position in the industry

BIBE AR R R - BREER
HENRALENS  BRITEEZHL
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Innovations in beverage-related equipment

RRR BRI X E T

During the reporting period, the Group actively carried out innovations in beverage-related equipment and gained fruitful results.
We received nearly 700 proposals from our subsidiaries for rectification and innovation of beverage-related production
equipment, 86 of which were promoted and implemented, resulting in a positive impact on the Group’s equipment innovation
and improvement work. At the same time, we have rewarded outstanding proposers and heads of relevant subsidiaries to
encourage more employees to participate in technological innovation and improvement.

HEHN AEEREREEKHRBEFELE RS TEERR - HMAKIISHE AR BN EERBREBERN
MEFTHIEERIT 7004 - KPS0 RRIBERFIIEEZEE - UEBERBAFN NELFELETERYE - R - HMHESRERA
FARRAM B AR B E AT T 28 - SBE 26 8 T2 MR EEE -

We strictly abide by the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, the — BAIEI&EF(hZE AR KMBZFPE) (FEA
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Copyright Law of the ~ RIMBIEEE) (h#E AR KB ZERE)E
People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations regarding ~ FBERBBAERER - TE TEMBERRE
intellectual property rights, and improve our intellectual property protection — FEIEHIE - WAERR T RILM A BERED
and management system constantly. While ensuring that we do not infringe R » E#R TS R RILHMIHMBERE - 18
on the intellectual property rights of others, we also promptly protect our ~EAKBEFERMEE Bl KT HESEE
intellectual property rights through legal measures in a timely manner when — &R EITT AR - RGUEEFRAER S 5 HH
there are infringement and defamation against our Group, disruption of ~ EREFITETNETR - MEHA - RABE AL
market order and violation of consumer rights. During the reporting period, — ## - HEBRNER T IR BILAREFENHER
we collaborate with public safety agency and discovered and processed three %o

cases of infringement of trademarks against the Group.
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Nutrition and health

Due to the continuous increasement of national income, the demand for
nutritional health products is growing. Relying on the thorough understanding
of market trends, the Group has continuously launched low-sugar, low-fat,
low-sodium, and organic nutritional health products. In 2018, we promoted a
series of “natural and no additive” Doubendou soy milk product and the
Meibeichen breakfast products to better meet national demand for fresh and

healthy breakfast.

Meibeichen bread series
EFRABRRY

Fresh, delicious and diversified bread products made with
nutritious raw materials, allowing consumers to enjoy high

quality and delicious fresh bread every morning.

g XK SRCNARER  RAZESFNRME
FHEESRBERMEZTXIBEN ONHHEAE

BRERERBANTEHIES  BRYUEEEERE
M ERBREA - AEBMEARETHBE
T AR HE (KR - KR - BERNESHEE
m e 20184  EMEHARA - EAN] HE
A RVNGMERNMEBZRFEFTEER B4
Him B REFMEMEREENT R -

Doubendou soybean milk series
NSRS LEY

Non-genetically modified soybeans are strictly selected
without the addition of flavors and preservatives. There are
three product lines — soy milk with no additive, soy milk
without added sugar, and organic soy milk certified by the
national authority.
BEFBERAKRT - TAMRBAERBNNREE - BE=XE
mAEY — BEEENINOZY - SRIEEOZY - BIRE
B EREN ARSI
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Customers’ rights

The Group strictly abides by the Consumer Rights Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China and continuously improves customer
communication channels and complaint handling mechanisms. We actively
communicate with customers through our official Weibo account, WeChat
public account, customer service hotline, customer conferences and various
marketing activities, and acquire customer’s opinions and feedbacks in a
timely manner. At the same time, according to the “Customer Complaint
Handling Mechanism”, we conduct meticulous and categorized management
of customer complaints according to the severity of the complaints to ensure
proper handling.

We attach great importance to customer information security and privacy
protection. We have established a set of corresponding customer privacy
protection measures, assigned clearances on related information, and strictly
control internal personnel’s use of information. At the same time, regarding
customer information involving express delivery, we hide the key information
of the customer to prevent customer information from leaking.

CARING FOR OUR EMPLOYEE TO FACILITATE A
BLISSFUL LIVING

We firmly believe that the development and progress of the Group cannot be
separated from the efforts and struggles of our employees and regards its
employees as one of the most important assets for the Group’s sustainable
development. We respect human rights, ensure that all employees receive fair
and impartial treatment, and strive to create a safe and comfortable working
environment as well as a sustainable career platform for employees through
the provision of competitive remuneration package, perfect promotion
mechanism, rich training content and practical care measures.

BEER

AEBEBRBET(REARKMBEEE EERR
&5 T TERTBRRBMNGREEHES -
BFBBELRE MEATR  TRAL B
BEEAGLEEM LD S REREIGEBEETET
AR MEESEENERLARE - RSHMAE
ECEERFEETESE)  RIFRFF AR
BEiRE  HEFRFETHBALLORERE  BR
HERBBEFTRFME

BMSEEREENEL L2 ERIIRE 2T
THENBEERALRERES  SHRBESETE
RRE  BREEATABHREENHER - [
o ESMIEEERNRERE £ - R
FHRARE DETRERIE - BT ERME -

BAEEST  BIOFERERE

BMEEAKEHRERESHTHATHE
MEM - BETRATHEFERESNEE,
— BARMAIARRE - RMEEAR B
HREHE A TEEATHE - LBBRIER
FNNFUEE - EROBIRS - QEOBE
AERMDEOBIERE S0 AR TTE—ER
2 BN TERAT— BEBR A EROER
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112 Annual Report 2018



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - LB MERRE

Employment and labour rights

The Group strictly complies with laws and regulations such as the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China and the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and constantly improves its human resources
management. In order to fully protect labor rights and standardize
employment management in different regions, we have formulated the
“Human Resources Management Rules”, which provides detailed regulations
on all aspects of human resources management, and strives to reflect the
principle of openness, fairness and impartiality. We resolutely oppose
discrimination and treat candidates and employees of different genders, ages,
races, religious beliefs, gender orientations, etc. equally. At the same time,
the Group pledges not to use child labor and forced labor, strictly complies
with the Protection of the minors Law of the People’s Republic of China and
the Provisions on the Prohibition of the Use of Child Labor to prevent the
occurrence of employment of child labor and forced labor.

During the reporting period, we launched the OA (Office Automation) system
incorporated with human resource analysis, performance evaluation and other
functions, and greatly enhanced the Group’s human resources management
level.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 37,313 employees. The
charts below show the distribution of our employees by type:

BIEES TR

AEEBRRET(REARKMBEL B E) (P E
ARKMBESE A RE)FEEERLERNE
il TEHTEEANERERE - REDRELS T
a3 DA R Rl s B0 R 1R B AR - RAAIHIE
TAANBEREEFE)  HANBEREEHNSE
HEE T FHANSE - IREBRAR  2F
RIEMAARA - HAIBRREER - AR
A Fik o iR REED - MERIEUAFHERE
FEMETE BRI - Ay BAEBESP
ZEARAMBERKFAREZ AL ERETR
) MBETIHEAMEE S TIESNAEL -

WEBRA - K FE—FE/ 8 B2 (Office
Automation, OA) 247 * 8RA T ANBIRDHT - &
WMEBNFEE - KNRRATAEBOANERE
KT -

HZE2018F 12 A31H ' A£EEHEEE T 37,313
A BERMSHERI TR

By gender By grade By age
oy ezl ki 786 b3 ¥zl ki 859 RERD M
14,955 9,346 7,430 15,159 ® 30 and below
= Male ‘ ® Senior management ’ ’ 30E R AT
M BREEE " 3140
I;:e%ale u !ntgrmediate and 21 ngﬁ
junior management 41-508%
PR AR EEE 51 and above
22,358 Junior frontline 51 Bk
27,181 dunior fron 13,865 AR
HE-#8T

The Group has established a turnover rate target for its subsidiaries. If a
branch exceeds the warning line of the turnover rate, the headquarters will
investigate further, identify the problem and resolve it in a timely manner to
ensure the healthy operation of the Group.

AEBEHEWMBRARRILTRAXRER - BB
NEBBRREERE R et —FPHE &
FREEMERR  BRABNRIES -
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Remuneration and Benefits

The Group implements a people-oriented management philosophy, respects
employees and values the contributions that employees bring to the Group.
The compensation and employee welfare management system (as defined in
the “Human Resources Management Rules”) stipulates that an employee’s
remuneration shall be set and adjust according to the evaluation result

comprising of indicators such as performance, attitude and skills, so that the
employees’ value can be realized in a fair and equitable way. While
safeguarding the regular welfare of all employees, we listen carefully to the
needs and opinions of our employees and strive to provide more humanized

benefits.

General
Benefits

EREN

~

Five social insurances
and the housing fund
and welfare funds

TR—ERENES

Paid annual leave,
home leave, marriage
leave, maternity leave
and other vacations
THER - TERMR
B ERERS

Assignment
allowances,
transportation
allowances, meal
allowances, night shift
allowances, overtime
allowances, etc.
SMIORRE  33BIERL
RRIERY - WPDERL

PR d

FIRER

FEEERUAARTNERES GEETIE
BEIRAEETROEE - HPECANER
EEIRHIE )T AR T HEEE TEMNEEHE -
MEABTEUEME SPEN  SPEE 5
PR FERGEAERE TR - WREF (M4
RETHAE  AFREMBRETIHNEERR -
BMERERE2EETERBHORE - Ao
BEREIFRNER  SHREREHRES AL
SRR

Other Benefits

H b3 F

¢ Free physical

e Sending gifts to the

~

examination

RERR

employees in major
holidays
BEAGBRAEARET
BHRETBER

e Employee
dormitories are
provided with a gym,
theater, KTV and
other entertainment
facilities, providing
employees with
high quality facilities
for entertainment
BIBEEHRERSE
SBR - KTV RS
it

J
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Employee Care and Communication BEEIR

The Group places emphasis on employee communication. We will do our  AEE—HUARSEEREE TR R - WA
utmost to respond to the reasonable demand of our employees and try to  fEEEE THAEEZSk - AOARBETHEEFERT
solve problems arising from their lives and works. During the reporting period, — {EFRHIREIRE - SREHEIA - AEFEBRBEPETH
through the organization of employee care and communication activities, B FIEE) - BEPHATMAERM BHET
renovation of office and living facilities, construction of employee service REHOARBREE THSEHET NS FHFEIEE
centers, and implementation of employee satisfaction surveys and complaint ~ PO{E A E * 38 T/ TEAER R I AR EE Y
handling, employees were able to feel the Group’s care for everyone in their ~ F—1{EARBIIE -

working lives.

Improvement

Employee care of employees’

activities living facilities
BIRAE BI%E
=B R BE

Care and
Communication

MERXR

Employee care and communication activities
ETEENIREE

Each year, the Group’s headquarters and its subsidiaries hold a variety of employee care and communication activities, including
employee birthday parties, interest group activities, outdoor training, competitive games, fun activities, and festival-themed
activities. Through multi-level and multi-faceted group activities, we enrich our employees’ lives and promote corporate culture,
group identity and integration while enhancing employee cohesion, communication and teamwork. In addition, the Group focuses
on groups of employees who have been experiencing difficulties. When such difficulties come to our attention, the headquarters
and subsidiaries’ unions will help the employees through organizing donations and hardship assistance.

REEBPNFZMBEBATSFHERVASHENETIATNNES -  BFET4AR S  BE/AES  PIMNER - B8
EE) - BIKIRER) SR FREEHEF - HMBBEER - SHUMNEREE - LR E TR - GERMIERE KB IER
NERN  BEETAE  RECEXRRAERA Btz AEESHEETAHEE THE  ERBIETARERN 2
HRENBARIGHSBBABBER
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Improvement of employees’ living facilities

BT ASERBEGE

To provide employees with a more comfortable and convenient living environment, we combined the information derived from
interviews with employees and investigations on employees’ demands and launched improvement plans on employees living
facilities during the reporting period. The improvement plan includes: providing drying racks in the corridors in employee
dormitories, adding aluminium alloy windows, providing vending machines, laundry machines in employee living areas, adding
utensil cabinets in canteens, building separate bathrooms and so on.

RTHEIREFNTFEEMNNEBRR KNG EIFANE IR AL - EREFHNHEE THEREBCETE - 2o
FES K BEIESEMERRRE HE6eEP BREiRBEADSER HRE REIEREAMREE WAMEE
RETE(ES

Establishment of employee service center

BIRBHLER

The Group established an employee service center for employees. Its internal facilities and equipment include supermarkets, KTVs,
gym rooms, table tennis rooms, water dispensers, microwave ovens, refrigerators, first aid boxes, wireless network, irons,
umbrellas and so on. It also provides services including coin exchange, provision of electric locks and medical rooms and daily
necessity lending. We hope that the aforesaid facilities and services can satisfy employees’ need as much as possible, building a
safe and comfortable shelter for employees.

REBERETIRJRETIRBH L ANRBETRS KV 25F « EERE - FUKE - HURIE - k8 - BSERE  BEH
® AR MRSERRBNRG  BIREEEHRE  SFRXE BEXNE SERREESREIER - HMFLEU LFEM
REIEBeEHEEMEETINERER  RELITE—EARE  RERNBIEN -

Employees’ satisfaction investigation and complaint handling
ETREERERRFEE

As the Group highly values employees’ satisfaction, its headquarters and subsidiaries regularly arrange for investigation by experts
as to employees’ satisfaction; the investigation is conducted by interviews, surveys and so on, which enable us to listen to
employees thoroughly. Meanwhile, we have established a complaint hotline and a complaint QR code through which employees
may provide feedback and file complaints, and the relevant problems will be investigated and dealt with by the personnel
department of the headquarters and the employee service group.

AEESEEREINMEE  ABNZWEATEMLHIARTELREERAS - BBAHHK HEHEESZHEARAZHEM
BEEE B THLE o [ - BPRZEPIMRFRENIIRF 405 - B T @RAETREMIEF _#HETER REMNIZF - 18
BRIRE B ASHNE TARE DNEEITHAEN KRR -
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Training and Development

The Group firmly believes that talents are one of the most valuable assets of
the enterprise and constitute its competitiveness. In order to enhance the
professional knowledge and skills of employees and their overall quality and
improve work quality and performance to meet the requirements of the
Company’ strategic development, we have constantly improved the employee
training and management system, optimized the training process, improved
the training management and implementation system and established the
training feedback and results assessment mechanism. During the reporting
period, the Group determined the key points of training for 2018 and
formulated and implemented the annual training plan in view of the training
interviews and training needs surveys conducted by each department. We
introduced online training mode to certain project training, so that employees
from each subsidiary may be trained at the same pace. During the reporting
period, the Group recorded 50,700 trainees, 9,365 training hours and training
coverage rate of 90.2%.

Total number of trainees
HIEE AR

m 2017 wm2018

BB R

AEEBREASROENZLBENANSZEEE
WBEZ— - BTRFBEINZEEMBRAEME
BETRE RealffE2MEsNEEASER
MBREREER  ROTH S8 TEHIIEEH
B BIEIRE Rl EEmER
BV R R A o SREBAN - A%
S SBPINEIFATIEINERLASL - #E
2018 FIFH B - BT FEBIFEL FUAE
Mo BPIE Mo BEEIISEREEIIAFN '
REMBATEIMRIZEI - REEMR - K&
B15 548 A RES0,700 AKX - #B1ETIRF$13£9,365
B RFITEEREQ0.2% °

Total hours of training

gD

R

~

ENBEREEERLT / £ 2018 117



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RS g RERRE

\_

New employees
MET

Themed training (on-site and online)

HREEI GRS MEH)

Project training
=R

As the influence of the Group’s brand continues to grow, we have a growing
demand for top-class talents. In 2018, we enhanced our recruitment of each
type of high-end talents and establish efficient occupational development
path for employees, laying a firm foundation for the long-term growth of the
enterprise. We also set up internal channels for cross-department transfer so
that employees may find a suitable post within the Group.

The Group clearly stated the promotion management procedures in the
“Human Resources Management Rules”, allowing all employees to develop
their careers with a fair promotion system. Promotion management
procedures regulate the necessary conditions of promotion and post
transference and the division of relevant management duties, and base
promotion and post transference on assessments conducted in multiple
ways. We will regularly and consistently implement promotion plans, and
employees who have made special contribution to the Group or who have
excellent performance may be promoted at any time.

Induction training

ABIEFI

One-on-one training with tutors

BENE S — 157

Food safety training

Rmi 2l

Production safety training

L EEE

Fire safety talks and drills

HYT 2 2 R AR R R BRI

Risk knowledge training

Jee\ B S0 5 5|

Business ability training

bl

Occupational quality training

BEEEE

Middle and senior management
skill enhancement

P EEE IR R

Occupational quality training

BEREE

BEEAREMEEENNTEES  HMAE R
AT BT RIFHE A - 2018 FRFIMAZES
AT WSIENE  ERTZBERNB TR
FRE AEENRBRRETHENER -5
TREIRNBEMRE  HAEET T HBPIRE
HPEEFIREREE PR THESERKIE
BABCHMEA -
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118 Dali Foods Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2018



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HelkEams

Employees’ occupational development channels
ETRXRRBE

Chief officer
e

Business head or manager

BT ERRE

Frontline staff
—88T

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group has always cared for the occupational health and safety of its
employees as we believe that ensuring a safe and healthy workplace is the
most fundamental support an enterprise should provide for its employees. We
strictly comply with the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Occupational Disease Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China and Measures for the Administration of Contingency Plans
for Work Safety Incidents and other laws and regulations of the PRC. Insisting
on the principle of “safety first, prevention-oriented and comprehensive
treatment”, we fully enhance our occupational health and safety management,
improve our regulation system and safety standards and implement the
responsibility for production safety and accountability. The Group formulated
a series of production safety management measures such as the “Emergency
Preparation” and “Response Control Procedure”, the “Control Procedures for
Work Environment”, the “Control Procedure for Identification and Evaluation
of Environmental Factors”, the “Control Procedure for Facilities and
Equipment”, the “Regulations for Electrical Protection and the Fire Control
Management Rules”. Meanwhile, we made determinations on hazard source
identification, risk assessment and control measures, set up a risk map,
implemented “5S™ Site Management Approach and equipped with necessary
worker-protection items.

! 5S represents “SEIRI”, “SEITON”, “SEISO”, “SEIKETSU”, “SHITSUKE”

Employee promotion procedures
ETIEARR

Induction

RAEHH

Transference formalities

BRXFHE

_E
|
T
|

Announcement of appointment

EWAT

|

Elect individuals
REAE

Promotion assessment

BAER

|

Recommend suitable candidates (internal
recommendati self-recommendation)

HESEARRERHE)

Confirm proposed promotion position
EEREA BN

BERERZE

AEBERRBIBTHNRERERAZ S - HAR
RERZERENTESMREREZR/B TR
HOREANRE - RARBET(REARK
MBEZ2EEX) (hEARKMBERBERA
ENEEREFRERAREEINE) EHZE
RER BRI22%— BH AL  HEARE]
M ZEMNRBERFENLZ2ER  TER
ERHERLZEERE  FER2AEREANELE
B AREFIE T (EEEMERIZFIZF)
(ITEREEHIRF) CGREREFEH A LT E 25
R CRIE - REEHIRT) CRE &S E )M
CEMEREHE)E—RINL2EETEIE - [
- HPIRRRERRIRYE - Bl EME S
i EERME - BT [68'] MIGERE A
FefmERBR MM

T [5SJ#E (%2 (SEIRI) ~ 1B (SEITON) * /&% (SEISO) *
/B2 (SEIKETSU) + %% (SHITSUKE))

~

J
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The Group not only improved the system construction and procedure control,
but also enhanced the ability of maintaining occupational health and safety. In
order to promote personal and workplace health and safety among our
employees and spread safety culture knowledge, the Group regards trainings
on workplace health and safety as the key annual training, proactively
organize monthly safety production activities, conduct safety supervision
events from time to time. For example, our quality control team will conduct
comprehensive and professional inspection on the workplace environment
every six months; each of the subsidiaries shall conduct a monthly whole-
plant safety inspection, and assign a specific person to follow up to ensure
the safety of employees, work partners and visitors.

During the reporting period, the Group has not experienced any lethal events
in relation to our workplace.

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT TO HELP
BUILD A GREEN FAMILY

The Group adhered to the principle of “priority to environmental protection,
pollution control, energy saving and consumption reducing and sustainable
development” as a guideline, with the aim to protect the environment and
resources to the maximum extent, and to promote civilized development
within the PRC. During the reporting period, the Group deployed a total of
RMB14.41 million in environmental protection, representing an increase of
16.96% compared to the previous year.

Environmental Management

The Group strictly complied with laws and regulations such as the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Air
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China. We establish the “Operation Control Procedure” for the
Environmental Management System, continuously enhance the internal
environmental management ability and optimize the environmental
management system. The Group’s headquarters and all its subsidiaries have
all attained ISO 14001 authentication on environmental management system,
laying a solid internal management foundation for us to materialize sustainable
business operation.

AEEMETE T HIEZRMBIZIEH - R IR
MBTBERFEZE2NENER - RIESET

BSMERRETE2EHR  ERTE2UEAH
REBBBERRNZ 252 AEFHEIIE
o BRABRLTEEEREE - FHSTERE
TEEEREIE L flun: SEREBETFEF
ET—ARREXEGEARE  SHBAREAE
TEMEZERE X WREARMER - LAt
RIRBETL - BERHURGENRE o

WEHA  AREYARBERTERBEMETH
=

RERER  PWHRERE

REBEFHIRRESL 5554 - E0eefEE -
BEZR|ERBRIEEHH & ARERER
BHER  BHERERENARESR - MEHA
REERREARLFARE1 4N BT BEF
1K 16.96% °

tlvh—ii

AEBEBRBET(PEARRAMBEREREER)
(PEARAMBERRSRGREI(PEARK
FMEIKEREAZE) (P AR KB E 8 REYS
AREPEE) (P EE/\E#%H BUIRIBRETE)

FRER - BIETCREERBRAETIES
REF) Tiﬁ“hﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬂ%t%ﬁﬁﬁu CEERE
ERER ARBEEAREHHELRHCES

ISO 14001 IRIEE R RRE - BRELRDHEAF
BISEIT TERENNEE R ER -
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We have adopted a series of environmental management measures  FfIIRRGRIBEIRE ZAVETIRGIRRF )R T
according to the “Operation Control Procedure” for the Environmental —— ZJIRIBEIBIENE - FEIREK - BERIA N EE
Management System to ensure our waste water, exhaust gas and solid waste — EEV)EIZHERR - B RN AR ¢

discharge comply with the standards. Specific measures are as follow:

Exhaust Gas Management

BEREE

Gradually reduce coal consumption and the exhaust gas it emits, with the set target basically met currently
BEENREERE  ROREEREENER - BAIC KEATREERZ

Enhance exhaust gas management, arrange for experts to thoroughly investigate the emission density

in fixed pollution areas

ISEEER BN ERE - HEE SRRERFREZHENETEENRE

Waste Water Management
BEKER

Enhance waste water disposal control, arrange for fixed individuals and locations for special management
DUEREEKBERARS) - EAE SR EE

Adopt concentrated water management method, increase the efficiency and effect o waste water management
RASETAKIE  REBEKEERERMR

Quicken the upgrade and improvement of waste water treatment facility, such as the upgrade and improvement of
AO and the addition of internal circulation anaerobic reactors, enhance treatment ability,

ensure that the waste water produced meets the discharging standard

DNAREEKBRIBRRME A AR RS - A RBUERE T E(A0) T « P ABRBRERERS - BMEEED
TR B R GEAR AR

Sewage being led into the production waste water treatment station for treatment
HSESKEI NETE S K RIR T S R 1R

Addition of online supervision equipment by each subsidiary, including COD supervision equipment,

Ammonia Nitrogen testing equipment and testing sewage Turbidity with cameras, directly contact

environment protection control authorities to arrange for regular sampling investigation

D RGN ARESRIERAE - o (LB FHE(COD)ERIRME - SAMBIRME - WEE

ERHNBES - WHEMERREEMN - B

Separate and recycle solid waste according to the classification of hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste
o E R R YR R IR R Y A B E Y 5 | E B2

Hazardous waste such as automobile waste oil and acid and alkaline solvent drums being dealt with

in accordance with standard procedures

BREYMERE  BEAERS  RREEREZSZEE

Separately place non-hazardous waste and maximize recycling

EEREY D EHER - YR AREETERIRFIA

Raise employees’ awareness of environmental protection, control the production volume of solid waste

hse 8 TEREREE - RFERERINELS

During the reporting period, the Group discharged 5,152,162 tons of waste & HIA - AR5 B H)EE K BENE /45,152,162

water, recycled 46,231 tons of non-hazardous waste, representing 0.022  HEEREYEIWHIAE R 46,2311 - BT hamEE
tons of non-hazardous waste recycled per RMB10,000 of revenue, and ~ EE¥IEIFI A £ 40.02208, /&t - A8t
emitted 70.65 tons of nitrogen oxide. 2 Y2BERE 7R 70.651 ©

2 Nitrogen oxide is mainly emitted by boilers. 2 RA/EEREMHEER
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Energy Management

BERERE

Strictly complying with the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic 75 BIEF & B E A R EMBIEIQEERIE)
of China, the Group continues to optimize its energy management, set up an  TEFE(LELREIE - I TE LB B 1@ E X EH - &
assessment system regarding the energy target and strive to save energy and ¥ A SR BE T /E - 2018 4F - BB EBBE T
reduce emission. In 2018, we continue to increase energy utility rate and ~ Z/TEEEM MR MiokE - 22 RFAE -
reduce the carbon emission in production operations by improving our 524 BB A4 dh BE A OB BERR - B IRAE 2 BRI
administrative management and forwarding technology advancement, fulfiling — FAIEFEZRN S (FHEET -

our responsibility and obligation of tackling global warming.

Energy Saving and Emission Reduction Measures

B BE R BE 15

Administrative
Management

THREE

Technology
Advancement

Bti &

Set up a target assessment system to
assess the difference between the actual
energy use efficiency and the target

Continue to utilize energy regulatory
authorities, collect and analysis data of
energy consumption regularly, enhance
the management of daily usage of
electricity

Set up and implement the award system of
technology advancement to award the
technology advancement team

2YARERMG - FEERER
ERMEERRNEE

TH R EREREE E AP RRE
EHWE - DITREFRERIE -
mEAEREER

BIE L HEITRAMBUERBHIE -
RERUEK

Factories and production space
gradually replace their steam power
with that of nearby thermal power
plants, utilizing their residual power
and heat.

Commence the work of lowering
the temperature of cleaning water
by lowering its temperature from
over 80 degrees Celcius to over
30 degrees Celsius in order to
reduce the energy consumed by
heating the cleaning water

BE  £ESEMRBESIUAER
AEMNET  ARAAHRE

BB AAGRER R THE
{1 B 5 B 80K K E &K 2308k
BEE - BB RAKMEAKEER

ERE
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During the reporting period, the Group’s comprehensive energy consumption®
was 227,092.22 tons of standard coal, representing comprehensive energy
consumption of 0.109 ton of standard coal per RMB10,000 of revenue; the
Group’s greenhouse gas emission (Scope 1 and Scope 2)* was 719,113.76
tons of carbon dioxide equivalence, representing greenhouse gas emission
per RMB10,000 of revenue of 0.345 ton of carbon dioxide equivalence per
RMB10,000 of revenue.

Resource Management

We highly value the efficiency usage of water resources and packaging
materials and constantly optimize its resource management system. The
Group highly encourages the innovative work on resource saving and waste
recycling by employees and has set up awards for contributions to technology
advancement. In addition, the Group establishes a target assessment system
as to resource usage and get a clue of the conditions of resource usage
through regular reflection, thus increasing the efficiency of resource utility.

Water Resources Management

XEFREE

WMEBA - NEBLRS GEFER 5 227,002.22 [ 2
k% B U A R0 109MEZE /8 Tk
P AEERERE S (BB REED)
7,%719113 BH_ftREE BLUEAE
FEEHERE B0.345MF — AL E £ BT ©

BERERE

BMESEERKERRBEMBONERFE T

HEEEREEGNE AEBRKNESHE THER

,\Uﬁﬁ REEY) R _E R RIF T1E - BRI R fiT s

R ERENFE I o BRitb 2 oh - AEEEY T ERFER

HTT%V%%U BBETHREE - S ZEERE
BIER  IRAERERMNE -

. Constantly promote efficiency of water resources control department, enhance water consumption control
within local office and production and conduct enhanced water saving assessment
TEf B EREETPINEE » MR A BHMEEREAAKER - NsRE AAIBPIMNEKER

. Strict analysis on water consumption indicator for different products, carry out rectifying measure in case of any malfunction

BREAINTEERAKER  BRERE  RIFRRARIERE
e  Advertise water saving through notices and water saving labels

B0 & RETA KR IRE K NS EHE

. Replace existing water faucets with inductive faucets and install water-saving faucets in staff dormitories to save more water

SPMKEEEER R RBMES KGR - B TR RAEALUKEE - RAHKUR

. Enhance recycling of treated wastewater for toilets, landscaping and fire fighting and

other purposes efficiency of water resources

MAFKEIAAE - AREER - &k - B AKE - REKERFAR

. Upgrade techniques such as original CIP cleaning to reduce water consumption for cleaning; water will be filtered and
recycled to the raw water put for reuse after it is used in the production and filling workshops and

treated through reverse osmosis (RO) process

MATEAREGE - HlI0 : BEERMBR(CIP)IE » BRERNFEKE ; EEER

BB RN RZERO)BEMNKBEE W ZERKbERE BA A

Packaging Material Management

BEMEER

. Carefully select packaging material suppliers, gives priority to local packaging material, use recycle paper or

paper produced from fast growing forest

ERORRMER - EERBEAMRBARIE - GRAKTRABEIEEM

. Use “Tetra Pak” packaging for its “Doubendou” box packages. “Tetra Pak” packaging has been certified

by Forest Stewardship Council (“FSC”)

FATRIRRERFACBHINEEZESE(FSCRBNEFRRNFILBE

. Produce blow moulding plastic bottles, reduce the use of packaging material by redesigning bottle packing

BERZBERE - WEBRABR - RAREHOBREN

. On condition that the quality be guaranteed, enrich and optimize packaging structure,
continue the research on green package, reduce weight of packages such as cartons

ERBEEBNAIET @ SENELARAE  FERZOARME  RERELAXNES

. Adhere to the “reducing, reuse and recycling” (3R) principle, maximize recycling material usage
FRERERANA DRElt - BRANBREEER)] KA - AR EWE IR E W A

. Recycle plastic, finished barrel, metal, packing wastes and byproduct (scrap) and waste oil, process in downstream industry

HERRE  HRRE - 28 BE RE (BAR) FETER

8 Comprehensive energy consumption includes processing and production of food
products and beverage products.
4 Greenhouse gas emissions include processing and production of food products and

beverage products. Scope 1 greenhouse gas is mainly derived from direct energy
consumption — mainly natural gas; Scope 2 greenhouse gas is derived from indirect
energy consumption — mainly include purchased electricity and purchased steam.

op
[\

FRESRMMAREERMNTEE

2
A

2

¢ RERBHREERMNABEEMMNILE - €

—RERRIZERAERERER — TBARAR
BEREREXROMZERER — TEREIBE
hFSNEZER
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During the reporting period, the Group’s water consumption amounted to  ¥R&EHIR - A EE A/KE A 10,008,800 @ £ %
10,008,800 tons, while the packaging material® consumption amounted to  ##t5JHFEE A 312,100 ©
312,100 tons.

Water consumption per RMB10,000 of revenue Packaging materials consumption per
(tonnes/RMB10,000 of revenue) RMB10,000 of revenue (tonnes/RMB10,000 of revenue)
ExkzmAkE (M Brilkz) BrlsafmebEEeE (W8 xls)
4.99 ] 4.80
0.16
- 015
2017 2018 2017 2018
\ ° Packaging materials are mainly cartons and paper sheets. 5 EEMNETEAKENYE
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GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY TO HELP
BUILD A HARMONIOUS SOCIETY

The Group has been actively participating in various community activities to
so that the public would have a better understanding of our philosophies and
development. Since our founding over 20 years ago, while we have been
continuously developing our business, we always bear in mind that we are
duty-bound to fulfill our social responsibilities. By pressing ahead with
economic development, promoting employment and supporting for charities,
we live up to the principle of “giving back to society for what has been taken
from it”. We have been granted the “China Charity Prize”, the highest
accolade in philanthropy in China, by the Ministry of Civil Affairs twice. Mr. Xu
Shihui, Chairman of the Group, was included in the 2018 Forbes China
Philanthropist List.

Boosting the economy to alleviate poverty and help the
needy

As a sizeable food manufacturing enterprise, the Group has been increasing
its demand for raw materials and expanding its supply chain, which serves as
an important driving force in boosting local economic development and
increasing employment opportunities. In addition, we play an active role in
underprivileged peasants and continue to enhance the scale of “order-based
agriculture”. During the reporting period, we introduced the “order-based
agriculture” to the production of soybeans, peanuts and herbal medicine, so
as to ensure that the income of peasants would be kept intact despite price
fluctuations.

6 The “order-based agriculture” refers to an agricultural production-marketing model in
which the production of agricultural products is arranged based on the orders entered
into between peasants themselves or the rural organisations to which they belong and
the purchasers of their products. The Group has entered into orders with the rural
organisations to which peasants belong.

EItR4 S - By o MELE

REFREGLHELELSED @ FRARE INERE
RIS EBRE o A — 8 F - RFETE
BROENRN  RABKLBITLSET X8
HEQERR RERE  IRESFE AL
B 2 e - BIERAE - REMAEER
REHE TREEEREIE [REESE] AEH
EERFEHER 2018 FEE(EMEAT)2018F K
BER -

PENET - HREE

=

AEEELS—RAERMEE  EMHBLED
THRAMERBNOIRRTE R ESE L EE
BEmMpERE  BRSENHER - F
B RPEGERERRS B#EMK[FTER
X WBRE o REMARFIERIETNE ML
TRE - EEURPEESNIFTERE ] &
ERPORE I ZEBRKBNOTZE -

o [AIEREE: BEPREBEEAS AL AE
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EEM-EREEHNER - AEBERFAENHN
BERATATE -
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Philanthropic contribution to public welfare HOEE BHAH

The Group has always upheld the philanthropic spirit of Mr. Xu Shihui, AKEEWBRKFEEERFMELE[ELLXRHR
Chairman of the Group, to “give priority to the development of education and B E% - L5 EFPEEE | HARIES - 2018
promote virtues in traditional Chinese culture”. In 2018, we continue to focus £ » B FIEE A E LAE - EHEE - BE BT
on elderly, education and care for left-behind children in our charitable R E{EAZEE NN ED » WEMREIESHERE
undertaking. By capitalizing the opportunity of promoting our brand  &Z2# - EERFENEIEEIE @ B HE B ML
philosophy, we encourage people to adopt a healthy lifestyle and contribute  HZEAETNEE -

to the prosperous development of sport and culture.

Charitable donation

HERED

The Group has been promoting a culture of
respecting and helping the elderly. The ninth Old-
age Subsidy Presentation Ceremony was held in
70 Ooopeople Dali Century Hotel, Huian in 2018, where nearly
L) A 10,000 elders were granted the old-age subsidy.
The Group has granted the old-age subsidy to
e TR EESRNERITECE 70 000 elders in nine years of time and the number
granted the ?Id-age subsidy of its beneficiaries has been rising every year.
gfﬁﬁfﬁﬂim AR B S EH TR B AR - R 20185
EELENHLEERR [ ZENLEELOHES | B
WEN - RSB ZAMEZERRISERE L
WESL - REBIENFANM70,000 AXH)E A
mHES  WEEZRFEAXTER -
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In 2018, the 8th “Xu Shihui Educational
Foundation of Dali Group” Scholarship and
Education Assistance Award Ceremony was held
in Huian, Fujian, where teaching awards,
1 7 Ooopeople scholarships and grants of education assistance

) A amounting to RMB10 million in total were
granted. The foundation has been providing

Total number of teachers and

students who benefitted from fin.ancial support to the education field for 8 yee.lrs, T ‘
the scholarship with the total amount of grants reaching . _#4.,_'
el [l s et approximately RMB70 million, having benefitted /L E m 1000%}5' .
BERYPES 17,000 teachers and students. b= Anamrsn
RIAERAR 20184  [EFIEEFHEHEES | FiREE Y 5 v n

ZHBITT E\E BHEBE RS - AR
- RE - PESEI100ET - £ EPH
BEEXEREA/\FRE  RiBAERDHESR
7,000 7T + F & 17,000 E R0 A

From December 2018 to January 2019, the
Group once again contributed to the charitable
cause of family reunion by joining hands with
Southeast Television to launch the “Caring for
left-behind children and bringing love home”
1 O5Opeop|e activity, which was mainly held in Fujian and

y A further reached out to Hunan. Volunteers’ visits,
transportation ticket giveaway, reunion gift
Total number of left-behind packages and reunion meals were some of the
children to whom we have charitable activities held. The Group has given a

given ;E_ngﬂg Hand helping hand to a total of 1,050 left-behind

EaE children in realizing their dream of family reunion.

2018F 12 AE 20191 A - AEEEBEEH HHE
ER%zm - BaRmERARER [BROET &
EOR]E - UEBEAE - |IDHE - BITE
DR BEXEE - BEER  BERFART
B AEEMERHEI1,00E [BFRE | EH
HEZ -

/
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Charitable activities in the community
HEARES

B i 1

In response to the call from
Zhuang County’s government
for “extension of greetings at
the Chinese New Year,
targeted poverty alleviation
policies and work contracted
to households”, on 8 February
2018, Henan Dali Foods Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Group, extended its greetings
to underprivileged families
during the Chinese New Year.
201842 A8 H - REE
BRRIEENEmAR
NRBEEERNY [FE
R HBEKE BEI
FPlIrSEaE  HERPHELT
BUREE R

On 28 February 2018,
Nanchang Dali Foods Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Group, organized a visit to a
nursing home in Huangma
Country, Nanchang County
where greetings were
extended to the elderly
residents there. Each of them
received a package of our
Company’s products as a gift.
201842 H28H * A& E
MEAAEEENEREA
RARMEBEEEES
mEEBHEEREANENT
B - W TELEA—D
AREMm °

=1 | N 3 2y

On 18 June 2018, Gansu Dali
Foods Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Group, paid a visit to
Kangning Primary School in
Kangning County, Liangzhou
District, Wuwei City to hold a
charitable donation event
themed “Caring for students
with targeted assistance to the
underprivileged”, where a
collection of materials for
charitable purposes were
distributed.

2018F6 H13H * A& H
MEAAHBENRERE
PR X & AT B B R M R
FEHEEENZETIBR
Br JBEKE | EORE
EE)  RE—HEBLOYE -

ek

'

; i m : B i z
On 1 August 2018, Yunnan
Dali Foods Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Group, paid
a visit to the fire brigade in
Gaoxin District, Yuxi City to tie
in with the anniversary of the
founding of the Chinese
People’s Liberation Army. A
collection of materials was
given to the brigade as a
gesture of encouragement.
201848 A1H » REEIN
BRAAZEENBEMAR
UNCIRES = =GR I
R = TR OE B K B ) B
ek ZE—83EHAY

128

Dali Foods Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2018




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g RERRE

The power of our brands: a strong nation in sports where people adopt a healthy lifestyle

mENE  BEWE BELE

Doubendou’s nutritious products featured in the Shenzhen International Marathon

FAREEER HRYIE R FRR

In 2018, the “Doubendou” brand of the Group, with its unwavering commitment to its
philosophy of creating “purely natural products without additives”, won the recognition
from the Organization Committee of the Shenzhen International Marathon and became
the nutritious drink supplier for the 2018 Shenzhen International Marathon, who served
to meet the nutritional needs of sports enthusiasts there.

20184  NEBE T AT MBS [FXA - AN BES - HE T RYIEIR
BRUMABEEAZENRE - KR2018FRYIBEIR BN S SR mEER - BHRN
BYEHERHEERE -

Launch of “Doubendou Caring Breakfast Program”
[EXAEREEETE X

On 16 December 2018, the Group launched the first stage of “Doubendou Caring @
Breakfast Program” in Shanghai, and the on-campus Caring Breakfast Program has e
been rolled out in various high schools across China. The “Doubendou Caring Emﬂﬁ@ﬁﬁ*%ﬁm "!
Breakfast Program”, through briefing of knowledge about breakfasts and distributions E E) 1 it
of Doubendou’s soy milk products targeting university students, aims to arouse their
awareness on having healthy breakfasts and help them develop a healthy lifestyle and g :
learning habits. 3 ==
201812416 B AREE LERE [SATREMEAE £ UHESESR

s REDREZEMETE - [ AT REMETS | BAHKEERREE
EEANBNERNT AT ONRASES  WEXRZLYHFRFENSER - HE
BRABERENEETEZBEIE -

,‘.'Li

e e . _
In 2018, the Hi-Tiger brand of the Group sponsored various major events such as the Chengdu Rock and Roll Music Festival, the
Tencent Games Arena (TGA) Tournament, the China Formula Grand Prix, the FIBA Stankovic Continental Champions Cup, the 2018
FIVB Beach Volleyball World Tour in Haiyang and the International Football Club Super Cup (EIFE & BRIE L4 ST B R AT), with a view of
unleashing the potential of people to demonstrate their can-do spirit.
20184F - AEEBE T EEMEBBE KR T LE - WIUFEGRR T & (TGA REE - hE AR KREE - HAR # 5
MNBREIRE - /8152018 IS H R FIVBRE - BIR R KELIBAN S ZHRE - MBEREE - BREDHES® -

/
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Appendix M &%
List of applicable major laws and regulations BERANEELELIABE

Number Major laws and regulations with which the Group shall comply

755 FRETFHEEER

1 Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(RE ARLRBIRRDE)

2 Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REARZEMBIRTESHFE)

3 Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China
(P2 AR MBI E &%)

4 Basic Rules for Internal Control of Enterprises
(R EE R B HI B AR AR 86 )

5 Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery
(ARZEILBEBRITRNEITHRE)

6 Corporate Governance Codes in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong
EEM R (R TR M+ mChEERFAD

7 Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARANMBEEMEZEE)

8 Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REARAMBEEREE%)

9 Implementation Regulations of Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REARANMBR BT 2EBIERD)D

10 Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China
(I AR MBI ERE)

11 Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China
(G YN SE Y37y

12 Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China
(FREARIMBIZEERRE)

13 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests
(PRI AR AMBDE & &R REE)

14 Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REE AR ALAEI A 8h%)

15 Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REARAMELHERE)

16 Special Rules on the Labour Protection of Female Employees
(B IABRBERRIRT)

17 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors
(R EE AR LFBIR K F AREED

18 Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour
(EILERETRE)

19 Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REARIEMBE L2 EEE)
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Number Major laws and regulations with which the Group shall comply

735

FRETFHEEER

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

Regulation on the Safety Management of Hazardous Chemicals

(Bt B2mi 2 E D)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases
(rhEE AR AMBIRE R D R0%)

Regulation on Work-related Injury Insurances

CTGRBIEH)

Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China

(R EE A RAFBUELED)

Special Equipment Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PEE ARSAMBUSIERBELR 25E)

Measures for the Administration of Contingency Plans for Work Safety Incidents
(EEZZFHRSTAREEINE)

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China

(R NRAFMBIRFIREE)

Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China

(R EE AR ARBUIRIFIRERE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution
(I AR EMBEIR RS RETEE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution

(FpEE AR FMBIO5 2087%)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes
(rhEE AR AL BE B 88 RE )5 R RIRF A E)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise
(HREE A RIMBIRIFRE )5 RG8)5)

Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PEARKMBIEHQRERE)

/
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Hong Kong Stock Exchange ESG Report Guide content index &

General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

B XFTESGHREESIARREI

2018 ESG Report

—REERBERENIEE 2018 F B  HEREARE

A. Environmental

ARE

Aspect A1 Emissions

EEA1 B

Al General Disclosure Protecting the environment to help build a green family
— MR ER RERE  PHRERE

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Environmental management
PR IR S AR HE R BUE - RIREE

Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, Energy management
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BERBAERE (AETE) R (ER)RE FREIE
(WABESEN - BERBITE)

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where With a relatively low amount of hazardous waste
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, produced by the Group and the absence of concern
per facility). from stakeholders, disclosure is not available for the

time being.
FTEABEEEDBE (ANETE) &k (ER) #E REBELANBESEYERD  WARESAKRRE
(WABESEN - GERBITE) BT - AU EARHER -

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Resource management
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FTELEEREZYRE (A E) k(EA) ZE BIRER
(WAGESEN - BERBITE)

A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and Environmental management
results achieved.

U E B E R R PRISAR - RIEER

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Energy management
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved.

HARBEEREEEEYN T L REELES BEREE
B R TSR -
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2018 ESG Report

—RBEENBERERIER 2018 FIRIR - HEREARRE

Aspect A2 Use of Resources

BEA2 BEREMA

A2 General Disclosure Energy management, Resource management
— MR ER BERERE - ERER

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Energy management
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in *000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
R B DM ERE R SEEER(NE - "aloh) BEIRE IR
BREUTETERAE) RBE (WAGEE
B - FHERZTE) -

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Resource management
production volume, per facility).
BRKERTE (WMASESEN - FERMAH) - BIRER

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results  Energy management
achieved.
R RE R (E F e s Bl RS ACR o BERE TR

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Resource management
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.
HISREGE R KR LA B AR - ARRARK BIRER
Wenat Bl RFTSHR -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in  Resource management
tonnes) and, where applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
R mrABREM A S (CANEGHE) & (#EA) BRERR
BHEESBMLEE -

Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

B A3 BRERRAER

A3 General Disclosure Resource management
— MR BIREE

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Resource management

environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

MM EBRDEIRITRAARERNERTE R
EERREBEMETENTE -
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2018 ESG Report

—REBERBREENER 2018 FIRIE - HERERRE

B. Social

B.#®

Employment and Labour Practices

EBEREIER

Aspect B1 Employment

B B1 &=

B1 General Disclosure Employment and labour rights
—MRIRE (EEA Thea

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group Employment and labour rights

and geographical region.
RIER - BEEAR - FRARI IR E S KRS

fEEERL Thka

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and The Group intends to disclose this data in the future.
geographical region.
IR FRRARI MRS DEERKLLE RER B S BIFE AR R ER
Aspect B2 Health and Safety
fEE B2 BEHEZR
B2 General Disclosure Health and safety
— MR e R
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Health and safety
ETERERMIE TEAB ML © EERZ 2
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. The Group intends to disclose this data in the future.
EITBEATIERE - B BITE AR ORI BR
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Health and safety
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
HPTER N B R R 2816 - A RABRAEATT EERZ 2
MEEERTTE
Aspect B3 Development and Training
EmEB3 R R IEF
B3 General Disclosure Training and Development
— R E EHlEE R
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and The Group intends to disclose this data in the future.
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
RURREERRN(WEREERE FREEES) AE B BITE AR R ER
ENMXIEEB DL -
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by The Group intends to disclose this data in the future.
gender and employee category.
wRERIREEERNED - BREBTKZIN TS ER B S BT AR R BR
P&
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—RBEENBERERIER 2018 FIRIR - HEREARRE
Aspect B4 Labour Standards
BT B4 B IR
B4 General Disclosure Employment and labour rights
— MR ER EEEY T
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices Employment and labour rights
to avoid child and forced labour.
iR BB O E AR R E T REHIST - RS THE
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices The Group has eradicated child and forced labour and

when discovered.
AT 2 IR B 3R B R ERR B BB R T ERE A 28R o

Operating Practices

EEEA
Aspect B5
fEmEB5
B5

B5.1

B5.2

Aspect B6
[EHE B6
B6

B6.1

B6.2

Supply Chain Management

e EE

General Disclosure

— MR HEER

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
miRE D HEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
AR HEERIED - mERTEBENN
HEREE  URBBEIINRITRERTE -
Product Responsibility

EmEE

General Disclosure

— MR HEER

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
BESNEERE mAA ST FE % 2 B EFRIE & if 78 B U
BB DL °

Number of products and services related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

IR E M RIS IR E B AR EH T -

no violation has occurred during the reporting period.
AEBEMBRETMBRGISE THER - REMHAKRE
EERIBER

Food quality and safety
EmEEET Y
Food quality and safety
EmEEET S

Food quality and safety

RmEEHZE

E z

Ensuring both quality and nutrition of products to help
shape people’s physical well-being

mEEE  PHEREE

Food quality and safety

SmEEHEY R

5 ~

pag

While the ways to deal with the complaints have been
disclosed in “Customers’ rights”, the number of such
complaints will be disclosed in the future.

PR ER] PRERE A= RFHEBER
R FE

/
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—RBEERBRERER

2018 ESG Report
2018 BIE - HEREREE

B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and

protecting intellectual property rights.

Research and development for innovation

Tl R A S AR R A E R A RV B O] © I

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Food quality and safety
procedures.
i UE 210 E 1812 N E n BIAR Fr - EnEERETy

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Customers’ rights
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
RN EERRRERABRSE - AREERTER  EEER
BRI -

Aspect B7 Anti-corruption

[EmB7 R&ES

B7 General Disclosure Integrity and compliance
— MR EE BRAER

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Integrity and compliance
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
%ﬁﬁ%m%%ﬁATEﬁé%ﬁﬁaﬁﬁm BRZEH
BISHARRMNEE MFRER

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  Integrity and compliance
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
R IEIE R BRI - ARMEBARITRERFE . REZE18

Community

HE

Aspect B8 Community Investment

fETE B8 HERE

B8 General Disclosure Giving back to the community to help build a

harmonious society

— MR Mg - BN E

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, lemg back to the community to help build a
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture, harmonious society
sport).
EIEREE (WHE - BEEE SIHk #F - & - B HFIREME
Xt - BEE) o

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus Giving back to the community to help build a
area. harmonious society
EFEITHREMABHER (WS ERFME) EIfEHE - By MEL S
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Ernst & Young ZXKEBETRE KT Tel E35: +852 2846 9888
22/F CITIC Tower EH BRI E 19 Fax {£H:+852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue rh{= A 221 ey.com
§j( Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of Dali Foods Group Company Limited HENEREBERATRRE

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dali Foods Group
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 144 to
248, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

(RRESHSEMRLNEREERIF)

=R

EECDERFIMAEEF243AMEENRMmE
EERARREMBAR(EEE)OAHTB
BE - BER-_ZF-/\Ft-_A=t—HB10aH
MBARNK - HEZ B ILFENE GRS REAM
REKER AHEREDHRIAHESRE
R AREHBBRRME(BRERGARE
M=) -

EERR  AHUBBRRCRETESTMAE
((EEEFEAE ) BANEBMERELER
(BRUBHRESEY DAEEMAFHRE BE
BER=-ZT-N\FT+ZA=+—BNEHIBIRR
REBEZBALFENGHUBRARGHEAS
mE - WEEREE RGP EEREZLRR
8o

ERNER

EEREBEBLESAMAGSHEMNBTEEER
([BREAER D ETEX - BERZFELT
NEEEESNHEEANCE R TR E G EE
KRAFPEMEF TR - REEFES
EhAEME BB XS AER TR &
EFBUN BEEE YO EETARETEMER
Bff - B5HE EEMRGHNEREEERR
MEEWAEFNERIEHER -

/
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EY:

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

RREEREE

Valuation of inventories

FEHE

Valuation of inventories was important to our audit as the following situation
mentioned requires management to make estimates and exercise judgement,
and the balance of inventories was RMB1,137,799,000 as at December 31,
2018, which accounted for approximately 9.2% of the current assets of the

Group.
Tfﬁﬁ% ”M%V%%é%vH%Tﬁ%%%%%ﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ
15 1 B ZE-NE+ZA=T-—"BENEEEBRRAREK

1JWJ%DWE i BEEBERBEEL.2% °

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the weighted average method and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labor and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. When the Group launches new
products, key parameters in the valuation of such inventories require the
Group’s estimation and judgement.

FERKAER S FE _EPNBRIEEIIER - BORRINBETIEETE
AR R mBEEEME  BERS T RIZHEELIIGTENREER -
g EEEHLHERS BREFEAETHNRAR2HFE ESENME
=t e I -

Please refer to note 17 to the financial statements for related disclosures.

R EFHIEE2 MM B RRMEET7

BRREZSEE

REBEETNF XA - ﬁi%ﬁ%ﬁ,iﬁgﬁ
RABRNEHMBERETHRERNEER
E%ﬁéﬁ%%ﬁ%&%%éﬁ%i%ﬁﬁ%%

FE G MAEREFFREBERER -3 TX
X$ﬁﬁ§ ﬁ@i ERNRBENFEHENE

MEBARILEER

BEECRUIABERHEEFEL S HUBHRER
EEE BN EE - BREEEEHEA
MBI - Bl BESNETHERBEERE
BEEHAHMBRIETEARBER AR B E
WiZFHRE - EREF (BRA/KRETHIER
METHEF) NERRE FHBEMN G St 150
RERBZEREMH T ER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEETERRNMEEREEREE

Our procedures performed included a mix of
control testing and substantive testing performed
for all the subsidiaries, which are based on the
nature and amounts of recorded inventories. The
valuation of inventories is tested by performing
detailed testing on the accuracy of the cost
calculations. We also performed detailed
substantive testing on a sample of items to assess
the cost of individual inventories and net realisable
value of inventories.

EERMBTHEF BELEMEMNE A RREE %
FEERNMEE R eERTHESDRRE R E LA
uJ‘ T,\D-I_F E‘JﬁLﬂﬁﬁXZ'KJ#E'JL?EﬁE ‘Q:JETT
ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁkﬂv%iﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ%ff&$&
FERERFERBA - ENENETHANES
MBI -
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EY:

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HEESRER

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

B 7 WA & W SRR E

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group’s
accounting for impairment of trade and bills receivables by replacing HKAS
39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss
(“ECL”) approach.

RMBERBMBHRELEANEIRBERE T ESEHEFERURERERE
BRENSEE  HANAREEREEER(EHEEERD ERES
BEETERE IR E ELBIEE -

The measurement of ECL requires the application of significant judgement
and increased the complexity which include the assumptions used in the ECL
models, such as the expected future cash flows and forward-looking
macroeconomic factors. As at December 31, 2018, the balance of trade and
bills receivables was RMB714,704,000, which accounted for approximately
5.7% of the current assets of the Group.
AERMGEREFIETREARAGLRER THEMIEE H BFEEHEERS
BEAEANRE  OINERARKRERRAEZBELCEREZ - KT
—NE+_A=+T—H BS5RUFEBERERZBRERRARE
714,704,0007C 15 EXRERBEELS7% °

Please refer to note 18 to the financial statements for related disclosures.
IR RIS R 2 M B ERME18 -

BREEZSE ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEETERRNEERERREE

We evaluated the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
which govern credit control, debt collection and
estimate of expected credit losses. We obtained
and re-tested the ageing analysis prepared by
management.
EEFEEENFETHNRG - T REER
h REEGEEGH  WERBHEEEER
it EEE G REAFAE R E MR RE
DA -

In order to evaluate the appropriateness of these
judgements, we challenged whether historical
experience is representative of current
circumstances, tested the model parameters
including the underlying historical and external
data used, examined the actual losses recorded
during the current financial year and assessed
whether there was an indication of management
bias when recognising loss allowances and the
computation.

RAEZEHIGREEE  EEERTELER
EERKRENER  AIFHBEL 28 - B1EFAE
BB E MINBEUE - BRNE R M IRFE SRS
EREBEERTEEEERERE B ERREEEE
Nt ERBATIRAE o

We inspected cash receipts from customers after
the financial year end relating to trade receivable
balances as at December 31, 2018, on a sample
basis.

EERN T N\EFE+_A=T—HNEZEK
FIARARIERE THRFEEEREEFPHNRE
Wk -

/
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EY:

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

FAFHRNVHEMBER

EEAWEMENARZAT R ENBREFR
NN AEER  TEREAHUBHRRLES
BV BREM R & o

EEHAMMBRRFHNERLERELME
o BESITeHHEMBERBEREATANKE

E==28
“Eem e

WESFEZAHUMBERRMS  EFNEERMH
EEMER  KMEEBELMER T RA TG
BRIBSFEFZERTEENENFEEAD
7o UFFEERERL - MEEZERD
ETHNTERR/EMERBRENKERL - &
FRAMEEMFE - pllt BFEAUEREFR -

ESNAHMBRREARENTE

BERRERAAERBEEEGTMASRMANE
BUBHRE LN RBFERAGINEERE - &
HAEMAFHRRERNOSFABHRER - RE
FETHRRAFVMHREBLENEREANEIE
7 AEZFAaHMBERE NS FERRREFL
HRMEMNENKRERL -

EREAHUBEHRRE - EARNEREAATN
i BERERFBELENES REESELESR
B EIE (ER) TRAUEEERERNE
FDEBIE BEARERHRK BEEEBRAE
LEE5E - SRR Z SN A A BRI T A IE ©

BERAEZHELZEEHPETREEE &
SEVHERERFORME -
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EY:

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

BB REZS U BRRARE
MEE

EENBEBRRAEEE I SAMHYEHRAREEM

BN FEANKGFRERMEBMNENKRER
o WELFAELZERNRBEEE - ARE
MVBUE - ERZ2BRIRRE - RILAINMATER

A% - EFRIRARENAR
TERSREEMEE -

HHEMREMBA

EEETBEEANZE HEREFEEEN
ETHEZTETRRBEREREMFENER
RERRM - REBRM AT AMEFBRMAESE - i
ERBEEERERBBERTAIFEEMERE

D

BHPBRRELOQERER  AIRESEBE
AEKERR -
EREEBETEETETNBES  BFE

REZXHE  FREBXEREE - EFT

o BRI RFHEBRIRFESER R MG A O i
BRRFEEARERANER - Rt R
ﬁﬁ%ﬁkfufﬂﬁﬁﬂ " AR EER
ARMEZNETERE FREFERN
EfE o RIEEA B ﬁ&%%‘%L‘ﬁ
BER - ERRASEZEAREZNE)
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AR ERERAEERERRMEHNE
RKE BRI R
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EY:

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

BB EZS U BRRARE
HEE (&)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Y8 3 Az BREM

EY::

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is LEUNG WAI LAP, PHILIP.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 26, 2019

BB EZS U BRRARE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

S EEREMGESRaER

Year ended December 31,2018 #HE—_ZT—/\F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—B-\F —T—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B RE AR¥ET T ARBT T
REVENUE I &5 5(a) 20,863,557 19,799,109
Cost of sales SHE KR 6(a) (12,812,816) (12,341,484)
Gross profit EF 8,050,741 7,457,625
Other income and gains = PN 5(b) 649,339 665,982
Selling and distribution expenses SHEE RACSHR (3,376,667) (3,248,094)
Administrative expenses TEAX (572,583) (623,913)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT F 6 4,750,830 4,351,600
Income tax expense Fr8EiFA X 9 (1,033,469) (917,897)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRF 3,717,361 3,433,703
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the parent ISYNEIETZ-DN 3,717,361 3,433,703
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERER 3,717,361 3,433,703
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HimRE W
Other comprehensive income that may — R&E B A REEFH DB EEEH
be reclassified to profit or loss in HhaRE WS
subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investments: AEHERE -
Changes in fair value NIEEEH) - 12,953
Reclassification adjustment for gains BN BB AGHERRY
included in the consolidated Wz
statement of profit or loss 5 - (12,981)
Income tax effect St e - U
Exchange differences: P& 5 =58 - 21)
Exchange differences on translation BEGINETSHIE X =58
of foreign operations 62,165 (208,699)
Net other comprehensive income that RIEBHE e ET D EEBR
may be reclassified to profit or loss in M E AR S WS F 58
subsequent periods 62,165 (208,720)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FRHEMmE W (Eig)
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B&Bi/F%8) 62,165 (208,720)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEWSEAEE
FOR THE YEAR 3,779,526 3,224,983
Profit attributable to: AR AL B EER :
Owners of the parent BARER A 3,717,361 3,433,703

144 Dali Foods Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2018



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
aftiEm R EMiR e aEm R

Year ended December 31, 2018 #HE-T—/\F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B RE AR¥ET T ARBT T
Total comprehensive income LT ATEEGENEEE
attributable to:
Owners of the parent BAREE A 3,779,526 3,224,983
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREERESFERA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhRERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 11
Basic and diluted EARREE RMB A R # RMB AR %
— For profit for the year — FREA 0.27 7t 0.257C

~

J
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

B ORI &

December 31,2018 R-—ZE—N\F+_-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR¥T R AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB N ERE 12 4,911,315 4,273,050
Investment properties EYE 13 42,392 =
Prepaid land lease payments TET b F E Sk IE 14 557,422 576,740
Intangible assets A E 15 2,875 3,576
Prepayments TR FRIE 16 244,864 149,845
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEE 24 53,659 51,724
Total non-current assets EREEERE 5,812,527 5,054,935
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories FE 17 1,137,799 1,333,204
Trade and bills receivables B S EYGRIE R R EE 18 714,704 1,084,902
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE K H A FE MR IR 19 489,159 457,261
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 20 - 250,240
Pledged deposits ERECEN 21 12,734 49,889
Cash and bank balances Be RIBITHEE 21 10,078,566 8,095,648
Total current assets MENEERE 12,432,962 11,271,144
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and bills payables B S ENFIERENEE 22 941,834 889,279
Other payables and accruals E b FER B M ERE A 23 1,320,167 1,143,361
Tax payable FERTEIE 198,600 183,068
Total current liabilities mEIAaERRE 2,460,601 2,215,708
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEEE 9,972,361 9,055,436
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERABEE
LIABILITIES 15,784,888 14,110,371
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE
Deferred revenue EIEUTA 25 370,218 324,186
Total non-current liabilities ERBAGERE 370,218 324,186
NET ASSETS EEFE 15,414,670 13,786,185

_
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B IO R

December 31,2018 R-_ZE—N\FE+-_HA=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 ARBT T ARKETT
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the parent & 5# B A fE(hiE s
Share capital A% A 26 112,712 112,712
Reserves fHfs 27 15,301,958 13,673,473
Total equity B 15,414,670 13,786,185
Xu Shihui Zhuang Weiqgiang
R g HER
Director Director
EF EF

~

/
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

B RER R

Year ended December 31,2018 #HE—_ZT—/\F+_A=+—HILFE

_

Avallable-
for-sale
investment Exchange
Share Share Merger  revaluation  Statutory  fluctuation  Retained
capital  premium resenve reserve resernve reserve profits Total
fHE
RAEf N
kE BhEE AR il iTRE R Brha a5t
RVMB'000  RMB'O00*  RMB'000*  RMB000*  RMB'000*  RMB'000"  RMB'000*  RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT: ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETT
(ote26)  (note27)  (note 27) (note 27)
(Witos)  (Waor) (W) (Kizkor)
At January 1,2017 RZE-+£-A-H 112,712 6,715,905 (23,169) 201 1328212 487,741 5294271 13865,877
Profit for the year ERET| = = = = - - 3433708 3,433,708
Other comprehensive income FREMERANE -
for the year:
Changes in fair value of available- AT EREATELE
for-salg ivestments, netof tax (#5558 . a - ) - - - 1)
Exchange differences relatedto ~ BEENEBMER 28
foreign operations - - - - - (208,69 - (208,699
Total comprehensive income for — FREGAEMELE
the year - - - (1) - (208699 3433703 3224983
Final 2016 dividend declared BER-E-NERIRE - (2148221) - - - - - 2148221)
Interim 2017 dividend ZE-tERERE - (1,156,454) - - - - - (1,156,454)
Transfer from retained profits ERAREES = = - - 313342 - 133 -
At December 31, 2017 REB-tEFZA=+-0 112712 3411200  (23,169) 180 1,641,054 229042 8414632 13,786,185
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN E9U|TY
& BHERE R
Year ended December 31, 2018 HE_-_ZT—\F+_A=+—HILFE

Available-
for-sale
investment Exchange
Share Share  Merger revaluation  Statutory fluctuation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
e
REEf EiRE

Bx  RHEE AHRER i EER® i ERkE i
RMB'000  RMB'000*  RMB'000*  RMB'000*  RMB'000*  RMB'000*  RMB'000*  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR: ARBTR' ARBTR: ARMTR' ARBTR* ARMTR' ARETR

(note 26)  (note27)  (note 27) (note 27)
(Wzkoe)  (W&For)  (W&27) (Hsx2n)

At December 31, 2017 R-B-t%

+-B=t-H 112,712 3,411,230 (23,165) 180 1,641,554 229,042 8,414,632 13,786,185
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 FRAAE BB B 28|

F9nHTE - - - (180) - - 180 -
At January 1, 2018 (restated) R-B-N\E

—f—R(Z&5) 12,7112 3,411,230 (23,165) - 1,641,554 229,042 8,414,812 13,786,185
Profit for the year ERgi - - - - - - 377361 3717361
Exchange differences relatedto BB ERNERZE

foreign operations - - - - - 62,165 - 62,165
Total comprehensive incomefor -~ NG ANELE
the year - - - - - 62,165 3,717,361 3,779,526

Final 2017 dividend declared BER_S-tFXHRE - (1,126,779) - - - - - (1,126,779)
Interim 2018 dividend ZE-\EhdRE - (1,024,262 - - - - - (1,024,262
Transfer from retained profits gReltlha - - - - 6529 - (65249 -
At December 31, 2018 RZE-N%

+-B=t-H 112,712 1,260,189 (23,165) - 1,706,803 291,207 12,066,924 15,414,670

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB15,301,958,000  * ZEFBRE 2R RESHUBARRIRANE GHRE
(2017: RMB13,673,473,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. B AR ¥15,801,958000 (=T —+tF: AR
13,673,473,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
EHBETRER

Year ended December 31, 2018 HE_-Z

—N\F+-_A=+t—"HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\% —t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
L AR®T AR®ET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETDFERERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BR 35 B A 4,750,830 4,351,600
Adjustments for: AT RIEEH FAE :
Interest income — bank deposits FMEWA — RITER (36,944) (78,840)
Fair value gains, net: N EWREFE
Available-for-sale investments A ERE (EREER)
(transfer from equity) 5(b),6(c) - (12,981)
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFABRHESMEE
through profit or loss 5(b),6(c) (6,267) -
Loss on disposal of items of HEYME  BEKXEEENERE
property, plant and equipment, net SEEE 6(c) 3,252 3,900
Depreciation of property, plant Y BENREITE
and equipment 6(c) 611,869 555,388
Depreciation of investment WEYFEE
properties 6(c) 795 —
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BTN L EKE
payments 6(c) 13,239 14,319
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EE 6(c) 1,029 920
Impairment of property, plant and Yz - E MEERE
equipment 6(c) - 4083
Impairment loss on trade and bills B 5 RUGRIA KRR B R EEE
receivables 6(c) 3,908 1,063
(Reversal of impairment)/ FECRERR), TRE
impairment of inventories 6(c) (593) 455
Government grants recognised in P 1B 28 I RERR Y BK T 7 B
profit or loss 25 (25,710) (22,822)
5,315,408 4,813,405
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank EARRTT /(3 n)
deposits 12,753 (10,738)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills %%EEW%’UE REWEE
receivables w (3L hn) 366,290 (801,898)
Increase in prepayments and other E‘EH I8 [ H At FE U R IE 3 N
receivables (46,766) (283,725)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL (38 hm) 195,998 (224,383)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills B Z A R E g
payables 40,7 Ci4) 52,555 (137,753)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HiEMNZBERESER
and accruals 40,7 Ci4) 125,147 (13,940)
Cash generated from operations KEFERE 6,021,385 3,340,968
Tax paid EfHIE (1,019,872) (937,410)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM KETEHMBESRETE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5,001,513 2,403,558
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHBEERER
Year ended December 31,2018 #HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHFMARERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, EEYE - BEMEHEEE
plant and equipment (1,249,208) (807,160)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  BELXREEEH
property, plant and equipment S 5E 1,236 4,800
Additions to prepaid land lease A L ERBARE
payments (85,882) -
Purchases of intangible assets BEERLEE (328) (1,642)
Receipt of government grants for BRI ZE - RS R a5 1 BUAT 7 B S
property, plant and equipment and FE L AR E R IE
prepaid land lease payments 71,742 28,437
Proceeds from financial assets at fair BRATEFABRNEREE,
value through profit or loss/ At E S E R TS IR
available-for-sale investments 256,507 562,981
Purchases of financial assets at fair BERATEFABSHNESREE
value through profit or loss - (650,000)
Interest received from bank deposits B R1T17 SRR ELF B, 51,812 81,644
Decrease in pledged bank deposits FIRIRITIE FUR D 24,402 25,773
Net decrease in bank deposits RITEROR A F 58 1,331,873 542,375
NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) #&&EEEE (FrRA)RERERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 402,154 (112,792)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING B EEBFfERSRE
ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid B E (2,151,041) (3,304,6795)
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN BEEETARESRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (2,151,041) (8,304,675)

/
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHETRER

Year ended December 31, 2018 HE_-Z

—NEFE+_A=+—RHIFE

~

2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR¥T R AREEFTT
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN REeRELESEYEM(RD) FE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,252,626 (1,013,909)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHRE MRS EED
beginning of year 6,763,775 7,986,383
Effect of foreign exchange rate MRS HH T EFRE
changes, net 62,165 (208,699)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASRASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 10,078,566 6,763,775
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HeRBSEEYERIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at banks and on hand RITREFRE® 21 9,289,495 5,360,569
Bank deposits with original maturity AEIEEE DR =18 A BR1TIE R
of less than three months 789,071 1,403,206
Bank deposits with original maturity A EIER B BB = & A WERTTF K
of over three months - 1,331,873
Cash and bank balances as stated AR TSR & RIRTT4E
in the statement of financial position 10,078,566 8,095,648
Less: Bank deposits with original B IR EIHA B AR = 8 A M ERTT
maturity of over three months TR - (1,331,879)
Cash and cash equivalents as REMERMYBE RIBELSEEY
stated in the statement of cash flows 10,078,566 6,763,775
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B OF B 75 R 3k B =

December 31, 2018 —Z—\F+_-_A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Dali Foods Group Company Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The registered address of
the Company is Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of food and beverage in Mainland
China.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”), the holding
company of the Company is Divine Foods Limited (the “Parent”), a
company established in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The controlling
shareholders of the Company are Mr. Xu Shihui, Ms. Chen Liling, Ms.
Xu Yangyang, Divine Foods Limited, Divine Foods-1 Limited, Divine
Foods-2 Limited, Divine Foods-3 Limited, Hi-Tiger Limited and Xu’s
Family Trust (together known as the “Controlling Shareholders”).

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
Place of

incorporation/registration,
type of legal entity,

1. REAIR&EEEH

ZENREmERARAR([ARF ] RER
SERHERREERSHESTMAZRER
REBRAR . ARARKNEMMEELE A
Maples Corporate Services Limited * b HiE
#P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands °

ARBB/—RREZERRE - ARFRE
MEAR(GER [ AEE]) TEETEA
W ERM MR EERBE -

ARBER(EFDRE  ARAIHER
A &) A& Divine Foods Limited ([ & R 7] ]) °
Divine Foods Limited 4 — 5 7 3 &8 # = £¥
S(EBHERES]) KRR > RKAF]
IR AT B AL REBR LT -
#F [ [% 22 £ ~ Divine Foods Limited * Divine
Foods-1 Limited * Divine Foods-2 Limited *
Divine Foods-3 Limited * Hi-Tiger Limited &
SRR IEERT (SR [ERARER]) -

BRMBEATNER
ARREEBMBARMFELT

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Percentage of

and date of incorporation/ Place of registered  equity attributable to Principal
Name of company registration operations share capital the Company activities
HMRYL B EEER BRTEE/
ek BRIRSEMRL %A EX AMBRAEE AAREGEEZAEINL FEER
Direct Indirect
H# M
Dali Foods Holdings Limited BVI Limited liability company BVI USD100 100% - Investment holding
November 4, 2014
Dali Foods Holdings Limited ERELES RBRAES 1003%7T 100% - REER
BREFAH
“T-mE+—AmA
Dali Foods Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong S.A.R. Limited Hong Kong HKD100 - 100% Investment holding
Company Limited liability company
November 11, 2014
EFRREE(FR)EBRAF  BEFITRE Bt 10078 7T - 100% H"EZER
BREFAH
“T-mE+—A+—H

~

/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& O 5 R MY 5

December 31, 2018

T N\F+=A=+—H

(continued)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/registration,
type of legal entity,

REAIREEER ()

BFEKEQRANER (&)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Percentage of

\_

and date of incorporation/ Place of registered  equity attributable to Principal
Name of company registration operations share capital the Company activities
TR BRtY  EEER BRTEE/
AEER ERIREMAKL, ZE A e HAMRAEE AQRAEGEEZESL FTEXHR
Direct Indirect
H# iE:3
Dali Foods Group Co., Ltd. The PRC Wholly-owned Mainland China  RMB1,450,000,000 = 100% I
(EFERMERERAR)" foreign enterprise
February 10, 1993
EFRmEBBRAR HRENEBEERE A AEH - 100% |
—AN=F=R+H 1,450,000,0007T
Quanzhou Dali Foods Co., Ltd.  The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB90,939,305 - 100% Il
(RMNEFRREBAR) liability company
January 12, 1993
SMEFRMBRAR i R EI At AR 90,939,305 7T - 100% I
BREEAR
—AN=F—-A+ZH
Hubei Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China  RMB209,000,000 = 100% |
(BLEFNRREBAR) liability company
June 16, 2005
HiEENRmBR AR hEEREAERT B At AR - 100% |
ZETRF AR 209,000,0007T
Jilin Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China  RMB100,000,000 = 100% |
(EMEFNRREBAR) " liability company
June 17, 2005
EMENRMBRAR MEEREEAH Ay AEH - 100% |
ZZETRF AR 100,000,0007C
Gansu Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China  RMB209,000,000 = 100% |
(HBEFRmERDA) liability company
August 31, 2005
HEEHNRMBBAF REEREEAR A AEH - 100% |
“ZTRF\A=+—8 209,000,0007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2018

M EHRERME
—E-N\F+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/registration,
type of legal entity,

1. REIRKEEER(A)

BFEKEQRANER (&)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

~

Percentage of

and date of incorporation/ Place of registered  equity attributable to Principal
Name of company registration operations share capital the Company activities
TR BRtY  EEER BRTEE/
AEER ERIREMAKL, ZE A EXHH HAMRAEE AQRAEGEEZESL FTEXHR
Direct Indirect
H# iE:3
Jinan Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB190,000,000 = 100% |
(BEENRRERAR)" liability company
June 18, 2005
EREFRmARAA MEEREEAF Ay AEH - 100% |
ZZETRFSAT\R 190,000,0007C
Chengdu Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China  RMB105,000,000 = 100% |
(KEEFRREBAR) liability company
June 28, 2005
RAENRMBRAR HEBREEAR I AR - 100% |
—ZTRFAZTN\R 105,000,0007C
Ma’anshan Dali Foods Co., Ltd.  The PRC Limited Mainland China  RMB160,000,000 = 100% |
(BRLEFNRRBRAF) liability company
October 9, 2007
SRLENRRERAA HEEREEAR F I AR - 100% |
—ZT+F+ANA 160,000,0007C
Shanxi Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China  RMB105,000,000 = 100% |
(LEEFREERAR) liability company
November 15, 2007
LEENRmERAR hEEREALRH B At AR - 100% |
“EELE+—ATARA 105,000,0007C
Yunnan Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB110,000,000 = 100% |
(EBENRREBAR)" liability company
March 25, 2008
ERETRmARAA HEEREEAR A AEH - 100% |
“ZZ\F=A=THA 110,000,0007¢
J
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M ERERME
T N\F+=A=+—H

December 31, 2018

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAIREEER (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EBEKHEBARNEER (&)
Place of
incorporation/registration, Nominal value of
type of legal entity, issued ordinary/ Percentage of
and date of incorporation/ Place of registered  equity attributable to Principal
Name of company registration operations share capital the Company activities
SRR BRI AEER BRTEE/
AEER ERIREMAKL, ZE A e HAMRAEE AQRAEGEEZESL FTEXHR
Direct Indirect
H# Gk
Xiamen Dali Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China  RMB330,000,000 = 100% Leasing
(EPENBBERAR) liability company
April 2, 2010
EFENEEBR A MEEREEAF Ay AEH - 100% HE
“Z-ZHENAZH 330,000,0007T
Henan Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB150,000,000 = 100% |
(TEEFRmERDA)* liability company
July 21, 2010
ARENRMBRAR HEEREEAR A AEH - 100% |
—Z-TFtA-+—H 1560,000,0007C
Guangdong Dali Foods Co., Ltd.  The PRC Limited Mainland China  RMB200,000,000 = 100% |
(BEREFNRREBAR)" liability company
August 5, 2010
BRENRMBRAR HEEREEAR A AEH - 100% |
—Z-Z4/\ARA 200,000,0007T
Nanchang Dali Foods Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB140,000,000 = 100% Il
(BEENRREBAR)" liability company
August 2, 2010
HEENRMARAR hEEREAELRT B At AR - 100% I
“Z-Z4\AZH 140,000,0007C
Jiangsu Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China  RMB250,000,000 = 100% |
(IHEFNRREBAR)" liability company
August 23, 2010
TEFENRMABR AR mEEREEAF A AEH - 100% |
“Z-ZEN\AZT=AH 250,000,0007T
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—E-N\F+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/registration,
type of legal entity,

1. REIRKEEER(A)

BEKE QT NER(

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Percentage of

)

~

and date of incorporation/ Place of registered  equity attributable to Principal
Name of company registration operations share capital the Company activities
TR BRt  EEER BRTEE/
AEER ERIREMAKL, ZE A EXHE HAMRAEE AQRAEGEEZESL FTEXHR
Direct Indirect
H# iE3
Hebei Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China  RMB100,000,000 - 100% |
(UitEFRmERDA)* liability company
April 22, 2011
AILENRRBR AT hEEREAERT B At AR - 100% |
—Z——FWNA=+=A 100,000,0007C
Shaanxi Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB80,000,000 = 100% |
(REEFNRBEBAR) liability company
June 28, 2011
REENRmBR AR hEEREAERT A AR - 100% |
2% A=+N\R 80,000,0007T
Shenyang Dali Foods Co., Ltd.  The PRC Limited Mainland China  RMB200,000,000 - 100% |
(BHEFNRRERAR)" liability company
May 21, 2012
EHENRMBRAR REBREEAR A AEH - 100% |
—E——FRA=F—H 200,000,0007T
Fujian Dali Development Co., Ltd.  The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB50,000,000 = 100% Trading
(BREFZEERAR)" liability company
August 26, 2016
BRENBRERAR HEEREEAR Ay AEH - 100% &5
—Z-"F\A=+1A 50,000,0007T
Fujian Dali Foods Technology The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100% Research and
Co., Ltd. liability company development
(BREFREBHREBRAR) " June 19,2017
BRENRMMEERAR mEREREEAH A AEH - 100% FfE
T +ERATNE 50,000,000 7
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\_

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

1. REIRKEEER(A)

BFEKEQRANER (&)

Place of
incorporation/registration, Nominal value of
type of legal entity, issued ordinary/ Percentage of
and date of incorporation/ Place of registered  equity attributable to  Principal
Name of company registration operations share capital the Company activities
TR BRt  EEER BRTEE/
AEER ERIREMAKL, ZE A e HAMRAEE AQRAEGEEZESL FTEXHR
Direct Indirect
H# Gk
Guangxi Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China ~ RMB200,000,000 = 100% |
(BERENRBERAT) liability company
April 15,2018
ERENRRBR AT hEEREAERT B At AR - 100% |
—Z-\§$WA+HA 200,000,0007T
Guizhou Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100% |
(BMENRRERAT) liability company
March 6, 2018
BEMEFRMARAR hEEREAERT A AR - 100% |
—Z-\$=A~H 10,000,0007C
Notes: Biex -
I: Manufacture and sale of food and beverage I: HERIEERm IR

I: Manufacture and sale of food, beverage and related packaging

I Manufacture and sale of beverage

English translations of names for identification purposes only

A I SHE SRR

EEMHEERM  RERBEEEE
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December 31,2018 —Z—\F+_-_A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31,
2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
of such control ceases.

21 REEE

ZERHRRORETEGFMAG(EH
BETEHAE ) MBEMNEBNHIREE
AI([EAH RS L] BEMAEEEM
BmEEL FRGEYN(HFRGTE
Al R2E)  FEEARSARIREER
ARGIN I BERERE - AFMHREKTY
REBEELRAE LR ERAFER
ENRAFEHABENSREEDSN
BREHAEIN  ZEMBRRAARE
TARBD 2% EEEHEEEER
BORTAL -

BHEE

ABHFBHRREEARF RENEARE
E-T-N\FT-A=t—"BLEFENH
BwE - MEBLAREARAHEEERNK
REZEHIENER(BREEBLEER) - B
AEERBBESEAERZTAREHR
] & o) 3R e R B SR AR A > AW RE S R IR A
RIEMEE N EZF DR (AR AEFA
FEAKEEREREEREHRNBERE
8) - IREAREHARE L RAVEFIE -

ERRREERKFAEREFTIRRELHRB
FHRERIBORENE - AEERF G
HETHREHSBERENIBEEREME
HEREERER - 8%

(@) HEZREHREMREEFEANE
Tk

b) EHMaHRBELNERN &
€ ARBENERERNEBERRE-

B B B S Rk WO s HA R AR A R AR
Rl WRAEE -G BREH - K
BARNEEBASERSENEE AL
BOFAR - WHEESHAREEZZEGE
BIEZHLE -

~

/

ENRmEEERALE/ F3 2018 159
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—ET-N\F+=-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) mBEZE (F)
Basis of consolidation (continued) EOLEE (])
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are BREHEMEESKRRSHK LD FEBNRA
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non- SBEAREA ARIEERER  BIfFEE
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests %I ﬁ;H ERESEMESR - FTEEE
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, NEIHEERABE  BRE - WA X
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between &ﬁﬁﬁ HAEEKEARIERZHBENR
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. SR ANE O B B RS -
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts WMEE LB SRt = 18 128 i #E X
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of EZEHEP B ZEAEY  AAEFESEMG
the three elements of control described above. A change in the HERDNRESIEEER - WEATIES
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is FEREES RSB (M e R kI RE) - Bl {ERE
accounted for as an equity transaction. mRXHAIR ©
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the M2 8 B S = — B MY B A =) Y328 %I & - Al
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the SRIEER()ZHBRARMEE(BIEEE)
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative K &1 ¢ (i) E1a] FE 5= A% A 25 /9 BR T 1B X (iii)
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair AT RAELZRE UERHE W
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment REHOAFE: ()T ERBRENAF
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The B K (i) Bz RER FTE AR B R E1E -
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other LRI EHM LSRR ERN NS B E(H4E
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, KE D &8T5 R IR AN E B EH i HE
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group MAENBERMERNIEREEEHHLE
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. FEENREEAF o
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B BEREHREE
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the REBDRANEEN KRR B XNEA TS
first time for the current year’s financial statements. el REsET BB S 2R -
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share- EENBREEAEIRY  UROEEROMFLENFER
based Payment Transactions 3] iE
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BRUBREENEARE  RARBUBREENFE5RE
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts 'l AU HERE A RTLE
Z952BTR
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BRNBRSENE0% 2BTA
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers EAMRAERAE DY  KERFAINE
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from EANBRLENB 5%  BAYFFLENE155KEEF
Contracts with Customers B AINENEE
Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property BEQTEAZORNEGT EFRENE
HK(FRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and TE(ERBEEEE  NERSRENKE
Advance Consideration ZER)REZNN
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28 “EMEE-FERY BRANBREENE1GREASH
2014-2016 Cycle HERHE ERIE 8515
\_
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4 and Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of the
Group’s financial statements, the nature and the impact of the new and
revised HKFRSs are described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects
of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet an employee’s tax
obligation associated with the share-based payment; and
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a
share-based payment transaction changes its classification from
cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that the
approach used to account for vesting conditions when measuring
equity-settled share-based payments also applies to cash-settled
share-based payments. The amendments introduce an exception
so that a share-based payment transaction with net share
settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order to
meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction when certain
conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if
the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the transaction
is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of
the modification. The amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any cash-settled share-based payment transactions
and has no share-based payment transactions with net
settlement features for withholding tax.

2.2 RS REE ()

BREBHERESENEIFNEITR-F
— P F T —NEF R F R UGE (B
RUARE MBS RRERD) N - BT RAIERT
BAMBHREEANEERTZER T X
BA :

(@) BAMBWMERERE2HRAVERTEH Y
—EEXEIHE  BEGFHRESEE
LAR D RERE I N X S BV ET B
2 EHRINE TERETFEE
B ARD RERNNTRR Z
WD AN EFREARD RERD
NROESHHREE  REFTERE
FERERT - SARR D) RETRE A 5K
R B EGER RMGEERT S E 18
RetBEEERREGE - 25 ER]
BERARBREE T EREEE RS
RERONFINERR RS EE AR
D REREE N R R B IR ITX ©
ZEERT I A—HEPIIMER » ERTT
AREHRAENHMGERERNE T2
BETFRERN EERHOURN R
ER N R 5 AR E TR KR
TEDRRBREEEARN RERED
NS o WA ZFERT BB MR
T EE BN RERE N R 1%
FEER] - WA R E AR &
EMONFRRZS - DEARXSKEEE
7] HHEE AR SRR EER S © %
FETHAKENP IR HFRERL
BYE ARAKBYSEMREE
HABRM RERNNAR S R EA
BIEMBFRAEERHOARD AE
BENRR S -
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December 31, 2018

T N\F+=A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

()

2.2 SRS RIKE ()

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial by R-Z—/N\F—A—HxXZ2EHBH
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods FEAME - BV BEHRELERE IR
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, bringing together all three 2a T ARREBSSTERE 395
aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification TETA: EREiE BemIA
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. HEM=EHEER— : DEKET
£ RERTHSERE -
The Group has applied HKFRS 9 prospectively, and has AEECEREAMBERELEDEQ
recognised the transition adjustments against the applicable o WEEH T —/\FE—F—B2@
opening balances in equity at January 1, 2018. Therefore, the FER SR IEZEE R - At ©
comparative information was not restated and continues to be AR EEY|WAEABRIERAS:
reported under HKAS 39. B 5E 39 SRFER o
Classification and measurement PEREE
The following information sets out the impacts of adopting AT E R ST BB 7S B 1 & 22 Al
HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial position. A reconciliation FIORNIABARREKAILE - IRIFR
between the carrying amounts under HKAS 39 and the balances BEEIERE 9% M RAE A ERE
reported under HKFRS 9 as at January 1, 2018 is as follows: EABRELERFIFRNA-Z— )\
F-A—B&ESRZEEROT
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement measurement
BBEIHERE0RTE BENBREERNEIRAE
Re-
Notes Category Amount classification ECL Other Amount Category
Mzt Lol &8 B8 BEHGEERR Heh Kz} L5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale AHHERE AFS! 250240 (250,240) - - - NA
investments
To: Financial assets at fair & : IRATEEFA ) AftE (250,240) - - Iyl
value through profitor ~ BHEISREE K&
loss
Financial assets at fair value & A &t A i FVPL2 - 250,240 - - 250,240 FVPL
through profit or loss MeRAE
From: Avalable-for-sale B : At ERE 0} RAYE 250,240 - - YN
investments STABRA FAER
! AFS: Available-for-sale investments
2 FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Note: ffeE -

(i) The Group has classified its wealth management products previously
classified as available-for-sale investments as financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss as these non-equity investments did
not pass the contractual cash flow characteristics test in HKFRS 9.

() AEBEEH LD ERAHHERE
WIEMERDBRRATEFABRR
AEBZEREE  EAXEHERER
AW ARBEEBHEHMELRNF R
MAENRSREFERH
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

2.2 SRS RIKE ()

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(o)

(continued)

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded
at amortised cost that are not accounted for at fair value through
profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an
expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a
lifetime basis. The Group applies the simplified approach and
record lifetime expected losses of trade receivables. The Group
applies the general approach to other debt instruments recorded
at amortised cost. The impacts relating to the provision for
impairment are immaterial.

Impact on reserves and retained profits

The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on reserves and retained
profits is as follows:

o) (&)

B

BEMBHREENFEIRRE R
SRR T W AR B E B M I IR 2R
FORBPRFEAABRSENEBTA
BURME - SR A+ (@A B EF
HREENFAREEEREAAR -
AEBERBLIERGCERE SRR
FOREERERFHNEMERE - A
SEHZBHENATENEMEST
BRA—F - BREREERNEY
EUTRE -

HERERREBRNE

BREFBWHRE LT FEH
BRREENOZEWT

Reserves and
retained profits

RERREER
RMB’000
ARBT T
Fair value reserve under HKFRS 9 REESEVHBREENEIRMN
(available-for-sale investment revaluation AFEFEE (REEBSTER
reserve under HKAS 39) FEIHEMAHHEREEMFHEME)
Balance as at December 31, 2017 under HKAS 39  iRIEFH B & 145 395
RIT—tF+-HA=+—BH#&EHK 180
Reclassification of financial assets from BemEERIEHEREETHE
available-for-sale investments to financial assets ERATEFABRNESREE
at fair value through profit or loss (240)
Deferred tax in relation to the above B\ T E B REREERIA 60
Balance as at January 1, 2018 under HKFRS 9 RIBE Y WS 2ERFE 958
RZZT—\F—HA—Br&EH =
Retained profits RE 4 A
Balance as at December 31, 2017 under HKAS 39 1R EE A &1 485 39 5%
RZZE—tFF+A=+—HA0N&EH 8,414,632
Reclassification of financial assets from BemEERHREEREENHE
available-for-sale investments to financial assets ERAVEFAEBNESREE
at fair value through profit or loss 240
Deferred tax in relation to the above B FIEB B BERELERIA (60)
Balance as at January 1, 2018 under HKFRS 9 BIEB AW EREERIE IR
RZZE—N\F— A —HB8&ER 8,414,812

~
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—ET-N\F+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(©

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it
applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15, establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are included in notes
4 and 5 to the financial statements. As a result of the application
of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed the accounting policy with
respect to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the
standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of initial
application or only to contracts that are not completed at this
date. The Group has elected to apply the standard to contracts
that are not completed as at January 1, 2018. The adoption of
HKFRS 15 does not have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

(i) Sale of goods with variable consideration

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers
with a right of return and volume rebates. Before adopting
HKFRS 15, the Group recognised revenue from the sale of
goods measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns and volume rebates.
If revenue could not be reliably measured, the Group
deferred the recognition of revenue until the uncertainty
was resolved. Under HKFRS 15, rights of return and
volume rebates give rise to variable consideration which is
determined using the expected value method or the most
likely amount method.

2.2 RS REE ()

©)]

BEWBREEA L1655 REER]
BREA S EUFE 1 REZSL
BB R F 185 Wz R AER A
B wrER(MHEARMIMER) A
KEEFAEMNNKE - BEMBRE
ERFASSR B — EFT A BE SR
B HEFANEENKEETA
fR - REBEBBM RS ERIE 155
Wanizpt R B IR XM A TP
BREVRREMARESNREN
THRER - BEVBRELERF15
SRV IR R At 8 M R R BR A B hn
RERBALE TR » FRZERITRSI ABZEY
EUREERBERTE @ BREIFERK
o EREITEENER - T E A
ZHAHNEERABRE BHRNES
PARe & B HI B 2 fb 5T - AHRAREER
B HMRMTAREAN - HRERE
BB HmELAE15  AEED
HE T RRM 2.4 Pk A B as
FERE ST IR -

REBMERT BN ERERNEE
BTG ERELERIE 165 » RIFULTE
ZIRERBRNYGER B S
BHLEERANEBRRARTKOA
#) - AEBRERSZRENEAR
Z-N\F-HA-BHRTERHEL
RABBEMBREEAF15FRHEA
SENAHUBRRALBESATE -

() SHEAFTZKENEY

BOEVMHESNTHRERFE
BRENEREHEREE
B2 o RERINE A I IS RS 2R
F155 A - AEERERIZE K
FERREBENAFEFELE
HIBR R 3R K 84 5 42 0 5 /9 81
EEYRE - MRS ARBET
A2 AEESEERSER
BEETHETHEBSRER - B
BERMIEHREERESS - R
B I 5 dEEh (O] B = A ]
RE X T fEREHREEEK
RAIREM S FAETE ©
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

()

(continued)

@i

Sale of goods with variable consideration
(continued)

Rights of return

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty
products are under the standard warranty terms.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate such returns
at the time of sale. Because of the large volume and low
value of each individual product, the amount of products
returned were immaterial. It is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur. Therefore, no refund liability for goods return
was recognised. The validity of this assumption and the
estimated amount of returns are reassessed at each
reporting date. As a result, there was no accounting impact
on refunds from applying HKFRS 15.

Volume rebates

The food and beverage are sold with volume rebates for
certain customers based on aggregate sales over a period
of time. Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume rebates. Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the
Group estimated the expected volume rebates using the
probability-weighted average amount of rebates approach.
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group has applied
either the most likely amount method or the expected
value method for the estimation of the variable
consideration for expected volume rebates which are
recorded included in other payables and accruals in the
statement of financial position.

2.2 SRS RIKE ()

()

(%)

(i

HEARTERKENEY
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RERE
AEBAARENEmMREH]ER
RO EERRERB R TET
B - T RIER KB AN AET %
FRHEETRHOENR - AR
BREHNERNBREREKX B
BIER  REEMNTEBRT
BB o RFFEHERRE AT
REHIREREIE - Bt - A
ERROERERRREME -
HIAREEEFRLSENE
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gitlE -

HERBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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December 31, 2018

T N\F+=A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

()

(continued)

(ii)

Consideration received from customers in
advance

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognised
consideration received from customers in advance as other
payables. Under HKFRS 15, the amount is classified as
contract liabilities which is included in other payables and
accruals.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
reclassified RMB335,535,000 from advances from
customers to contract liabilities as at January 1, 2018 in
relation to the consideration received from customers in
advance as at January 1, 2018.

As at December 31, 2018, under HKFRS 15,
RMB348,266,000 was reclassified from advances from
customers to contract liabilities in relation to the
consideration received from customers in advance for the
sale of goods.

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity should transfer

property, including property under construction or development,
into or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to
meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence

of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions

for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change

in use. The amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

2.2 SRS RIKE ()

()

(%)

(i) RATEEFWEHKE

KRB B0 E ERFE 1557
Al AEERRIENEEPK
Mz RESEMENRIE - 1R
BEREBUHREERE 155 -
BRSELIBRENAE I
SEAEMCENRERETER -

E it - BB S 3R & %A
F155%  AEEB =T —N\
F—A—BRATAZS WEA
KB A K ¥ 335,535,000 7T
REBEZARENDEA=
T \E—A—BAMAHNEaE-

RZF—-—NEFE+ZRA=+—
A BRESEHBERSELNE
155% - IRATE R W&
ERHE AR 348,266,000
TEHREBRFPZBREH D
mAGHARE-
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

()

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine the
date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the situation
where an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability.
The interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it)
is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability
(such as deferred income) arising from the payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance of recognising the related item, the entity
must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. The interpretation has had no
impact on the Group’s financial statements as the Group’s
accounting policy for the determination of the exchange rate
applied for initial recognition of non-monetary assets or non-
monetary liabilities is consistent with the guidance provided in the
interpretation.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture*
HKFRS 16 Leases’
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material?
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23!
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021
& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on
the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have also
narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
January 1, 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 16, replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a
liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term
(i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability
is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and
reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
all leases using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from January 1, 2019. The Group
plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings at January 1, 2019 and will not restate the
comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-of-
use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognised in the statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial application. The Group plans to use the
exemptions allowed by the standard on lease contracts whose lease
terms end within 12 months as of the date of initial application. During
2018, the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the impact
of adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group has estimated that right-of-use
assets of RMB33,557,000 and lease liabilities of RMB34,254,000 will
be recognised at January 1, 2019.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material if it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from January 1, 2020. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of HKFRS 9
only includes interests in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is applied and does not include long-term interests that
in substance form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore,
an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-
term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which
includes the long-term interests, only in the context of recognising
losses of an associate or joint venture and impairment of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments on January 1, 2019 and will assess its business
model for such long-term interests based on the facts and
circumstances that exist on January 1, 2019 using the transitional
requirements in the amendments. The Group also intends to apply the
relief from restating comparative information for prior periods upon
adoption of the amendments.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope
of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an entity
makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an
entity considers changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation
is to be applied retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the
use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application, without the restatement of comparative information. The
Group expects to adopt the interpretation from January 1, 2019. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

24 EXREBHHERBME

ATEHE

RFER/NFAERRATS2EERETH
BFRRX5%  RHEEEMPERKEER
BXMONER - A FEFETIERRR
CEESBRRBENRINEELBEN
TEMGET  RERFIEMSNER
T AREEXBENRAMNTSET
T ENHHZA MG BARNEE AT EAR
M5 BEFRBHNRAFEDNERTHZ
HEREEXRBETEERMEMBOMRK
B IRRME2EENRREKELH
MEITE -

FEREENAFEFESEREMSELHE
FRBAZAREEAZEEERRER
7® RBREEETHUKARE RS
ZEEERRERENZ —R2MH2EE
M EELEFIZERIREN

AEEERERNTRBRAEFBRAA
REBUBATEAFENGENE  UEE
ERRETEREARBEREER D ER
TR BB AR ©

NEBRERTRARBAFEONEEE
REE HREHATEIEERTEH
EANREFEABIRR FLATEER
BT

F—& — ERAREMNEESREETRD
HHRE CREHE)

FE_& - ERUEEKEEREREATE
AEMEBEANRKEHAR

BEETA

F=H — ERNEEBRYQAFVEFEMNS
BERNSZEEB ABIENMGE
T

IREERUHRRERNEERABEMS
AEERSREMRRIEEER A FER
EMEBEANKEEG ABBENTG
DR BERBHFETREREES -

172

Dali Foods Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF I 5 R BT =

December 31,2018 —Z—\F+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(@)

or

(b)

(continued)

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(v  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vi)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is @ member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Buildings 4.75%
19.00%-23.75%
9.50%-19.00%
9.50%-31.67%

Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery
Other equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress represents a building or plant and machinery
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interest in land and buildings (including the
leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group chooses the cost model to
measure all of its investment properties.

The Group shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property
when, and only when, there is a change in use. A change in use occurs
when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. In
isolation, a change in management’s intentions for the use of a property
does not provide evidence of a change in use.

Up to the date when an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group depreciates the property and
recognises any impairment losses that have occurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of investment properties to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Investment properties 4.75%-5.00%
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment

property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of
the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.

Pipeline rights

Purchased pipeline rights represent the payments made for the use
right of natural gas and water pipelines, which are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of five years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from January 1, 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from January 1,
2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from January 1, 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from January 1, 2018) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments) (continued)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to
the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of
equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in
the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from January 1, 2018) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective
of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if
doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from January 1, 2018) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or
non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through
profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before January 1, 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before January 1, 2018) (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with positive net changes in
fair value presented as other income and gains and negative net
changes in fair value presented as finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable before January 1, 2018)” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before January 1, 2018) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
fair value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in the
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans
and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those which
are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before January 1, 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of
profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable before January 1, 2018)” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its
new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from January 1, 2018 and policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before January 1, 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates fif,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from January 1, 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt investments are
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that
evaluation, the Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt
investments. In addition, the Group considers that there has been a
significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from January 1, 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract
assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

24 EXASHBEBE (&)

ERHEERE(R=-"Z-—N\F-—A—
AREREBMBREENF N
TEER) ()

— iR ()

BEAANKARBERORE  AEEEK
EREER/EN - A EETHBER
i RAK B AR (S 1808 Al
E A EB SN E BHE K AN R BN KA AR
g O AREESNSRE  AAREERA
EREREERSREN SREEERE
TEEIR AT UG B & 4938 2R B 5 T AR

AT B A T EA AR LS E
M 8 75 42 TR AR — AR 05 S TR
BHER TSR BRE - 1
RS IR HOE R A (& R BRI -
ST -

—MEER — BYIRRERAREERBRAE
BELTONERMTARZER
HEN2EAFEBREEEE
ZEBAEBBRRENSRT
=1

>=

F_[EER — AVIRERUREERREE
EFHETBRRIEEERERD
TRMEECERTANZER
HEREER ERFHENRE
EERz B EERREDN
TRTA

E=[RR - RREAHE(EEERENS
BEE(ETZEBELRE
EERE) RZFEBEENE
BErEAFHRREERREZ
SR EERRENEREE

188

Dali Foods Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF I 5 R BT =

December 31,2018 —Z—\F+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from January 1, 2018) (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do not contain
a significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before January 1, 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is @ measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before January 1, 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to administrative
expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative
asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an
unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets
are not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before January 1, 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from January 1, 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before
January 1, 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, or payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from January 1, 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before January 1, 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from January 1, 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before January 1, 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average method and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labor and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are
not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
pUrposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
itemn, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Government grants (continued)

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit or
loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition (applicable from January 1, 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from January 1, 2018)
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the goods.

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with rights of
return and volume rebates. The rights of return and volume rebates

give rise to variable consideration.

)

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return the
goods within a specified period, the expected value method is
used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in HKFRS 15
on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied in
order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can
be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised.
A right-of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from
a customer.

Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the
variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the most
likely amount method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for contracts with
more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best
predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven
by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.
The requirements on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied and a refund liability for the expected
future rebates is recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from January 1, 2018)
(continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Revenue recognition (applicable before January 1, 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold; and

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract assets (applicable from January 1, 2018)

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Contract liabilities (applicable from January 1, 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received a consideration (or an
amount of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to
the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Contract costs (applicable from January 1, 2018)

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a
contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the pattern of the revenue to which the asset related is recognised.
Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Right-of-return assets (applicable from January 1, 2018)

A right-of-return asset represents the Group’s right to recover the
goods expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured
at the former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any
expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases
in the value of the returned goods. The Group updates the
measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected
level of returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of the
returned goods.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Refund liabilities (applicable from January 1, 2018)

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the
consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is
measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to
return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the
end of each reporting period.

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s
net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on
those monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change at fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of the Company and certain overseas
established subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the end
of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas established subsidiaries are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas established subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

24 EXASHBEBE (&)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of dividends

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue withholding taxes
arising from the distributions of dividends by certain subsidiaries
according to the relevant tax rules enacted in the jurisdictions, is
subject to judgement on the plan of the distribution of dividends.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note
18 to the financial statements.

3.

E Rt H R &5t (&)
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HEPRER T EAVRFEHEERBER
EEFHERABNEANRR

BEZRBFARAEEERRE

REEE R R BRELTEE S ERKIER
BHEERE BEXDERAERUE
BEANTREFA A BN AHETE -

BBERNSENAEBBEBRREMFE
MERMBEE - ARERRAEEME - FEUZ
AR AR AR BEEEBHRER - 20
mE - WEREERSE (A A ERE)
BEHRBR AR —FB  EHEREHFE
WEMIEM AERARBEENEK -RE
RERH  BEBRMFENXRSTER
& AT RTIE AR EE) -

HBABRMBENER BAKERER
BHEEEBzEBNEEEETHNTGHE
BAMA - BHEEBEBSBEBERLE
KRIERIEEIRIBAEE G - NEBBTE
EEBEERRBACEREINAVERR
EFHENERENER EEAEEE
SRWIEEREEBIENERNE R
MR FE18HE ©

204

Dali Foods Group Company Limited / Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2018

M EHRERME
—E-N\F+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for slow-moving inventories and net realisable value of
inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the Group at
the end of each reporting period, and makes a provision for slow-
moving inventory items. Management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. Write-down of inventories to net realisable
value is made based on the estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the write-down amount requires
management’s estimates and judgement. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in the future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-down/
write-back of inventories in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences are
recognised as management considers that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary tax
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and deferred tax in the periods in
which such estimates have been changed. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2018 was RMB53,659,000 (2017:
RMB51,724,000), details of which are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and
the related depreciation charge for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated, or will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives
and therefore depreciation charge in the future periods.

3.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION KEFEER
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units BERER  ANEBREERSIDEFE
based on their products and has three reportable operating segments T PEZER 2L ST - FEBOT
as follows:
(@  Manufacture and sale of food; @ HERHEERM:
(b)  Manufacture and sale of beverage; and b) EERBEEHE X
(c) Others. © Hfho
The “Others” segment comprises the sale of packing materials in [Ef ] DA BEEERERE R RABEER
relation to the production of food and beverage and rental income from FARNBEERYHEREREDENELEHRA
the investment property’s prime office space. EZERAMESLA o
Management monitors the gross profit of the Group’s operating EEEBERAEELSEDIBNEN - 5
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about EHEBERD B N EET LIRS
resource allocation and performance assessment. No analysis of the EREAREBRKENLEERB BT -
Group’s assets and liabilities by operating segment is disclosed as it is AR EBBES MY ECHIRES TR S
not regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker for review. BRRERM -
BE-_Z—N\F
Year ended +=ZHA=+—H Food Beverage Others Total
December 31, 2018 IFEE L Rt Hit e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETR ARET R ARET R
Segment revenue pan: 16
Sales to external customers PHE TINIPRFE 10,422,353 9,155,105 1,284,163 20,861,621
Other revenue Halgzs - - 1,936 1,936
20,863,557
Segment gross profit 2 EBEF 3,758,227 4,251,390 41,124 8,050,741
Reconciliation: HEE -
Other income and gains E U A Rk e 649,339
Selling and distribution expenses % & 4% 4 5 % (3,376,667)
Administrative expenses THAX (572,583)
Profit before tax bl 4,750,830
Other segment information: Efth 5 3ER :
Depreciation and amortisation — #78 Kz # £ 147,697 401,016 795 549,508
Capital expenditure * B
Allocated [ 339,478 942,346 - 1,281,824
Unallocated vy 53,594
1,335,418
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

ZE—T *‘EE
Year ended +=A=+—H Food Beverage Others Total
December 31, 2017 IEFE B /e H 5T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARBTT ARBT T ARBT T
Segment revenue 2P
Sales to external customers HETFINR P 9,971,884 8,597,895 1,229,330 19,799,109
Segment gross profit 2 EBEF 3,506,036 3,910,249 41,340 7,457,625
Reconciliation: #ER -
Other income and gains E AU AR Uz 665,982
Selling and distribution expenses 446 & & 4551 (3,248,094)
Administrative expenses TTBAX (523,913)
Profit before tax & #4 BiT v A 4,351,600
Other segment information: E o ZEH :
Depreciation and amortisation — #78 Kz # £ 129,322 370,706 - 500,028
Capital expenditure * NG
Allocated [ 215,928 560,415 - 776,343
Unallocated A EL 32,459
808,802
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment and * BARZBEREYE  BERBMEARE

intangible assets.

Geographical information

Since over 90% of the Group’s revenue and operating profit were
generated from the sale of food and beverage in Mainland China and
over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets were located in Mainland
China, no geographical information is presented in accordance with
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments.

Information about a major customer

Since no revenue from sales to a single customer of the Group
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue, no major
customer information is presented in accordance with HKFRS 8
Operating Segments.

WEE -

EER

AR £2 [ ) 90% LA £ Ui Es K 45 208 I 3R
BETFEABHEERR LK BAKHE
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-~

_

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS S

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

(a) Revenue:

L ONNE-S L PN L6

WARDHTAT
(@ WA :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Revenue from contracts with customers — H B X P& ek

Sale of goods HEEY 20,861,621 19,799,109
Revenue from other sources K G A b R a9 2
Gross rental income WAL 1,936 -
20,863,557 19,799,109
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHNHKRE
()  Disaggregated revenue information ) DEMEER
For the year ended December 31, 2018 HEZZ-N\F+A=+—
HIEFE
Food Beverage Others Total
Segments 2 EB B e Hith @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AR¥TRT ARETRT ARET:R
Type of goods or services S REEE
Sale of goods HEEY 10,422,353 9,155,105 1,284,163 20,861,621
Timing of revenue 5 25 e 5 B
recognition
Goods transferred at RE— R
a point in time B 10,422,353 9,155,105 1,284,163 20,861,621

(i) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
food and beverage and payment is generally due within 30
to 90 days from delivery, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required. Some contracts
provide customers with a right of return and volume
rebates which give rise to variable consideration subject to
constraint.

(i)

BRIEE

B B S R A B M0 R
T

HEEY
BHECRINR MR ERHE
B2 Mt R—MBERR
N1&30E00K AR H - MK
M—ReBRkFEFREMN
He BOAHWBRERFESRT
BARRG T ERRE RER
SR B (LB RE
WA ERE) o
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(b)

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA - Hbr A R Wiz (48)
(continued)
Other income and gains (b) HAWARUKE :
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
Bank interest income (note 6) SRITH BURA (Bf3E6) 346,533 369,215
Fair value gains, net: NFEWEFEE
available-for-sale investments Al ERE
(transfer from equity) (note 6) (B A%z ) (ME6) - 12,981
Other interest income from financial assets B A F{ET ABRAN LR
at fair value through profit or loss (note 6) BEMEARNSWA (FE6) 6,267 -
Government grants* AT R RL > 214,369 230,302
Income from sales of scrap, net HE B AR R A FEE 62,696 52,584
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HEWE - BEMKREHEE B
and equipment g 133 105
Foreign exchange differences, net [ W Z= 2R F 50 19,210 758
Others HAth 131 37
649,339 665,982
* Government grants include various subsidies received by the BB EAA RN B AR B

Company’s subsidiaries from relevant government bodies in connection
with enterprise expansion and efficiency enhancement. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these grants.

A IR I A L ) B D R TR OR A R
REABNSEMBE - Z5HBTE
RERGHERERRER

~
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BR®ADRF
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived after 7R = [ 4 4 AR L TR Y R T BT S5 A T3 &40
charging/(crediting): B (5 A) AR & IBIER
2018 2017
—E-N\E T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®ET T
(@) Cost of sales: (@) SHERZAK:
Cost of inventories sold FEHEEKA 10,964,311 10,694,774
(b) Employee benefit expenses (including (b) EEEFFAX (BEESRT
directors’ and chief executive’s BAREE (MEET7)) ¢
remuneration (note 7)):
Wages and salaries TERF® 1,937,970 1,774,975
Pension scheme contributions, social RIREETEIHR - R R
welfare and other welfare H At F 232,157 198,770
2,170,127 1,968,745
(c) Otheritems: (c) HfhEAE :
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BEMREITE

equipment (note 12) (F5E12) 611,869 555,388
Depreciation of investment properties "EYERE (H:E13)

(note 13) 795 -
Amortisation of land lease payments TR EAT R (R 14)

(note 14) 13,239 14,319
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 15) A EEE (MR 15) 1,029 920
Promotion and advertising expenses WMEREERY 1,939,981 1,877,375
Logistics expense bt 548,383 532,894
Auditor’s remuneration %S AN & 4,500 4,500
Research and development costs B B AN 58,656 54,923
Minimum lease payments under KEAENREAENR

operating leases 19,255 19,019
Foreign exchange differences, net P& N =R 5 HE (19,210 (758)
Fair value gains, net: A EWEFRE : EHE

available-for-sale investments K& (ERE#ER)

(transfer from equity) - (12,981)
Other interest income from financial assets KEZAFEFABTZOESR

at fair value through profit or loss EENEMFE WA (6,267) -
Bank interest income (note 5) SRITH B (F17ES) (346,533) (369,219)
Net loss on disposal of items of property, LEYE  BMEMKEBEEERN

plant and equipment Ei8F 58 3,252 3,900
Government grants T fRG (214,369) (230,302)
Impairment of items of property, plant and W - BE NKREEERE

equipment (note 12) (B$5E12) - 4083
Impairment of trade and bills receivables B 5 W EIE K EWZE R R E 3,908 1,063
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of FECRERR), TRE

inventories (593) 455

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment M- BMERZBERINEVENEURLTE
properties and amortisation of prepaid land lease payments and other N BEREREMEREESHETA
intangible assets are included in “administrative expenses”, “selling and GOt R EMARE W RO 1T ]
distribution expenses” and “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement [THE RS HEAS ] R THEKAE] -
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Research and development costs are included in “administrative ARG A S fHiE = R ARG W TR
expenses” and “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or B [FTERBAS ] R TEHERA] o
loss and other comprehensive income.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 7.
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

EENR

&= 1TBA B3

RIEEMHRA - BB R B EHI383(1)@) -
b O ROHERATREEENZER)
BROIF2HBRBEEERRDITHRAEFHH

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as /N
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
Fees we 550 557
Other emoluments: Hibfhe :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBREYEF 8,864 8,563
Pension scheme contributions and social welfare iR fREH I 28 & 4+ 2 18 Fl| 18 16
8,882 8,579

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

(@) BIUFHITES

FRENBLFATESTNES W

year were as follows: N
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Mr. Cheng Hanchuan BE)%E 136 135
Mr. Liu Xiaobin B/ S A 136 135
Dr. Lin Zhijun MESEL 278 287
550 557

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2017: Nil).

FALEE MR B IFRTTE RN

2 (ZT—+FE:F).

~

/
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/
7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 7. EERBRESITHRAEEHM (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive (b) BITEERBESITHAER
Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances contributions
and benefits and social
Fees in kind welfare Total
ER&5E
e B HIARHE
we KREWEF B st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETFT AREFTT ARETT
2018 —E-N\F
Executive directors: WITES
Mr. Xu Shihui (Chief executive) EF 1858 4 (R =1 TIX
AB) - 2,103 - 2,103
Ms. Xu Yangyang By - 2,411 9 2,420
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang HEmsse - 4,350 9 4,359
- 8,864 18 8,882
Non-executive directors: EMITES :
Ms. Xu Biying TRt - - - -
Ms. Hu Xiaoling tAEES 1+ - - - -
2017 e
Executive directors: WITES :
Mr. Xu Shihui (Chief executive) FF B4 (RE1TIR
AB) - 2,006 - 2,006
Ms. Xu Yangyang 55 2+ - 2,499 8 2,507
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang IHEREAE - 4,058 8 4,066
- 8,563 16 8,579
Non-executive directors: FEHITES -
Ms. Xu Biying PR - - - -
Ms. Hu Xiaoling tAEES 1 - - - -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FRWRESRUAESRBRET
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. ] HE ©
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8. HHEEBR=FHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three FAhEERTHEERE=2EF (=%
directors (2017: three directors), details of whose remuneration are set —tF:=REFF)  BENTHFBEER
out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the EXHiFET7 c EBME (ZE—+tF : WE)
remaining two (2017: two) highest paid employees who are neither a e MEBYIIFARREES RS ITR
director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: AB - EFRNHBFEBWT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYEF 4,751 4,061
Pension scheme contributions and social welfare  EKE 5T 2|4t 2% Rt 218 F) 17 17
4,768 4,078

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

HFHETIBEANNFEFTRIFESITR
ABHESFHHEENAZBNT

Number of employees

BEAE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7= 1,500,000 7% 7T - -
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 /7T £ 2,000,000 7 7T 1 1
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 87T E 2,500,0008 7T - -
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 7T £ 3,000,00078 7T - 1
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £ 3,500,000 78 7T 1 -
2 2

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

On March 21, 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed
into law on March 28, 2018 and was gasetted on the following day.

PGB
AEEARAEERE A TERERIEE
B R HEIR 2 45 0 9 5% % AR i
FIIRE 887 RSB -

REFASHEREBEAFSNRA LS
Bl AEEBABMNEMNFRESESE AR
HERBBFTISH ©

RZE—-NE=A=+—8 BB ILEE
BT —EFHBEUEET) (F75) &0
BR([ZEMNER]) - HS|AFIBR MR
Bl e ZIEHIEERN —_E—NF=ZA -+ N
AEBRALE  WRBATE -
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9. INCOME TAX (continued) FRig% (#)
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HKD2 million of BENESHRES 8B B Y
profits of qualified corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits 2,000,000 7% 7 R E B & 1§ 5 8.25% - H
above HKD2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. For the period ended 12,000,000 7% 7T LA = B9 F11 8 81l 32 16.5% 14
December 31, 2018, Hong Kong profits tax of the qualified entities is HM-Hz2-_TE—\F+_A=+—HItH
calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rate regime. Bl ABRELNBENERIRENE
The profits of other entities not qualified for the two-tiered profits tax ARG E  c NFEERIZTNEHMA
rates regime will continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%. TSRO E M EENA BB EERSE
£ 16.5% HiF °
The two-tiered profits tax rates regime are applicable to one of the FMEHRRMEFHARAEEZE—_E—N\FEFNE—H
Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong for its annual 2% IEFERESEBEANESBEM
reporting periods ended on or after April 1, 2018 (2017: 16.5%). No KIOARBMNBRAR(ZF —+F:
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had 16.5%) e R=—F— \F » ARAEBE I E
no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during 2018 (2017: Nil). NESELERBOEAN A ERLEFEF
SRELEBE(ZZT—tF : £#)
Under the Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the RIEBEFEAREMBE([HERE])FTEHE -
“PRC"), the Company’s subsidiaries that are established in the PRC FE R BB S B AN BB B A RIZB IR 25% HY
were subject to income tax at a base rate of 25%, except for some BRGNS T - DB ATIBIN
subsidiaries which are subject to income tax at a preferential rate of HN — T — | ERE i AE R R TS M R L
15%, as approved by the relevant local tax authorities in 2015, in RZE—NEF—A—HEZZE=-TF+=
different periods between January 1, 2014 and December 31, 2020. A=+—HAM TR AAMIZ15% K EZH =
BANFTISHR ©
The major components of income tax expense are as follows: MY MEE24 I :
2018 2017
—E-N\F T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREET T
Current tax: BNVERFHIE :

Income tax in Mainland China for the year F AR B A TSR 1,035,404 943,349
Deferred tax (note 24) EIEFIE (FEE24) (1,935) (25,452)
Total tax charge for the year FABIE AR 1,033,469 917,897
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December 31, 2018

10.

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax

rate is as follows:

9. FrEH (&)

BARB RERES B R R PTERDEE
5B P 170 R 5 B 1) B9 0R TE B SR M0 B TR
XERERREOHAROHRRET

2018 2017
—B-\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Profit before tax R A A 4,750,830 4,351,600
Tax at the statutory tax rate (25%) 1B TR R BRI TR IE (25%) 1,187,708 1,087,900
Effect of tax relief enjoyed by certain subsidiaries & FHB AT = AR EHIER
o (142,147) (157,535)
Income not subject to tax* BAERTAUA > (18,033) (16,317)
Expenses not deductible for tax PRI A B 2 1,317 1,011
Unrecognised tax losses RERMIBERE 4,624 2,838
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BRASEERBEETNTIE
S| 1,033,469 917,897
* Income not subject to tax mainly includes the profit from the primary agricultural & BAMRTHRAFZEEREPEF ERH

product processing, which is exempted from income tax in accordance with

the PRC tax law.

FRISHE R B VIR RERINTEE T -

DIVIDENDS 10. RE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBETT

Interim — HKD0.085 (2017: HKDO.100) FH — FREREAR0.085 T
per ordinary share (ZZ=—+t% : 01008 7T) 1,024,262 1,156,454

Proposed final - HKD0.075 (2017: HKDO.100) ZEEoARE — BIEAEAR0.075
per ordinary share BT (ZE—EF : 0.10077T) 877,447 1,102,787
1,901,709 2,259,241

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

' o

EFBIRN A FEE RIS ARFAR AR
RREERRBFARG LHER - HAE

J
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_

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11.

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
13,694,117,500 (2017: 18,694,117,500) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the

years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on:

BRAREBERERSE ARG
BRER

BRERBNEBIRES QAR L BEE
BREABGFANRMNEFANL ET

13,694,117,500f% ( = T — £ #F:
13,694,117,500 fi% ) & 38 [% B9 N F 25 25T

FEERBE_Z-NFR-_ZE—LF
T-A=+-BULFEYERBAHEY
ZHDBRTEBRK

BREANEERBFNWAEIERTX

2018 2017
—s-n% —F—+4
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT

Earnings
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of

B8R

BRREBEESRTE ARG

the parent gl 3,717,361 3,433,703
Number of shares
RGHEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
Shares 8y

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year

FAB BT EBROINE T

13,694,117,500 13,694,117,500

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted (RMB)

BREF
EXRR#EE(ARET)

0.27 0.25
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\
12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% -  BMERKRE
Motor Plant and Other Construction
Buildings vehicles  machinery  equipment in progress Total
EEREBER
BF "E i Hih EEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%Tn AR%¥Tn AR®Tx AR%®Tn ARETR
December 31, 2018 R-E-N\F
+t=A=t-8
At January 1, 2018: RZE—N\&F
—A—8:
Cost %N 1,542,965 75,172 5,246,402 487,655 249,953 7,602,147
Accumulated depreciation ZEHERRE
and impairment (450,085) (60,607)  (2,572,196) (246,209) - (3,329,097)
Net carrying amount BEEEE 1,092,880 14,565 2,674,206 241,446 249,953 4,273,050
At January 1, 2018, net of RZE—)\F
accumulated depreciation —HA—B kR
and impairment S E RRE 1,092,880 14,565 2,674,206 241,446 249,953 4,273,050
Additions NE 19,514 23,422 526,983 129,315 578,859 1,278,093
Depreciation provided during S REHERITE
the year (note 6) (FfizEe) (71,720) (5,456) (471,857 (62,836) - (611,869)
Transfers R 109,845 - 191,409 6,197 (307,451) -
Transfers to investment HEEREME
properties (note 13) (PtzE13) - - - - (23,471) (23,471)
Disposals e (3,421) (137) (618) (312) - (4,488)
At December 31, 2018, RZE—\F
net of accumulated +-A=+—8"
depreciation and impairment 41k REHTE K
RIE 1,147,098 32,394 2,920,123 313,810 497,890 4,911,315
At December 31, 2018: RZE—N\F
+=A=+—8:
Cost %N 1,668,903 98,457 5,964,176 622,855 497,890 8,852,281
Accumulated depreciation and 25+ &RE
impairment (521,805) (66,063)  (3,044,053) (309,045) - (3,940,966)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,147,098 32,394 2,920,123 313,810 497,890 4,911,315
J
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T N\F+=A=+—H

\_

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

12. ¥1% - BEK&E (&)

Motor Plant and Other Construction
Buildings vehicles  machinery  equipment in progress Total
EEREBER
BF B HeEs Hi5 EETRR mEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
December 31, 2017 R-B—+t5&
+=A=+—H
At January 1, 2017: RZZT—+t5F
—H—H:
Cost N 1,495,616 69,582 4,533,199 411,899 159,306 6,669,602
Accumulated depreciation 2t E MEE
and impairment (381,206) (54,025 (2,142,816)  (195,259) - (2,773,306)
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,114,410 15,557 2,390,383 216,640 159,306 3,896,296
At January 1, 2017, netof R=ZE—+4F
accumulated depreciaton ~ —H—H 1k
and impairment 2HIERRE 1,114,410 15,557 2,390,383 216,640 159,306 3,896,296
Additions NE 81568 5,653 381,587 70,198 480,254 941,245
Depreciation provided FRHENITE
during the year (note 6) (ET) (68,879) (6,582) (428,979) (50,948) - (555,388)
Transfers i 43,796 - 340,253 5,558 (389,607) =
Disposals & = (63) (8,637) - = (8,700)
Impairment during the year — 4E A& (Fi{5E6)
(note 6) - - (401) ) - (403)
At December 31, 2017, R-T—tF
net of accumulated +=-A=+—8"
depreciation and MR EATER
impairment BB 1,092,880 14,565 2,674,206 241,446 249,953 4,273,050
At December 31, 2017: RZZ—+F
+=A=+—8:
Cost BAR 1,542,965 75,172 5,246,402 487,655 249,953 7,602,147
Accumulated depreciation 2t E &EE
and impairment (450,085)  (B0,607) (2,572,196)  (246,20) - (3,329,097)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,092,880 14,565 2,674,206 241,446 249,953 4,273,050

As at December 31, 2018, the Group had yet to obtain property
ownership certificates for certain buildings with an aggregate net book
value of RMB107,880,000 (2017: RMB246,057,000). Notwithstanding
this, the directors are of the opinion that the Group owned the
beneficial titles to these buildings at the end of the reporting period.

MR-EBE—NFEF+-F=+—8 A&EEH
R EREFAES £ AR 107,880,000 7T
(ZZ=—+5F : AR¥246,057,0007C) H) &
TEFISYEMEEE RENOW £
ERAAEERREPREEZSEFTH
Ean o
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REY=
Investment
Properties
REWE
RMB’000
ARET
December 31, 2018 R=ZB-NF+=H=+—H
At January 1, 2018 RZZT—N\FE—H—H
Cost BN -
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZEITE RRE -
Net carrying amount REFE -
At January 1, 2018, net of accumulated R=ZE—N\F—F—H "
depreciation and impairment Mk 2T E RRE -
Transfer from construction in process (note 12) EEBEAAERETRE(MHE12) 23,471
Transfer from prepaid land lease payments (note 14) EEETEN A E R
(HtzE14) 19,716
Depreciation provided during the year (note 6) FREHERNITE (Mi:E6) (795)
At December 31, 2018, net of accumulated RZZT—N\E+=ZA=+—8 "
depreciation and impairment R RETITE R E 42,392
At December 31, 2018: RZZE—N\F+_A=+—8:
Cost AN 47,225
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Z2ETITE LRE (4,833)
Net carrying amount AR FHAE 42,392

The Group’s investment properties consist of one investment property
in Mainland China. The directors of the Company have determined that
the investment property consist of one class of asset, commercial,
based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the property. The
Company applies the cost model. At December 31, 2018, the Group’s
investment properties were not pledged.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 30(b)(i) to
the financial statements.

AEBENREVERE —BURHEARM
MEEWE - REVEOEE - HERE
B ARREFTEETREVEEE —BE
EAEE - ARAREAKAERN - R
E-N\E+ZA=+—HB FEENKE
MELEEM -

REMEREKLRELHTFE=H " &
R T 515 B A B 75 TR 3R T 5 30(b) i) ©

~

J
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_

14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. B L FEEEKE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
Carrying amount at January 1 R—A—HBHEREE 576,740 591,059
Additions during the year FARNE 13,637 -
Transfer to investment properties (note 13) EBEEINEYE (F:E13) (19,716) -
Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) FREHRR B (T5F6) (13,239) (14,319)
Carrying amount at December 31 R+ A=+—HBWEEE 557,422 576,740

The carrying amount of the Group’s prepaid lease payments represents
the carrying amount of land use rights in Mainland China. The Group
has obtained all the land certificates as at December 31, 2018 (the
Group was in process of applying for the land certificates with a
carrying amount of RMB38,176,000 as at December 31, 2017).

AEETAN B EFIRN R ERE R
PEAMH T ERENREE  R-F
—N\FE+ZRA=+—08 AEEEREM
BLE(AREEHEFN _F—tF+=
A=+—BREEBEARAR38,176,0007T
B o
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~

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B &EE

Pipeline scheme
Software rights Total
LIgLs EERER sTEIEEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
December 31, 2018 —E-N\F+=-BA=+—H
Cost at January 1, 2018, net of R_ZF—N\F—A—HRAE

accumulated amortisation Bk Rt EESE 1,860 1,716 3,576
Additions during the year FRRNE - 328 328
Amortisation provided during the year FAFHER B (FHsE6)

(note 6) (635) (394) (1,029)
At December 31, 2018 —E-NE+=-A=+—H 1,225 1,650 2,875
At December 31, 2018: - \Ft+ZA=+—8":

Cost D% 5,023 4,406 9,429

Accumulated amortisation BN (3,798) (2,756) (6,554)

Net carrying amount BRTEFEE 1,225 1,650 2,875
December 31, 2017 —E—+tH+=ZH=+—H
Cost at January 1, 2017, net of RZZB—tF— A —BHHA -

accumulated amortisation Rk Rt EEH 2,724 130 2,854
Additions during the year FARNE = 1,642 1,642
Amortisation provided during the year FRFHRAEHE (M5E6)

(note 6) (864) (56) (920)
At December 31, 2017 —E—tF+A=+—H 1,860 1,716 3,576
At December 31, 2017: —T—+F+=-A=+—8":

Cost AN 5,023 4,078 9,101

Accumulated amortisation BT (3,163) (2,362) (5,525)

Net carrying amount BREFE 1,860 1,716 3,576

/
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16. PREPAYMENTS 16. FA{TFRIE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARKET T
Prepayments for the purchase of land use rights & B + {5 FA#E T8 1< 5/ 18 58,380 -
Prepayments for the purchase of property, BBEWE  BE&RENTER
plant and equipment A 186,484 149,845
244,864 149,845
Prepayments are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. None of the FBRNFIEAEEAR TS - LB EY
above assets is either past due or impaired. FEi HRSRE ©
17. INVENTORIES 17. &
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARKEFT
Raw materials and packaging materials JRA B HE M 849,456 952,089
Finished goods X S 288,343 381,115
1,137,799 1,333,204
18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18. EZERREREREE
2018 2017
—E-N\F “E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARKETT
Trade receivables H 5 W FRIE 717,036 1,085,861
Bills receivable JEWE 1’ 3,628 3,008
Impairment VERED (5,960) (3,962)
714,704 1,084,902
The credit periods range from 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of EREN T0ZE0K - RMEHR @ e
trade and bills receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based ERARTNKREERBRELNE S ER
on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: HIEREWEBRORER AT -
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREEFIT
Within 90 days ESe 685,118 1,054,994
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 13,172 18,031
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 16,414 11,877
714,704 1,084,902
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18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and bills
receivables are as follows:

18. EZBWREREBRERE (&)

B HRBFIAREREREEEREE SN
T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TR AREETT

At beginning of year F4) 3,962 2,899
Impairment losses, net BEEIE R 1,998 1,063
At end of year FR 5,960 3,962

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended
December 31, 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighed outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Bills receivable are bank acceptance bills that are unconditionally
accepted by banks within the maturity period, and there is no loss

allowance for impairment of bills receivable.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at December 31, 2018

BHE_Z-N\F+-A=+—-HL
FERBEREMBRELENF RN
B

NS B ARBBEREETRED T -
U ERMEERR - BEXTDHENAS
BUEEREANZEEF 5 8B4 a S
BEETE Rt ERRIATMESR
ERBEINBEARAUSNEREBES
T8 BRI ROR R BE RT3
KA SEEH o

FEW R iR R RTTIN IR A B IR MR AR
RITAAEE - BXEREEZERER
REBRRE -

TERERBERE I AKEESHEK
REFEAZNEERRER

—2-NFt=A=t+-8

J

Within 91 to 181 to

90 days 180 days 365 days Total

90 KA 91Z180Xk 181ZE365XK et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREKTT

Expected credit loss rate TRHEEEER 0.76% 1.56% 3.01% 0.83%

Gross carrying amount R 4EE 686,781 13,331 16,924 717,036

Expected credit losses FEHEEEE 5,242 208 510 5,960
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18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. BZEWRER EWERE (&)
Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended BE-—Z—tH&+=-HB=+—H1t
December 31, 2017 FERBEBSHEREIRMNRE

=l
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at December BIEEB ST 4ER|E 305 » W Fef it
31, 2017 that were not individually nor collectively considered to be FWEAERENE SEINZIBE L EREZE
impaired under HKAS 39 is as follows: R-T—tF+-_A=+—BHERED
LU
2017
T4
RMB’000
ARBTTT
Neither past due nor impaired BE AR B XK RLE 996,998
Past due but not impaired: Bis AT AR E
Less than 90 days past due B H DR 90 K 74,987
90 to 180 days past due AEF0 E 180K 3,419
Over 180 days past due BIHR180 KA £ 9,498
1,084,902
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a large BR 7R 380 HA AR R (B B JFE Uk 3k 78 B 5T HR T £
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history BN AREZTILEFEER -
of default.
Receivables that are past due but not impaired related to a number of 460 HA M 37 SRR (B /Y B U 3R 18 B2 % 4 BA K
independent customers that had a good track record with the Group. EBEAERFERENBIEFEAR - K
The Group has not impaired these debtors as there has not been a SETEHZSERKITRE  AAEED
significant change in credit quality and the directors believe that the EUWHESASHEEETRBZIRIEATN
amounts are recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over Wm - ARNEE I E L% E L BT A T AE
these balances. e
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19.

20.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. FARERE M EURIE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBT T

Prepayments to suppliers A EEEE B TR B 282,123 258,048
Prepayments for advertising services EERIGTENRIE 25,672 34,660
Deposits He 3,780 10,450
VAT recoverable (i) BRI E T () 9,095 3,283
Interest receivables U R S 153,326 140,168
Other receivables H i FEUFRIA 15,163 10,652
489,159 457,261

(i) The Group’s sales of goods are subject to Mainland China Value
Added Tax (“VAT”). Input VAT on purchases can be deducted
from output VAT payable. The VAT recoverable is the net
difference between output VAT and deductible input VAT. The
applicable tax rate for domestic sales of the Group is 17% before
May 1, 2018 and 16% effective from May 1, 2018 (2017: 17%).

Prepayments and other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. None of the above
assets is either past due or impaired.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

() AEENRMAEEESMPERER
([EED]) - KR ETHILET A B
FEATSHTEISE R R R o FRIEHIEE
750 7% B8 TE 12 B 5 B A 1Rk o T I (E AR
HFERE - NEBBRANHEENEAT
KRZE—N\FREA—BAAE17% "
RZFE—N\FRA—RA%E16%(=
T—tF 17%) °

BN IR R A YRR R EER - T
SAEREEEERY - L EEHRRE
Bl - JRERE ©

20. AIMHHERE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT T AREET T

Available-for-sale investments AHHERE - 250,240

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 effective from January 1, 2018, the
Group has elected to present in profit or loss changes in the fair value
of all its wealth management products previously classified as available-
for-sale investments, because these investments did not pass the
contractual cash flow characteristics test in HKFRS 9.

Upon transition, the available-for-sale investment reserve relating to
wealth management products, which had been previously recognised
under accumulated other comprehensive income, was reclassified to
retained profits.

RZZE-NFE-—RB —BRATENBERSE
EHFOHEK - AREDEERURFESR
Jﬁ%ﬁnﬁﬁTTﬁﬁ&ﬁm%ﬁ@%
EmNBEZE  HARFRENTE
E%M%ﬁ%ﬁ%%gﬁmé%ﬁﬁﬁ%
FOAE -

RBEHRE - FREMERN A HEER
B (Ep REt Efbsr A et TR T FERR)
EEHDBEEAREEN o

~
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21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED 21. ReRIBTEKREHRER
DEPOSITS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREET T
Cash at banks and on hand RITEEFRS 9,289,495 5,360,569
Bank deposits RITIER 801,805 2,784,968
10,091,300 8,145,537
Less: Pledged short-term deposits L AT HATE R (12,734) (49,889)
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE 10,078,566 8,095,648
Pledged short-term deposits were pledged as security for issuance of BHEHERDEHIEARNEE R ITRN
bills payable (note 22) and letters of credit of the Group. =g (s 22) M= ERER -
The Group’s cash and bank balances at December 31, 2018 were REEBR-_Z—\F+_A=+—HHE
denominated in the following currencies: & RIBITEBATINEEEHE -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
RMB AR 9,917,049 7,195,719
HKD P& T 105,753 857,720
usD ET 54,822 41,994
EUR BT 942 215
10,078,566 8,095,648
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under ARETESEHIBRAEMEE - KM
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and AR5 P B A 1 B INEE B 3B (6191 ) Je A5 FE -
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange EENMNEEERE)  AEBEESAE
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other BRIEREIINEEFNIRITEBARE LB A
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange Hih E#E o
business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RITRESEESRETEINXREEE ST
deposit rates. Bank deposits are made for varying periods of between REEEF B o RITEHR AR —BZE+ @
one day and twelve months depending on the cash requirements of the ATE  BIEAEBRNIRESEEMmMEIL LA
Group, and earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. The bank HREBTEIANREERAE - RITEL N
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks BHEREFERREERF B ETHERAR
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of cash and TACEEMIRTT - M RRTTEK L E T
bank balances and pledged deposits approximate to their fair values. THEEmEERFESEATFEMES -
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22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

22. ESRENREREMNERE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT AR¥EFTT

Trade payables B S e FRIE 812,104 850,827
Bills payable DR 129,730 38,452
941,834 889,279

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the transaction date, is as follows:

RBEHRR REXZHAHEOINEZE
MR RENERNRESTAT

2018 2017

—E-N\F Tt

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBETT

Within 90 days 90 KA 810,127 863,186
91 to 365 days 91 £ 365K 122,602 17,992
1to 2 years 1ZE24 2,483 6,815
Over 2 years 2FE F 6,622 1,286
941,834 889,279

Certain bills payable were secured by the pledge of the Group’s short-
term deposits of RMB11,265,000 at December 31, 2018 (December
31, 2017: RMB24,018,000) (note 21).

AETENEBUAEBR =T —N\F+=
A=+ BEHRMNREHAGTERARE
11,265,000 T EEF(ZE—EF+ = A
=+—H8: AR¥24,018,0007t ) (fff 7

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and normally settled within
30 days. The bills payable are non-interest-bearing and normally settled

within 90 days.

21) e

BHRMNRETFE  —RNI0ORAH
B BNRETAR - —RNORAEE

~

J
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23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HtbENFIERERTER
2018 2017
ZB-N\F —FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Advances from customers B EIER - 335,535
Contract liabilities aHBaE 348,266 -
Payables for purchase of property, BEMZE - WE RS ENER
plant and equipment I8 265,457 199,933
Payables for purchase of prepaid land BE B IE A + A S F A ) R
lease payments IE 20,000 33,865
Payroll and welfare payables JEfF T& KAEF 286,840 243,570
Other tax payable Hh e FiIE 158,066 148,700
Other payables H e 5RE 145,166 86,578
Accruals FEFT & A 96,372 95,180
1,320,167 1,143,361
Details of contract liabilities as at December 31, 2018 and January 1, R-ZZE—NE+_A=+—BR=ZE—N
2018 are as follows: F-—A—HRMEHAGEFBOT :
December 31, January 1,
2018 2018
—E-N\E —=—N\F
t=RA=+-H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Short-term advances received from customers B EF R Bi# %
Sale of goods HEE® 348,266 335,535
Total contract liabilities BB ERE 348,266 335,535
Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on HEMENZIERAEER THEREARE
demand. SKEFEE ©

_
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24.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are

as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

24, JEIERIE
ERNEEHELEREENSHNT -

EEHREEE

2018

Fair value
adjustments
arising from
financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss
—B-NF
EAFEA
BRNESmEE
EEWATE
AR
RMB’000
ARBT T

At January 1, 2018
Deferred tax credited directly to the statement of profit
or loss during the year (note 9)

R=ZZ2—NF—HF—H
FRNEETABRROBELEHE (M)

(60)

60

Gross deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2018

R NF+-A=1+—HNRELEHRE
SRR -

2017 Fair value
adjustments
arising from
available-for-sale
investments
—E—+tF
AHEERE
EENATE
B
RMB’000
AR¥EFTT

At January 1, 2017
Deferred tax credited directly to equity during the year

R-ZF—+F—H—H (67)
FREZT ARRARER A 7

Gross deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2017

RZE—+F+-A=1+—HHORLERHE
BEMERE

~

)
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24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the statement of financial position. Net deferred tax
assets recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at December 31, 2018 were RMB53,659,000 (2017: RMB51,724,000).

24, EEFIE (18)
B E A (5)

BEIZEN ETEEHBEERAE
EREBRAIRAEKE - R=ZF—N\F
TZA=+—A®EHIMBKARAER
BIEFE TR I8 & B F (E & A R 53,659,000
T(ZE—+tF : AR¥51,724,0007T) °

Deferred tax assets IRIEFRIBEE
2018
—E-N\F
Losses
available
for offsetting
against
Unrealised future
internal sales taxable
profit profits Accruals Others Total
AT 445 8 AR 3R
RERRT ERBEFMN
HERT [ 3] PEStE A Hitt mst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR%TR AR%®TR AR®TrR AR%Tx
At January 1, 2018 R=ZZE—NE
—H—H 10,615 6,130 19,542 15,497 51,784
Deferred tax (credited)/charged &R (5t A),/ 4%
to the statement of profit or B8RRI
loss during the year (note 9) 3 (£ 9) @13) 1,955 1,747 (1,414) 1,875
Gross deferred tax assets at RZE—N\F
December 31, 2018 +=-A=+—H
EETIAE E
1B 10,202 8,085 21,289 14,083 53,659
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24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

~
24, EERIE (1)

Deferred tax assets (continued) EERIEESE (&)
2017
—E—+F
Losses
available
for offsetting
against
Unrealised future
internal sales taxable
profit profits Accruals Others Total
A AR
RERAE ERTENE
SHERAM 22! fE:tE A Hil et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR
At January 1, 2017 RZT—+tF
—H—H 7,700 5,054 9,675 3,903 26,332
Deferred tax credited to FEREFABRRA
the statement of profit or BRI (FiEE9)
loss during the year (note 9) 2,915 1,076 9,867 11,594 25,452
Gross deferred tax assetsat AT —+F
December 31, 2017 +=—A=+—8
FERETRIREE
1B 10,615 6,130 19,542 15,497 51,784

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax losses
of RMB21,278,000 as at December 31, 2018 (2017: RMB14,596,000),
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be

available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from January 1, 2008 and applies to earnings after
December 31, 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of 5% may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is
therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings

generated from January 1, 2008.

BEEHEEENARR=_Z—/\F+=A
=+— B/ AR®21,278,000 7T K5 H &
B(ZZ—+F : AR¥ 14,596,000t ) f&
R BRAAZSEEER —HRBEEN
WBARINEELT —BEMRE - TRAR G
B FERT m A 7] A SHTR B 18 -

RIBEFRBDEREEE - KA BN
R INE (B MIRIMEE B T IRR B
W10% B - ZREE=_ZZTN\F—A
—HRENR WEAR-_ZZTtF+=A
=T —HZEBREENRBF o 45+ EEZ
FHNHIGE EFTE R AR T A RURE -
RIFEMRR AR K FAES% - ERAEE @ @
BFHEE10% - Bt - AEBE AR+ E
N B AR R =TT NEFE—A
— RS AR ER S AANTENT -
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24. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24, EEBIE (&)
Deferred tax assets (continued) EERIEEE (&)
As at December 31, 2018, no deferred tax has been recognised for RZE—NE+—_A=+—8 " TERFIEAK
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings SERP AT BBHRTENHRAE
that are subject to withholding taxes of certain subsidiaries established T Ff B 2 &) /9 AR BE H & | i AR e 1+ A9 T8
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the Directors, it is not probable that HFELERITE - EER 58 ZEZWBAF
these subsidiaries will distribute earnings arising from January 1, 2008 RARERDER_ZEZENF—HF—HZ
to December 31, 2018 in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount —E-N\FE+—A=+—HELEHAFNK
of temporary differences associated with the investments in these HWerK R-_Z—N\F+_A=+—8"
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not BLEERI TR B (& M R MR B e b B
been recognised totalled approximately RMB11,958,518,000 as at NEIWRERAEN TR EENEASES
December 31, 2018 (2017: RMB8,326,045,000). HHAR¥11,958,518,000t( — & —+
&+ AR 8,326,045,0007T) °
25. DEFERRED REVENUE 25. I|AEW A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBETT
At beginning of year F1) 324,186 318,571
Additions during the year FRRE 71,742 28,437
Released to profit or loss BxiEn (25,710) (22,822)
At end of year FR 370,218 324,186
Government grants have been awarded for the construction of certain KARMBARINE THE  BE LK E
items of property, plant and equipment and prepaid land lease TEHMERERTEN LA ERIE D B
payments of the Company’s subsidiaries. There are no unfulfilled T RE o MEEE A R 2% 5 Bh A R AR I
conditions and contingencies relating to these grants. R e SR A o
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B
Shares % 12
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR®ET T
Authorised: SERE -
50,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 50,000,000,000 A% &% 0.01
HKDO0.01 each B TTR) AR 409,085 409,085
Issued and fully paid: BEETRHR :
18,694,117,500 ordinary shares of 13,694,117,500 i &% 0.01
HKDO.01 each B TT R T AR 112,712 112,712

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and

U AR A AR BATIRA KR4

~

J

share premium is as follows: ML E :
Number of Equivalent Pension
issued and nominal scheme
fully paid value of contributions
ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
BETREH
LR RR EHEEEN BEearElf
b Lk FRIDEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
At January 1, 2017 —t&—HF—H 13,694,117,500 112,712 6,715,905 6,828,617
Final 2016 dividend declared BER= %ﬁ NERERE = = (2,148,221) (2,148,221)
Interim 2017 dividend declared BER-Z—tFHHRE = = (1,156,454) (1,156,454)
At December 31, 2017 and RZZ—+tF+=RA=+—H
January 1, 2018 —Z—-)\#—HF—H 13,694,117,500 112,712 3,411,230 3,523,942
Final 2017 dividend declared BER-Z—tFRBBRE - - (1,126,779) (1,126,779)
Interim 2018 dividend declared BER=-ZT—/\FHHARE = = (1,024,262) (1,024,262)
At December 31, 2018 RZZ—\E+ZA=+—H 13,694,117,500 112,712 1,260,189 1,372,901
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27.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 148 to 149 of the financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium of the Group represents the amount paid by
shareholders for capital injection in excess of its nominal value. Details
of the movements in the share premium are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents capital contributions from
the equity holders of the Company. The additions in prior years
represent the injections of additional paid-in capital by the equity
holders of the subsidiaries to the respective companies. The deductions
in prior years represent the acquisitions of paid-in capital of the
subsidiaries by the Group from the Controlling Shareholders which are
accounted for as distributions to the Controlling Shareholders.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to wholly-
foreign-owned companies, certain entities within the Group are required
to allocate a certain portion (not less than 10%), as determined by their
boards of directors, of their profit after tax in accordance with the PRC
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to the statutory reserve fund
(the “SRF”) until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event of liquidation and,
subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations,
can be used to offset accumulated losses or be capitalised as issued
capital.

In accordance with relevant regulations and the articles of association,
a subsidiary registered in the PRC as a domestic company is required
to appropriate 10% of its net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses
from prior years) to the SRF. After the balance of such reserve reaches
50% of the entity’s capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion
of the company. The SRF can be utilised to offset accumulated losses
or increase capital. However, the balance of the SRF must be
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital after such usages.

27. {#1E

RAFERBEEE - ARENHES S
RAEBEH2INHBREE48EEE
149 EMAGHERRB% -

MR A2 {8

A 55 B 0 R 19 i (R B8 BRSBTS
02 BB I HEEN TS - BRI E
SREBARAFRELDS -

BOtEE

AEENAHREBERERNRAERRTE
AWEARHE - BEFEAERWE AR
BEFAEARZRANEIABEIIEFER -
BEFERDEAEERREZERBRIRK
BB ARNEMEAR (RARLIZEBRER
DIRAER) e

EERME

RIS IR A (3 AR BER
AEEANE TERESR T (T
N10% ' AEHESSET)NREFEAR
SR EAGENRESREE S EATHE
ErEe((LAERHELTES] EEE6H
EEETMEARNS50% °

EERBEAEERBELFRIMITADIK -
EMNEEETEDERESI0E TREE
A AREHE R BERERCIEE HIT
N o

RERBEIRMASERAR - EPEE
2R E R 5 H M B A =) 7858 H 10% B 42
MEEEEF REFBRR) EEERFRBER
B - MZEEEEREZBERELN
50% - R &) ] B9 15 1E T BRSME SR o
AE MR AES A A EERE R B RSIE
B RM - FEERRR  ZEERHEBR
ReRERBEFERTINERN25% -
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28.

20.

30.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 28. IAREE
As at December 31, 2018, the Group did not have any significant Bz ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—H8H &x&£H
contingent liabilities. MEANERKABE -
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 2. EEER
Details of the Group’s bills payable and letters of credit, which are REBWENZELERZE(UARERERE
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 21 to the VEIHR) S IE SN SRR M zE 21 -
financial statements.
COMMITMENTS 30. &IE
(@) Capital commitments (@) EXEE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of RBEHR KEBHEREEN
the reporting period: T
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®ET T
Contracted, but not provided for: BERTAVR M ARFT IR B -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MRE 215,077 420,638
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEEHRE
(i)  Aslessor (i) {ERHBA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13 to the
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from two to six
years. The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

AEBERBEEHERFHA
HEEME(HBRRME
13)  HEIEE RN FMEN
FoHEGRK—RIFZRAL
X ERRE - RIRERTH
SUEH E AT & T BB -

J
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30. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments (continued)
(i) As lessor (continued)

At December 31, 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

30.

=iE ()
REEERE ()

(b)

i)

ERHAA (F)

R-F-—NF+=A=t-—
A AREREEF BT
BEEAE TORRRERS
B BEMT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F T+ F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Within one year —FR 5,023 =
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEFRF

(BREREREMF) 15,466 -

After five years AFLA L 131 =

20,620 -

At December 31, 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

RZBE-NF+ZA=+—
B - AREREM S AN
HEEME THRRFERE
BT

2018 2017

—B-N\F —

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARKETTT

Within one year —FER 19,705 18,671
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFEFERF

(BREEEWEF) 20,196 36,752

39,901 55,423
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@)
(@)

3. BEHAIRS

Transactions with related parties: () HEBEBLINXS:
Sales of products: iy SHEEm:
2018 2017
—B-\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBT T
Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd. ERHABERRAF 169 165

The sales to Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd., which is a
company controlled by the Controlling Shareholders, were
made according to the published prices and conditions
offered to the major customers of the Group.

(i)

FZEMELBEFR AR (R
R BRI HIE R B]) 1F
HEHE DRBIRH T AKHE
TEEPHC BMER RGNS

T o
Rental expenses: (i) HEeMEx
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTTT
Fujian Dali Foods Group Co., Ltd. REEMNRMEEBERAT 18,232 18,232

Rental expenses represent expenses from leases of
properties and prepaid land lease payments which are
charged in accordance with the terms of the agreements
made between the Group and Fujian Dali Foods Group

MR EREMENR R
BN L EERIE  RAKE
HEERENRMEEARAA
(— i) e AR 42 B e SR 6 A9

~

4)

Co., Ltd., which is a company controlled by the Controlling N e e R E -
Shareholders.
(i)  Services purchased: (i) EBRE:
2018 2017
—E-N\F “E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Dali Gentury Hotel Co., Ltd. ERH 4B EGR AT 6,307 508
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

(b)

Transactions with related parties: (continued)
(iv) Commitment with a related party:

Pursuant to the operating lease agreement with Fujian Dali
Foods Group Co., Ltd., the amount of total rental expenses
for the year is included in note 31(a)(i) and the amount of
total future minimum payments under the operating lease
arrangement is RMB36,463,000.

31. BEAEXRZ (&)

EEBLINRS : ()
(iv) EREAEET HYEIE -

REEEZENREEEER
RERT UMK EREWZ - F
W& X BRI MEES1(@)
(i) REHELHA T HIRK
EENFBERSARE
36,463,000 7T °

Compensation of key management personnel of TEBFTEEEASHH :
the Group:
2018 2017
—E-N\F T tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFIT
Salaries e 16,490 15,663
Pension scheme contributions and BEZCTEIHR T EEF]
social welfare 52 51
16,542 15,714

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 7 to
the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(), (a)(ii) and
(a)(iii) above also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

EREEMHE —THIBFRRUE
WRMEET ©

AR @) - @)i) M (a)ii) B B 8
B R SIMER ETARRETTOAE
THBRER SXIFEBERS -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32. REMESINEMTE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments NEEHARALELH TANEREDT

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

~

2018 BN\
Financial assets SMEE
Financial assets at
amortised cost
REBHRATIER
NEREE
RMB’000
AR¥TR
Trade and bills receivables B 5 W IE K B R 714,704
Financial assets included in prepayments SFAFERM A © B E K E A RE W E
and other receivables MemEE 172,269
Pledged deposits ERiVEE N 12,734
Cash and bank balances R RRITHEH 10,078,566
10,978,273
Financial liabilities TRasE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REHRATER
NEmas
RMB’000
AR¥T R
Trade and bills payables B SN FIERENEE 941,834
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals st A EMbERM B MEFERN SR EE 526,955
1,468,789

J
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32.

(continued)

RERHSINEMTAE(A)

2017 —E—tF
Financial assets SHMEE
Available-for-
Loans and sale financial
receivables assets Total
BRI At E
I CREE #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETFT ARBTT
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE - 250,240 250,240
Trade and bills receivables B 5 W K e ZEE 1,084,902 - 1,084,902
Financial assets included in prepayments =t ATEFIE - #4 & H b fE L
and other receivables RENSREE 161,270 = 161,270
Pledged deposits =RURER N 49,889 - 49,889
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHERR 8,095,648 = 8,095,648
9,391,709 250,240 9,641,949
Financial liabilities SRIBE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

BRI BR

MEEBE
RMB’000
ARETT

Trade and bills payables

B RNTRARENER

Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals st A HMERMFIEREAERNSREE

889,279
415,556

1,304,835
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33. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 3B. EWMIANAFERAFEE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial UTAEAREE R TAMNEEERAFE
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably (HEEmEEAE N T ESEEEERIN) :

approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
EEE AYE

December 31, December 31,  December 31, December 31,

2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-N\E —TtF “E-N\F —ZtF

t=A=t-B +ZA=+-H +=A=t-B tZA=t+-H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREFT ARETR AREFT

Financial assets tREE

Available-for-sale investments AfHERE - 250,240 - 250,240
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank ERED TGRS RIRTTER - EREFEN
balances, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, financial assets B S REWHIERENEER - 5T ATERFKIE
included in prepayments and other receivables, trade and bills payables REMERFENEREE  BZEMK
and financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals, T8 R JEAST 245 DA R BT A EL Ath & 15 5RI8 % FE
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term AERAMNcAE  EATEAERARE
maturities of these instruments. FEHEEREERSE  DERBESEIARE

HAM B BAPTER -

J
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33. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 3B. EMIANAFERATERE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) & (&)
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRIRAEESRMITANAFEF=E
the Group’s financial instruments: @ -
Assets measured at fair value: UAFEFENEE :
The Group did not have any financial assets measured at fair value as R-ZE—N\F+_-_A=+—8 KEEL
at December 31, 2018. BAEMRATEFENSREE °
As at December 31, 2017 R=-ZB—+tH5+=-H=+—H
Fair value measurement using
RENAT A0 ATE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BRABE EAIIEHE
ERMISRE BABIE AR
(F—FE) (B=E) (£=E) st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
Available-for-sale investments At HERE - 250,240 = 250,240
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as R-E—N\F+—_A=+—"HERZ-ZE—+
at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017. FTZA=1+—0 AEEWEE(ER
FEFENeRBE-
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value FR F—EBRFE-_EBzETEANFET
measurements during the year and no transfers into or out of Level 3 ENEEETANETNEREERS /M
fair value measurements for both financial assets and financial liabilities BENAFEFEEARNELE= -
during the year.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and bank
balances, pledged deposits and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China and nearly all
transactions are conducted in RMB. As nearly all of the Group’s assets
and liabilities were denominated in RMB, the subsidiaries of the
Company in Mainland China were not subject to significant foreign
currency risk. As at December 31, 2018, the Group’s assets and
liabilities denominated in HKD were mainly held by the Company and
certain subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland China which had
currencies other than RMB as their functional currencies. The Company
and those subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland China also held
bank balances denominated in RMB, from which foreign currency
exposures arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the HKD exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax and the Group’s equity.

34 cREREEEERBEE

AEENTFEZCRTABRRIER S MIRITHE
7 BEMERERAFEFABRSENSHE
BE - WMWFeMTANIZENRALSE
EmeEEEsde AKEREZEER
RELEELENEBSREEREGE W
B S RWGIANE B ENFIES -

AEES T AP MNEZREBINER
B EERRETBECER EFEE
BRI EEESHERROBUR - B RECE
BEAn T o

SN LB

REBNEBEZMNFENM - RETF
EMRXZTIAARKEET - AAEEET
2HEEREBTIAAREE  AAF
B P B AV P A R N A E RSN R -
RZB—N\F+ZA=+—0 xEEI
BILHENEERBEDEIEZHARE R
T H R 2 B (74 R B Ayt DA S [ R 1 A
SO)FEA  REAARBAINYE AT A
RS - ARBRZEMBAR (RH
B 3 LA S R R T B SL) TRH B A A R #E
HEMRITAR  HPELINERR -

TRIVRR HE R - A& BT A M
RAEBNEEHETERSIE R L EE)
MERRE (FTEEMEERIFEE)

/
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34. €rtEMEEBZERBUER (F)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

S B (4R)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in HKD in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*

BLEE  REAEF EZREM

L3R (FE) & (R4) (R~

% RMB’000 RMB’000
Btk AR®TR AR®TR

2018 —E-N\F
If RMB weakens against HKD fig AR BEE B TRz @B 1 (6,497) 882
If RMB strengthens against HKD fin AR EEEE T HHE (1) 6,497 (882)

Excluding retained profits T EFERE 5 F
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in HKD in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*

ATER  BRWADES M

B3R /CRER) #E/CRid) OR)*

% RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Bolk ARETIT ARETE

2017 —E—tF

If RMB weakens against HKD il ARBESEE TR E 1 (3,596) 8,482
If RMB strengthens against HKD fis AR BB TTHE 1) 3,596 (8,482)
* Excluding retained profits T EFEMRER A

Credit risk EERR

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The carrying
amounts of cash and bank balances, pledged deposits and trade and
other receivables included in the consolidated financial statements
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

As at the end of the reporting period, all pledged deposits and cash
and cash equivalents were deposited in high quality financial institutions
without significant credit risk.

AEBEYEEREESTAR - RERR
1T#EE: - ERER R AR HBBERERD
B REMBBFRANREERENRAE
B EeREEMEERNRAGEERR -

RBERKR AEEHRERARRE LB
EEBEVENEEACERRNSERS
BLE -
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34. s riEMEEHEREEK (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk REBE SRR
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring AREBFRBRADESTZI T AERH
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its EommRR e W TEEEESMT AR
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and SRHEE(WNMB S REWZIE) WEIEAR RTE
projected cash flows from operations. HREHIE SR E o
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of RIEHR  REBHNESREBERIEF YD
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, SRELIRFIEMN R EAS R T -
was as follows:
2018 —EB-N\F
Less than 3to12 1to5 Over
Ondemand 3 months months years 5 years Total
BER DH3EA 3E12MEA 1855 5F Lk “st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR ARBTR AR¥TR ARWTRT AR®TR
Trade and bills payables B SR THIER
ENEE - 941,834 - - - 941,834
Financial liabilities included &+ A E At fE 4 3518
in other payables and RIEET & R
accruals e L= 241,498 285,457 - - - 526,955
241,498 1,227,291 - - - 1,468,789
2017 —E—+t5F
Less than 3to0 12 1t05 Over
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
BER PRIEA 3E12{ER 1254 S5&F L st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTIT ARBTT
Trade and bills payables BIENRIER
ANES - 889,279 - - - 889,279
Financial liabilities included &1 A fth f& {5 5138
in other payables and K FEE BRI
accruals PRARE 181,758 233,798 - - - 415,556
181,758 1,123,077 - - - 1,304,835
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. The Group monitors capital
using a gearing ratio.

The gearing ratio is total liabilities divided by capital plus total liabilities.
Capital represents equity attributable to the owners of the parent. The
gearing ratio as at the end of each reporting period was as follows:

34. £EEREE B F KR BUR ()

EXER
AEBEEAEENTIZARERAAEH
RFBEEERBRRENERLE - X
FEBABRBREENZALL

AREBEEEEERER L RIFLEA N E
HREBREENRREAEEFEHAE -
RERXFABELEE  AKENEAR
HEROBEXN - ARRBEE AN
TTRTAAD o 7852 B 3 % [ b 4 {a] 51 R 6 o0
MERENR - REBUNEEABHLERER

BERBLEERDRABRUERNLEAE
REGTE - BRI RRIRE ARG
REREMRNEERBLERMT

2018 2017

—B-N\F —T—+fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARKETT

Total liabilities B E®E 2,830,819 2,539,894
Equity attributable to owners of the parent S REHER AELEE 15,414,670 13,786,185
Capital and total liabilities BARRAGEHETE 18,245,489 16,326,079
Gearing ratio BEBELE 15.5% 15.6%
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. AR T B BEMR T
THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at UTAERRERREBAR BTG ILE
the end of the reporting period is as follows: &R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMENEE
Investment in a subsidiary LI EENGIE R 1 1
Total non-current assets JEmEEELRE 1 1
CURRENT ASSETS mENE E
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 638,177 2,465,106
Due from a subsidiary FEUSHTE A FIRIA 1,405,042 1,514,004
Other receivables H b e sk E 487 17,770
Total current assets MBEERE 2,043,706 3,996,880
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Other payables and accruals HMENSRIERETER 18,009 17,181
Total current liabilities mEAERTE 18,009 17,181
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 2,025,697 3,979,699
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES &AE&ERRE A E 2,025,698 3,979,700
Net assets BEFE 2,025,698 3,979,700
EQUITY M
Share capital f& s 112,712 112,712
Reserves fHs 1,912,986 3,866,988
Total equity ey k) 2,025,698 3,979,700

/
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. AR A B AR T ()
THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: BizE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows KARFEHEEWLT -
Exchange Pension
Share fluctuation Retained
premium reserve profits Total
R (B EXRBREE BEZRBET st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
At January 1, 2017 R=-B—tF—A—H 6,715,905 585,297 52,288 7,353,490
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBELE - (298,970) 117,143 (181,827)
Final 2016 dividend declared BER-Z—A~ERIRE (2,148,221) = = (2,148,221)
Interim 2017 dividend “Z—LFPEKRE (1,156,454) = = (1,156,454)
At December 31, 2017 and January 1,2018 R-Z—+F+-A=+—HK
—T—-\F—A—H 3,411,230 286,327 169,431 3,866,988
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENREEE = 124,832 72,207 197,039
Final 2017 dividend declared CER-Z—tERERE (1,126,779) - - (1,126,779)
Interim 2018 dividend T \EHRERE (1,024,262) = = (1,024,262)
At December 31, 2018 R=ZE—-N\F+=A=+—H 1,260,189 411,159 241,638 1,912,986
36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 36. HEHEREIE
There was no material subsequent event undertaken by the Group after REBEZZT—N\F+_A=T—HILFE
the year ended December 31, 2018. 1% ANEEWEETEANHESEIAE -
37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 37. #Z/EB#R*E
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the BHBERITBESFENR_Z—NLF=A
board of directors on March 26, 2019. ZHANBRERERE -
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